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To Members of the New York State Legislature:

In accordance with Section 8(9) of the State Finance Law, I am pleased to enclose
my 2023 Financial Report to the Legislature which includes the 2023 basic financial
statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
together with the report of the State’s independent auditors, dated July 27, 2023.

Sincerely,

AN .
Thomas P. DiNapoli

State Comptroller
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KPMG LLP
515 Broadway
Albany, NY 12207-2974

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Audit Committee
New York State Legislature:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of New York (the State), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the accompanying financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of New York, as of March 31, 2023, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We did not audit the financial statements of the following entities and funds:
e Business-Type Activities
100% State’s Lottery, which is a major enterprise fund.
100% City University of New York (CUNY), which is a major enterprise fund.

These funds collectively represent 29% and 54% of the total assets and revenues, respectively, of the
business-type activities.

e Fiduciary Activities

Tuition Savings Program that represents 12% and 5% of the total assets and revenues, respectively, of the
aggregate remaining fund information.

e Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented component units listed in note 14 to the basic financial statements collectively
represent 70% and 74% of the total assets and revenues, respectively, of the aggregate discretely
presented component units.

Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions,
insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the entities and funds listed above are based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the State of New York and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the State of New York’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the State of New York’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the State of New York’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that
we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis and the
information listed under Required Supplementary Information in the accompanying table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State of New York’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information listed in the
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information listed in
the accompanying table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 27, 2023 on our
consideration of the State of New York’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the State of New York’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the State of New
York’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KPMe LIP

Albany, New York
July 27, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(unaudited)

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is required supplementary information
to the State of New York’s financial statements. It provides a narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the State of New York (State) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023. The
MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the State’s basic financial statements, which have the
following components: (1) government-wide financial statements; (2) fund financial statements; and (3)
notes to the financial statements. The MD&A is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on
significant financial matters, (b) provide an overview of the State’s financial activities, (¢) identify any
material changes from the original budget, and (d) highlight individual fund matters. The following
presentation is, by necessity, highly summarized, and in order to gain a thorough understanding of the
State’s financial condition, the following financial statements, notes and required supplementary
information should be reviewed in their entirety.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o New York State reported a net position surplus of $30.9 billion, comprising $274 billion in total
assets and $18 billion in deferred outflows of resources, less $233.3 billion in total liabilities and
$27.8 billion in deferred inflows of resources (Table 1).

o The State’s net position increased by $28.6 billion as a result of this year’s operations. The net
position for governmental activities increased by $25.3 billion and the net position for business-
type activities increased by $3.3 billion due to current year operations (Table 2).

. The State’s governmental activities had total revenues of $268.2 billion, which exceeded total
expenses of $238.5 billion, excluding transfers to business-type activities of $4.5 billion, by
$29.7 billion (Table 2).

o The total cost of all the State’s programs, which includes $25.5 billion in business-type activities,

was $264 billion (Table 2).

. The General Fund reported a surplus this year of $15.4 billion, which increased the accumulated
fund balance to $42.9 billion.

J Total debt outstanding at year-end was $63.9 billion, comprising $47.9 billion in governmental
activities and $16 billion in business-type activities (Table 5).

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and supplementary information. The
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 28 and 29, respectively) provide
information about the activities of the State as a whole and present a longer-term view of the State’s
finances. Fund financial statements start on page 30. For governmental activities, these statements
show how services were financed in the short-term, as well as the amount of resources that remain
available for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the State’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the State’s most significant funds.
The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the State acts solely
as a trustee for the benefit of those outside the government and about public benefit corporations for
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which the State is accountable. The layout and relationship of the financial statements and
supplementary information is visually illustrated as follows:

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY Management’s Discussion and
INFORMATION Analysis (MD & A)
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
BASIC FINANCIAL Enterprise Fund Financial Statements Mandatory
STATEMENTS q
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements LN Gl
Component Unit Financial Statements
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
REQUIRED Budgetary Basis Reporting v.vith Notes,
SUPPLEMENTARY Infrastructure Assets Using the
INFORMATION Modified Approach, OPEB Schedules, and
(Other than MD&A) Pension Plans Schedules
- . Non-
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY Combining Fund Financial Mandatory
INFORMATION (Not Required) Statements/Schedules Reporting

Reporting the State as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the State, as a whole, begins on page 14. One of the most important questions asked
about the State’s finances is: “Is the State, as a whole, better off or worse off as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the
State, as a whole, and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements
include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting method used by most private sector
companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account, regardless of when
cash was received or paid.

These two statements report the State’s net position and changes in it. One can think of the State’s net
position—the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources, and (b) liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources—as one way to measure the State’s financial health, or financial position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the State’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating. One may need to consider other nonfinancial factors, such as
changes in the State’s tax structure, population, employment, and the condition of the State’s roads,
bridges and buildings, in order to assess the overall health of the State.
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In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, operations of the State are divided into
three kinds of activities:

J Governmental Activities—Most of the State's basic services are reported here, including
education, public health, public welfare, public safety, transportation, environment and
recreation, support and regulate business, general government, and interest on long-term debt.
Federal grants, personal income taxes, consumption and use taxes, business and other taxes,
transfer of lottery revenues, and bond proceeds finance most of these activities.

o Business-Type Activities—The State charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or part of the
cost of certain services it provides. The State’s Lottery Fund, Unemployment Insurance Benefit
Fund, the State University of New York (SUNY) and the City University of New York (CUNY)
Senior Colleges are reported here.

. Component Units—The State includes 43 separate legal entities in its report, as disclosed in
Notes 1 and 14 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. Although legally separate, these
“component units” are important because the State is financially accountable for them and may
be affected by their financial well-being. In addition, the State blends one other component unit
in with the governmental activities, because it provides services exclusively to the State.

Reporting the State’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements prepared at the fund level provide additional details about the State’s financial
position and activities. By definition, funds are accounting entities with a self-balancing set of accounts
created for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or achieving specific goals. Information
presented in the fund financial statements differs from the information presented in the government-
wide statements because the perspective and basis of accounting used to prepare the fund financial
statements are different than the perspective and basis of accounting used to prepare the government-
wide statements. The State’s governmental and proprietary fund types use different perspectives and
accounting bases. The funds presented in the fund financial statements are categorized as either major
or non-major funds, as required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The State uses
three fund types for operations — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. The analysis of the State’s
major funds begins on page 18. The fund financial statements begin on page 30 and provide detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the State as a whole.

o Governmental Funds—Most of the State’s basic services and expenditures are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds as well as the
balances remaining at year-end that are available for spending. Governmental fund financial
statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. Assets and liabilities that do not impact current financial resources,
such as capital assets and long-term liabilities, are not recognized in the governmental funds
statements. The governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view of the State’s
general government operations and the basic services the State provides. Governmental funds
information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the State’s programs. The relationships (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds are presented in the reconciliations following the fund
financial statements.
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J Proprietary Funds—These funds are utilized when the State charges customers to recover its
costs of providing services. Proprietary funds report on business-type activities, which
include enterprise-type funds and internal service-type funds. The State has no internal
service-type funds on a GAAP basis and, therefore, has only one proprietary fund type —
Enterprise. The State’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities reported
in the government-wide statements. Proprietary Funds statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. In addition to
a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Net Position, Proprietary Funds are also required to report a Statement of Cash Flows (page
37).

Reporting the State’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

The State is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain of its employees’ postretirement benefit and pension
plans. It is also responsible for other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for
the trust beneficiaries. All the State’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of
Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 39 and 40, respectively. We
exclude these activities from the State’s government-wide financial statements because the State cannot
use these assets to finance its operations. The State is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported
in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

Component Units of the State

The State has created numerous public benefit corporations — one provides services exclusively to the
State government itself, the Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation (TSFC), and the rest provide
services directly to citizens. The financial position and activities of TSFC have been blended within the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities in the governmental activities column and in
the governmental funds. The financial position and activities of the public benefit corporations that
provide services directly to citizens have been presented in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities under the component units column and also in more detail in the Combining
Statement of Net Position and the Combining Statement of Activities for the component units. These
component units have been discretely presented in the State’s financial statements because their nature
and significance to the State cause them to have an effect on the fiscal condition of the State and the
State is accountable for them.

OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Governmental entities are required by GAAP to report on their net position. The Statement of Net
Position presents the value of all of New York State's assets and deferred outflows of resources, and of
its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between them reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of changes in
a government's financial position. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the State reported a net
position surplus of $30.9 billion, comprising $77.7 billion in net investment in capital assets, and $10.8
billion in restricted net position, offset by an unrestricted net position deficit of $57.6 billion.

Net position reported for governmental activities increased by $25.3 billion to a $46.5 billion net
position surplus.
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The following table (Table 1) was derived from the current and prior year government-wide Statements
of Net Position:

Table 1
Net Position as of March 31, 2023 and 2022
(Amounts in millions)

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities* Government
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Assets:
Noncapital assets:
Cash and investments..................... $§ 88392 § 82385 $§ 10994 § 10,098 $ 99,386 § 92,483
Receivables, net ...........ccoeeeenne.nn, 47,708 49,117 4,968 5,863 52,676 54,980
Other ..oooviieieeeeece e, 4,172 652 1,018 294 5,190 946
Total noncapital assets............... 140,272 132,154 16,980 16,255 157,252 148,409
Capital assets........ccceevververeenieennnnns, 97,064 93,337 19,615 18,901 116,679 112,238
Total assets 237,336 225,491 36,595 35,156 273,931 260,647
Deferred outflows of resources ..... 14,739 17,871 3,269 3,633 18,008 21,504
Liabilities:
Other liabilities..........ccceveeienriennennes, 71,870 77,201 3,838 4,246 75,708 81,447
Long-term liabilities.............c.cu......, 112,936 116,822 44,625 47,216 157,561 164,038
Total liabilities.......cceecverrerccerenns 184,806 194,023 48,463 51,462 233,269 245,485
Deferred inflows of resources........ 20,816 23,985 6,966 6,189 27,782 30,174
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets ....... 75,994 72,836 1,688 1,225 77,682 74,061
Restricted ......oooveeeevieneeieee e 8,957 15,546 1,882 1,874 10,839 17,420
Unrestricted deficits.........cccevvennnnn, (38,498) (63,028) (19,135) (21,961) (57,633) (84,989)
Total net position.......c..ceeueerurenen. $ 46453 § 25354 $ (15,565) $(18862) $ 30,888 $ 6,492

* As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 for SUNY and CUNY activities

Unrestricted net position for governmental activities is the part of net position that can be used to finance
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other
legal requirements. The net position deficit in unrestricted governmental activities of $38.5 billion
decreased by $24.5 billion (38.9 percent) in 2023, and exists primarily because the State has issued debt
for purposes not resulting in a capital asset related to State governmental activities and because of the
obligation related to other postemployment benefits ($52.6 billion). Such outstanding debt included:
borrowing for local highway and bridge projects ($3.9 billion), local mass transit projects ($6.6 billion),
and a wide variety of grants and other expenditures not resulting in State capital assets ($14.6 billion).
The majority of such debt resulted in capital assets owned by local governments and public authorities
and included a STARC debt refunding grant for NYC. This deficit in unrestricted net position of
governmental activities can be expected to continue for as long as the State continues to have obligations
outstanding for purposes other than the acquisition of State governmental capital assets.

The net position deficit in business-type activities decreased by $3.3 billion (18 percent) to $15.6 billion
in 2023 as compared to $18.9 billion in 2022. The decrease in net position deficit for business-type
activities was due to CUNY Senior Colleges’ revenues and State support exceeding expenses by $342
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million, SUNY revenues and State support exceeding expenses by $1.6 billion, and employer
contributions and other revenue exceeding unemployment benefit payments for the Unemployment
Insurance Fund by $1.4 billion. This was partially offset by Lottery education aid transfers exceeding

net income by $100 million.

The following table (Table 2) was derived from the current and prior year government-wide Statements

of Activities:
Table 2
Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022
(Amounts in millions)
Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities* Government
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services .................. $ 27271 $ 26555 $ 19,796 $ 19,758 $§ 47,067 $ 46,313
Operating grants and
coNtributions..........cceeeveeevenenns 100,401 95,239 4,372 27,628 104,773 122,867
Capital grants and contributions 1,805 1,247 97 21 1,902 1,268
General revenues:
TaAXES covveeveeerieereeee et 117,475 109,643 - - 117,475 109,643
Other......coovieeiicicieeeeeeiee, 21,266 19,169 967 1,191 22,233 20,360
Total revenues......c..ceeereersaeens 268,218 251,853 25,232 48,598 293,450 300,451
Expenses:
Education........ccccevvevivecrrnnennen. 44,877 40,701 - - 44,877 40,701
Public health..........cooeverennen. 109,812 105,374 - - 109,812 105,374
Public welfare........c.ccecveuennens 25,064 27,207 - - 25,064 27,207
Public safety ........cccoeveviveiennnnns 14,836 9,700 - - 14,836 9,700
Transportation ...........cceeeveeevennen. 12,958 15,879 - - 12,958 15,879
Other....cocveiieieiieieeeieeens 30,928 30,995 - - 30,928 30,995
Lottery ..ooovvvievieicieeeeeeeieeene - - 7,031 6,907 7,031 6,907
Unemployment insurance.......... - - 2,305 26,118 2,305 26,118
State University of New York ... - - 11,860 12,004 11,860 12,004
City University of New York .... - - 4,284 3,838 4,284 3,838
Total expenses........cceeeeeeeeneene 238,475 229,856 25,480 48,867 263,955 278,723
Increase (decrease) in net
position before transfers ......... 29,743 21,997 (248) (269) 29,495 21,728
Transfers.......coovevveeeeeeevieeieennns (4,458) (3,946) 3,549 2,376 (909) (1,570)
Changes in net position ......... 25,285 18,051 3,301 2,107 28,586 20,158
Net position, beginning of year,
as restated 21,168 7,303 (18,866) (20,969) 2,302 (13,666)
Net position, end of year ........... $ 46453 § 25354 $ (15,565) $ (18,862) $ 30,888 § 6,492

* As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 for SUNY and CUNY activities
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Governmental Activities

In fiscal year 2023, the State’s total revenues for governmental activities of $268.2 billion exceeded its
total expenses of $238.5 billion by $29.7 billion (Table 2). However, as shown in the Statement of
Activities on page 29, the amount that State taxpayers ultimately financed for activities through State
taxes and other State revenues was $138.7 billion. Overall, the State’s governmental program revenues,
including intergovernmental aid, fees for services and capital grants, were $129.5 billion in 2023. The
State paid for the remaining “public benefit” portion of governmental activities with $117.5 billion in
taxes and $21.2 billion in unrestricted grants and other revenues, including investment earnings.

Table 3 presents the cost of State support for each of the State’s five largest programs: education, public
health, public welfare, public safety, and transportation, as well as each program’s net cost (total cost
less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial obligation that was placed
upon the State’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table 3
Governmental Activities for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022
(Amounts in millions)

2023 2022
Total Cost Program Net Cost Net Cost
of Services Revenues of Services of Services
Education ..................... $ 44877 % 7,895 $ 36982 § 32,768
Public health ............... 109,812 82,283 27,529 26,484
Public welfare .............. 25,064 18,648 6,416 6,040
Public safety................. 14,836 9,441 5,395 5,911
Transportation.............. 12,958 4,018 8,940 12,339
All others........cooeunnn 30,928 7,192 23,736 23,273
TotalS...ccoerrrrneneeecen. $ 238475  §$ 129,477 $ 108,998 § 106,815

Business-Type Activities

The cost of all business-type activities this year was $25.5 billion, a decrease of $23.4 billion over the
$48.9 billion cost in 2022 (Table 2). Decreases in spending for Unemployment Insurance Benefit Fund
payments, SUNY hospitals and clinics, and SUNY and CUNY Senior Colleges’ educational and general
expenses were slightly offset by increases in Lottery benefits and prizes paid. As shown in the Statement
of Activities on page 29, the amount reported as transfers that governmental activities ultimately
financed for business-type activities was $3.5 billion after activity costs were paid by those directly
benefiting from the programs ($19.8 billion), operating grants and contributions ($4.4 billion), and
capital grants and contributions ($97 million). The increase in revenues from charges for services ($38
million) resulted from an increase in Lottery ticket and video gaming sales, as well as auxiliary
enterprises revenues and the increase in employer contributions. The decrease in operating grants and
contributions ($23.3 billion) is a result of lower federal grants received by the State in the
Unemployment Insurance Benefit Fund used for payment of claims related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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THE STATE’S FUNDS

The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with legal and finance-related
requirements. As the State completed the fiscal year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance
sheet on page 30) reported a combined fund balance of $65.8 billion. Included in this year’s total change
in fund balance is a surplus of $15.4 billion in the State’s General Fund, resulting from expenditures
exceeding revenues by $16.7 billion, which was offset by net other financing sources of $32.1 billion to
the General Fund. The General Fund reported increases in personal income taxes ($24.6 billion),
consumption and uses taxes ($2.6 billion), other taxes ($1.3 billion), and miscellaneous revenues ($4.5
billion), offset by decreases in business taxes ($6.6 billion) and federal grants ($2.2 billion). Compared
to the prior year, personal income tax revenue increased due to lower estimated final return payments
coupled with the reclassification of the Pass-Through Entity Tax from business taxes to personal income
tax. The Federal grant revenue decreased due to a decline in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding
to the General Fund for use in operations. Total General Fund revenues increased $24.2 billion, while
expenditures increased $8.5 billion. Local assistance expenditures increased by $3.7 billion, due
primarily to the timing of education assistance as well as public health expenditures, offset by a decrease
in general government expenditures. State operations expenditures increased $4.8 billion. The State
ended the 2022-23 fiscal year with a General Fund accumulated fund balance of $42.9 billion. Due to
the nature of the State’s Federal Special Revenue Funds, there is no fund balance. Revenues and
expenditures primarily consist of federal grant receipts and local assistance grants, with the largest
spending occurring in the public health and public welfare grant program areas. Revenues exceeded
expenditures this year by $1.9 billion, offset by other financing sources of $1.9 billion, which resulted
in a net change to fund balance of zero. Also included in this year’s total change in fund balance is a
deficit of $1.4 billion in the State’s General Debt Service Fund, resulting from revenues exceeding
expenditures by $36.3 billion, which was offset by net other financing uses of $37.7 billion. The General
Debt Service Fund reported decreases in personal income taxes ($3 billion), business taxes ($8.2 billion)
and net other financing uses ($7.6 billion), offset by increases in consumption and use taxes ($0.7
billion) and debt service expenditures ($2.9 billion). Compared to the prior year, personal income tax
revenue decreased due to a decrease in dedicated revenues. The increase in consumption and use taxes
was due to an increase in allocated revenues following the retirement of LGAC bonds. The General
Debt Service Fund revenues decreased by $10.5 billion, while debt service expenditures increased $2.9
billion due to defeasances on outstanding debt. The decrease in net financing uses was primarily due to
a decrease in transfers of excess revenues ($8.6 billion) to the General Fund after debt service
requirements were met, offset by an increase in payments to escrow agents for refundings ($1 billion).
The General Debt Service Fund ended the 2022-23 fiscal year with an accumulated fund balance of $6.5
billion.

The Enterprise Funds financial statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The change in net position of the Enterprise
Funds has already been discussed in the preceding discussion of business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The State’s financial plan, which uses the cash basis of accounting, is updated quarterly throughout the
year as required by the State Finance Law. The quarterly updates to the 2022-23 financial plan reflected
revisions to the original financial plan based on actual operating results to date and an updated analysis
of underlying economic, revenue, and spending trends, as well as other actions and developments. This
discussion includes comparisons to estimates from two different financial plan updates in 2022-23: the
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original financial plan (the “Enacted Budget Financial Plan” issued May 20, 2022) and the final financial
plan (the “Updated Financial Plan” issued March 8, 2023).

General Fund receipts exceeded disbursements by $10.4 billion in the 2022-23 fiscal year. Total General
Fund receipts for the year (including transfers from other funds) were $103.2 billion. Total General
Fund disbursements for the year (including transfers to other funds) were $92.8 billion. The State ended
FY 2023 in a stronger overall position in comparison to the estimates in both the Enacted Budget
Financial Plan and the Updated Financial Plan. Results reflected both strong receipts and disbursements
that fell substantially below budgeted levels. The excess resources that were available at the close of FY
2023 have been carried forward through available balances and reserves, as well as used to prepay future
expenses to reduce costs in future years of the Financial Plan.

Tax receipts and General Fund continue to be impacted by the enactment of the Pass-Through Entity
Tax (PTET) program which resulted in business tax collections of $14.9 billion and a reduction in PIT
collections by an estimated $17 billion due to PTET credits, resulting in a net $2.1 billion reduction in
tax receipts. The net reduction is offset by the use of a portion of the General Fund balance set aside
for this purpose to cover the timing difference between PTET collections and related PIT credits across
fiscal years.

The General Fund ended the fiscal year with a closing cash fund balance of $43.5 billion, which
consisted of $6.2 billion in the State’s rainy day reserve funds ($1.6 billion in the Tax Stabilization
Reserve Account and $4.7 billion in the Rainy Day Reserve Fund), $26 million in the Community
Projects Fund, $21 million in the Contingency Reserve Fund, and $37.1 billion in the Refund Reserve
Account. At the close of the 2022-23 fiscal year, the Division of the Budget (DOB) informally
designated a portion of the $37.1 billion on deposit in the Refund Reserve for timing of PTET/PIT
Credits ($14.4 billion), economic uncertainties ($13.3 billion), debt management ($2.4 billion), transfers
to capital projects funds ($1.6 billion), pandemic assistance ($245 million), and labor settlements/agency
operations ($765 million). These amounts can be used for other purposes.

General Fund receipts in the 2022-23 fiscal year were $14.9 billion higher than the Enacted Budget
Financial Plan estimate. Personal income tax (PIT) receipts, including transfers from other funds after
debt service payments, exceeded projections by $9.2 billion across current estimated payments, final
returns, delinquencies, and withholding, as well as lower current year refunds and advanced credit
payments. A larger than expected state/city offset reconciliation and prior year refunds slightly offset
the higher PIT receipts. Higher PIT receipts are also attributable to tax year 2021 PTET credits, which
were expected to materialize as current year refunds but appear to have been recognized through reduced
extension payments as well. PIT receipts, excluding debt prepayments and PTET, were $5.2 billion
higher than projected. In addition, General Fund PIT receipts were affected by the prepayment of debt
service due in future years, which reduced PIT receipts deposited to the General Fund. Strong sales tax
collections were the main driver of higher consumption/use tax receipts. Higher than projected business
taxes were attributable to increased audits, partially offset by lower gross taxes. Other taxes exceeded
initial projections due to the receipt of super-large estate tax payments. Miscellaneous receipts exceeded
initial estimates due mainly to higher investment income due to rising interest rates, Abandoned
Property, reimbursements, and Extraordinary Settlements. Transfers from other funds exceeded initial
estimates due to the Transaction Risk Reserve which was included in the initial estimates to guard
against unexpected declines in receipts or costs related to transaction risk execution.

General Fund disbursements in 2022-23 were $3.3 billion below the Enacted Budget Financial Plan
estimate. Local Assistance spending was $3.5 billion lower than planned due to the timing of payments
and conservative estimation of spending. Agency operations were $32 million below initial
expectations, due primarily to lower than anticipated personnel spending as agencies continue to face
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challenges with staff recruitment and retention, which was mostly offset by higher NPS spending driven
by a delay in Federal FEMA reimbursement, Healthcare Worker Bonuses, and GSCs spending related
to the partial acceleration of FY 2024 Health Insurance and Workers Compensation payments. Transfers
to other funds were $185 million higher than initial projections due to increased spending and delayed
reimbursements in the DHBTF, partially offset by lower than anticipated transfers to the Indigent Legal
Services and Internal Services Funds.

Net operating results compared to the Updated Financial Plan were positive by $4.5 billion with a net
operating surplus of $10.4 billion. The improvement was comprised of $2.8 billion in higher receipts
and lower disbursements of $1.7 billion. Higher receipts occurred primarily due to PTET collections
and the transfer from the Transaction Risk Reserve which was included in the estimates to guard against
unexpected declines in receipts or costs related to transaction risk execution, partially offset by the
payment of debt service due in future years. Lower disbursements were driven by normal underspending
and conservative estimation of disbursements.

The State's current year General Fund GAAP surplus of $15.4 billion reported on page 32 differs from
the General Fund’s cash basis operating surplus of $10.4 billion reported in the reconciliation found
under Budgetary Basis Reporting on page 174. This variation results from differences in basis of
accounting, and entity and perspective differences between budgetary reporting versus those established
as GAAP and followed in preparation of this financial statement.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of March 31, 2023, the State has $116.7 billion invested in a broad range of capital assets, including
equipment, buildings, construction in progress, land preparation, and infrastructure, which primarily
includes roads and bridges (Table 4). This amount represents a net increase (including additions and
deductions) of $1.7 billion over last year.

Table 4
Capital Assets as of March 31, 2023 and 2022
(Net of depreciation, amounts in millions)

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities*®, as restated Government
2023 2022 2023 2022%* 2023 2022%*
Land and land
improvements.................. $ 4,694 $ 4,647 % 1,144  § 1,129  §$ 5,838 % 5,776
Land preparation ............... 4,338 4,299 - - 4,338 4,299
Buildings ........cccoveeieieennn. 5,376 5,453 13,213 13,319 18,589 18,772
Equipment and library
{07016 < 346 368 834 810 1,180 1,178
Leases.....ccovveveeecreeeneennne. 2,229 1,922 911 966 3,140 2,888
Construction in progress ... 3,567 2,680 2,474 2,369 6,041 5,049
Infrastructure..................... 75,920 75,337 854 884 76,774 76,221
Artwork and historical
treasures ......ccceeeeveeeennnen.. - - 47 46 47 46
Intangible assets................. 594 609 138 152 732 761
TotalS...ccereeereecreneccanenne $ 97,064 $ 95315 § 19615 § 19,675 $ 116,679 $ 114,990

*As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 for SUNY and CUNY activities
** 2022 balances restated as a result of the implementation of GASB 87, Leases and GASB 96, Subscription-Based IT Arrangements
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State-owned roads and bridges that are maintained by the Department of Transportation (DOT) are being
reported using the modified approach. As allowed by the reporting provisions in GASB Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local
Governments, infrastructure assets that meet prescribed criteria do not have to be depreciated but must
be maintained at levels defined by State policy. The State currently has 42,744 lane miles of roads. The
State has 7,920 bridges in the inventory, of which 7,702 are highway bridges. The remainder include
railroad and pedestrian structures.

Highway condition is rated using a scale of 1 (very poor) to 10 (excellent) based on the prevalence of
surface-related pavement distress. For bridges, in 2016, the State transitioned to the American
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) element-based rating system
that utilizes a 1 (good) through 4 (severe) scale as mandated by the Federal Highway Administration
(FHWA). The new bridge goal will be based on the percentage of Structurally Deficient (SD) bridges
as defined by FHWA. The SD calculations are based on the National Bridge Inventory (NBI) inspection
data that has been collected by the DOT for more than 15 years and reported to FHWA on an annual
basis. Prior to 2016, the State used a numerical inspection condition rating (CR) scale ranging from 1
(minimum) to 7 (maximum). Under this prior rating system, bridges with a CR rating greater than 5.8
are in good condition, and generally require preventive and corrective maintenance actions; bridges
receiving a rating between 4.9 (inclusive) and 5.8 (inclusive) are in fair protective condition, and
generally require relatively minor preventive and corrective maintenance actions; those rated between
4.4 (inclusive) and 4.9 are in fair corrective condition, and generally require moderate preventive and
corrective maintenance actions; and bridges assigned a rating less than 4.4 are considered to be in poor
condition, and generally require major rehabilitation or replacement. Refer to the Required
Supplementary Information (RSI) for additional information regarding infrastructure assets using the
modified approach. Pavement condition rating parameters for the current year are between 6.7 and 7.2.
Using the new criteria to identify Structurally Deficient bridges, it is the State’s intention to maintain
the percentage of SD bridges at or below 15 percent of the State highway bridge population. Previously,
it was the State’s intention to maintain the bridges at an average condition rating level of between 5.3
and 5.6. Capital spending for highway and bridge maintenance and preservation projects was
approximately $1.5 billion in 2023.

The State’s 2023-24 fiscal year capital budget calls for it to spend $17.2 billion for capital projects, of
which $7.5 billion is for transportation projects. To pay for these capital projects, the State plans to use
$468 million in general obligation bond proceeds, $6.2 billion in other financing arrangements with
public authorities, $3.6 billion in federal funds, and $6.9 billion in funds on hand or received during the
year. More detailed information about the State’s capitalization policy for capital assets is presented in
Note 1 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. For further information on capital asset balances,
refer to Note 5. For a comparison of estimated-to-actual spending for maintenance and preservation
costs, refer to the RSI.

Debt Administration

The State has obtained long-term financing in the form of voter-approved General Obligation debt
(voter-approved debt) and other obligations that are authorized by legislation but not approved by the
voters (non-voter-approved debt), including contractual obligations where the State’s legal obligation
to make payments is subject to and paid from annual appropriations made by the Legislature.
Installation commitments and mortgage loan commitments, which represent $216 million as of March
31, 2023, do not require legislative or voter approval. Other obligations include certain bonds issued
through State public authorities and certificates of participation. The State administers its long-term
financing needs as a single portfolio of State-supported debt that includes general obligation bonds and
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other obligations of both its governmental activities and business-type activities. Most of the debt
reported under business-type activities, all of which was issued for capital assets used in those activities,
is supported by payments from resources generated by the State’s governmental activities—thus it is
not expected to be directly repaid from resources generated by business-type activities. The State
Finance Law allows the bonded portion of this single combined debt portfolio, which includes debt
reported in both governmental and business-type activities, to include debt instruments which result in
a net variable rate exposure in an amount that does not exceed 15 percent of total outstanding State-
supported debt, and interest rate exchange agreements (swaps) that do not exceed 15 percent of total
outstanding State-supported debt. As of March 31, 2023, there are no swap agreements outstanding.

At March 31, 2023, the State had $63.9 billion in bonds, notes, and other financing agreements
outstanding compared with $69.7 billion in the prior year, a decrease of $5.8 billion as shown below in
Table 5.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt as of March 31, 2023 and 2022
(Amounts in millions)

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities* Government
2023 2022 2023 2022%* 2023 2022
State-supported debt as
defined by the State
Finance Law:
General obligation bonds
(voter-approved)................ $ 1,836 $ 1,996 § - $ - $ 1,836 § 1,996
Other financing
arrangements .............o..c.... 40,806 45,643 14,219 14,234 55,025 59,877
Municipal Bond Bank
Agency (MBBA) Special
Purpose School Aid bonds .... - 30 - - - 30
Installation commitments........ 1 32 156 134 157 166
Mortgage loan commitments... - - 59 61 59 61
Other long-term debt............... - - 87 95 87 95
Unamortized bond
premiums (discounts)............ 5,298 6,019 1,482 1,419 6,780 7,438
Totals $ 47941 $§ 53,720 $ 16,003 §$§ 15943 $ 63944 $ 69,663

*As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 for SUNY and CUNY activities
** As restated

In addition to the debt outlined above, the State reported $2.2 billion in collateralized borrowings ($252
million in governmental activities and $1.9 billion in business-type activities) for which specific
revenues have been pledged. In the prior year, the State reported $2.2 billion in collateralized
borrowings ($268 million in governmental activities and $1.9 billion in business-type activities).
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During the 12-month period reported, the State issued $6.8 billion in bonds, of which $1.6 billion was
for refunding and $5.2 billion was for new borrowing (Table 6). For additional information related to
outstanding debt, see Note 7 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. See Note 16 for State debt
issued subsequent to the reporting period.

Table 6
New Debt Issued During Prior 12-Month Period
(Amounts in millions)

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities*® Government
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Voter-approved debt:
General obligation:
NEW ISSUES veevveeeeeeeesereeeeeeeeen, $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Refunding issues..........c..cceenu.en. - - - - - -

Total voter-approved debt......... - - - - - -

Non-voter-approved debt:
Other financing arrangements:

NEW 1SSUES ....vveereerreeiieeree e, 3,305 7,948 1,935 959 5,240 8,907
Refunding issues...........c.cu....... 899 1,242 672 502 1,571 1,744
Total non-voter-approved debt . 4,204 9,190 2,607 1,461 6,811 10,651
Totals $ 4,204 $ 9190 §$ 2607 $ 1461 $ 6811 $§ 10,651

*As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 for SUNY and CUNY activities

The State’s assigned general obligation bond ratings on March 31, 2023 were as follows: AA+ by
Standard & Poor’s Investor Services (S&P), Aal by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc., and AA+ by Fitch
Investor Service. The State Constitution, with exceptions for emergencies, limits the amount of general
obligation bonds that can be issued to that amount approved by the voters for a single work or purpose
in a general election. Currently, the State has $6.4 billion in authorized but unissued bond capacity that
can be used to issue bonds for specifically approved purposes. The State may issue short-term debt
without voter approval in anticipation of the receipt of taxes and revenues or proceeds from duly
authorized but not issued general obligation bonds. For detailed information related to general
obligation bonds, refer to Note 6.

The State Finance Law, through the Debt Reform Act of 2000 (the Act), also imposes phased-in caps
on the issuance of new State-supported debt and related debt service costs. The Act also limits the use
of debt to capital works and purposes, and establishes a maximum term length for repayment of 30 years.
The Act applies to all State-supported debt. The Act does not apply to debt issued prior to April 1, 2000
or to other obligations issued by public authorities where the State is not the direct obligor.

State legislation authorized in connection with the Enacted Budgets for the 2021-22 and 2022-23 fiscal
years suspended the Debt Reform Act as part of the State response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Accordingly, any State-supported debt issued in 2021-22 and 2022-23 is not limited to capital purposes
and is not counted towards the statutory caps on debt outstanding and debt service.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATE

After a strong recovery in 2021, the national economy contracted in the first half of 2022 due, in part,
to the expiration of fiscal stimulus provided by the federal government in response to the COVID-19
pandemic. Economic growth returned in the third quarter and was sustained through the end of the year.
As a result, the real gross domestic product (GDP) nationally increased by 2.1 percent in 2022 after the
robust growth of 5.7 percent in 2021.

With the impact of the pandemic being more severe in New York, the State’s economic recovery took
longer than the nation as a whole; the real Gross State Product (GSP) only returned to pre-pandemic
levels in the third quarter of 2021. However, annual State economic growth was on par with that of the
nation, increasing 5.7 percent. In 2022, New York’s economic growth exceeded that of the nation, with
real GSP growing 3.2 percent.

The significant job losses caused by the pandemic shutdown were still being recovered in 2021 but
neither the nation nor the State had returned to pre-pandemic levels by the end of the year. Six months
into 2022, national employment was fully recovered, and, in December, was over 2.1 million jobs
higher. In New York, recovery was much slower. Only 75.2 percent of lost jobs were recovered in 2021
while at the end of 2022, 91 percent were back.

All regions of the State experienced job growth in both 2021 and 2022. Long Island and the Hudson
Valley were among the regions with the highest increases while the Southern Tier and Mohawk Valley
had the lowest. However, no region had employment above their pre-pandemic levels. Long Island
was the closest to full recovery, 2.5 percent below 2019 levels; the Mohawk Valley was the furthest, 6.2
percent below, at the end of 2022.

In 2021, the unemployment rate decreased from its highest annual rate in nearly 50 years, from 9.8
percent in 2020 to 7.0 percent. It further declined to 4.3 percent in 2022. In addition, after continuing
to shed workers in 2021, the labor force reversed course in 2022, increasing by 59,100. With more
workers, the labor force participation rate increased, from 59.9 percent in 2021 to 60.2 percent in 2022.
However, there were still 237,000 less workers than in 2019.

Total wages, which are influenced by employment levels as well as the amounts paid to workers,
increased nationally in 2022 by 8.0 percent. While employment increased at a faster rate in New York
in 2022, total wage growth in New York lagged the nation, 6.9 percent. Average annual wages earned
by workers in New York showed similar results, increases of 3.5 percent and 1.7 percent nationwide
and in New York, respectively. The hospitality industry, which include hotels and restaurants, realized
the highest percentage growth in average annual wages in 2022 (8.1 percent), while, for the information
sector, wages declined (3.1 percent).

Despite the increase in wages, total personal income in New York only increased by 0.8 percent in 2022.
This slow growth is attributable to the return of current transfer receipts to historical trend levels.
Current transfer receipts primarily reflect government payments such as social security and
unemployment benefits. In both 2020 and 2021, these receipts increased significantly as a result of
fiscal stimulus provided under the various federal COVID-19 relief packages, in particular, the
economic impact checks and enhanced unemployment benefits. With the expiration of this stimulus,
current transfer receipts decreased by $61 billion, 18.4 percent in 2022.

The securities industry in New York City is an important contributor to State and City revenues due to
its large share of high-paid jobs and often large bonuses. Industrywide, profits in 2022 were 56 percent
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lower and the average bonus in the securities industry in New York City decreased by an estimated 26
percent. However, finance and insurance industry employment in the City increased by nearly 9,800
jobs in 2022.

According to the 2020 Census, New York State’s population was just over 20.2 million people. In 2022,
the population declined by over 431,000, or 2.1 percent, based on estimates from the U.S. Census
Bureau. In comparison, there were nearly 1.8 million more people nationwide. New York had the
second largest population decline; California was first.

CONTACTING THE STATE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the State’s finances and to show the State’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the State Comptroller’s Communications Office at 110 State Street, 15" Floor, Albany, New York
12236 or visit our website at www.osc.state.ny.us.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

ASSETS:
Cash and investments.............c.ccooiiiiiiiii
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Due from Federal government...............coooiiiiiiiiiiiininnnans
Loans and NOteS.........c..uviiiiiiiiiiiii e

Net pension asset...........cooiiiiiiiiiii
Net other postemployment benefits asset.
Other @sSets. ... ..cc.iiiiii e
Capital assets:
Land, infrastructure and construction in progress................
Buildings, equipment, land improvements
and infrastructure, net of depreciation.............................
Leases, net of amortization .
Intangible assets, net of amortization................................
Derivative instruments...............cccooiiiiiiiiiiin
Total @ssets.........ceoiiiuiiiiiiniiii

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Tax refunds payable...........ooeviiiiiiiii i
Accounts payable....
Accrued liabilities.............
Payable to local governments
Interest payable..................
Pension contributions payable.. .
Unearned reVENUES. ...........cc.uuiiiiiiiieiiiiie e
Long-term liabilities:
Due withinone year..........ccooooviiviiiiiiiii e
Due in more than one year:
Tax refunds payable...........cooeiviiiiiiiini s
Accrued liabilities..............
Payable to local governments.
Due to Federal government....
Lottery prizes payable...........
Pension contributions payable
Net pension liability.................
Net other postemployment benefits liability.
Pollution remediation....................
Asset retirement obligations
Lease liability..........ccocoveiiiiiiians .
Subscription-based IT arrangements...............ccceveennans
Collateralized borrowings. .............oveuiviiiiiiiiiiiineieineanns
Other financing arrangements ..
Notes payable..........ccoviiiiiiiii
Bonds payable............ooiiiiii
Other long-term liabilities. .
Derivative instruments...............cooiiiiiiiii
Total liabilities.........cooeiiiniieiiiiii e

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets................cooooiiiiiis

Restricted for:
Debt SerVICe. .....cuiiiiiii e
Health and patient care............
Education and research programs...........
Environmental projects and energy programs..
Economic development, housing and transportation..
Insurance and administrative requirements........... .
Future lottery prizes...........oooiiiiii
PENSIONS. ...t
Other government programs.. ..

Unrestricted defiCits..........cooviiiiiiiiiii

Total net position.........ccceuviiiiiiieiii e

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 88,392 $ 10,994 $ 99,386 $ 68,766
19,698 - 19,698 -
32 7 39 3,039
20,995 39 21,034 -
- - - 31,287

6,568 4,678 11,246 4,619
415 244 659 -
3,254 665 3,919 178

- 85 85 151

918 268 1,186 3,808
87,805 3,663 91,468 26,734
6,436 14,903 21,339 91,125
2,229 911 3,140 3,006
594 138 732 497

- - - 271
237,336 36,595 273,931 233,481
14,739 3,269 18,008 10,027
18,628 - 18,628 -
901 755 1,656 635
19,539 2,254 21,793 21,810
15,430 - 15,430 -
112 232 344 -

1 - 1 31
17,259 597 17,856 3,206
2,669 1,054 3,723 7,142
1,780 - 1,780 -
5,183 1,310 6,493 859
384 - 384 -

300 8,298 8,598 -

- 886 886 -

- 6 6 -

113 626 739 6,967
52,616 13,902 66,518 29,383
965 - 965 126

61 - 61 344
1,997 931 2,928 2,791
36 - 36 -

235 2,036 2,271 -
44,832 15,576 60,408 -
- - - 663

1,765 - 1,765 95,023

- - - 7,904

- - - 252
184,806 48,463 233,269 177,136
20,816 6,966 27,782 10,687
75,994 1,688 77,682 45,967
7,160 - 7,160 2,392
1,141 - 1,141 164

5 1,417 1,422 4,489

20 - 20 9,632

195 - 195 6,129

153 - 153 2,658

- 399 399 -

- 66 66 -

283 - 283 -
(38,498) (19,135) (57,633) (15,746)
$ 46,453 $ (15,565) $ 30,888 $ 55,685
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Major Funds

Federal General Other
Special Debt Governmental
General Revenue Service Funds Eliminations Total
ASSETS:
Cash and investments............cccoceeoveeveeeeeeceeeeeenns $ 55,075 $ 10,997 6,633 $ 15,687 $ - $ 88,392
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Taxes... 10,761 - 8,062 875 - 19,698
Leases. 32 - - - - 32
Due from Federal government.... - 20,550 7 626 - 21,183
2,658 1,042 - 2,868 - 6,568
Due from other funds.... 4,146 69 - 1,990 (4,740) 1,465
Other @sSets.......cocooiiiiiiiiereeee e 748 169 - 1 - 918
Total t $ 73,420 $ 32,827 14,702 $ 22,047 $ (4,740) $ 138,256
LIABILITIES:
Tax refunds payable.. $ 11,352 $ - 6,250 $ 1,026 $ - $ 18,628
Accounts payable 569 32 - 300 - 901
Accrued liabilities 7,316 9,169 14 266 - 16,765
Payable to local governments 3,564 10,762 800 304 - 15,430
Due to other funds 665 1,359 686 2,459 (4,740) 429
Pension contributions payable... 1 - - - - 1
Unearned revenues... 6,070 11,185 - 4 - 17,259
Total liabilities. 29,537 32,507 7,750 4,359 (4,740) 69,413
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES................. 971 320 411 1,355 - 3,057
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):
RESHNCtEA. ... 362 - 6,412 1,244 - 8,018
COMMILEEA. ... 38,295 - 129 12,848 - 51,272
Assigned 4,255 - - 4,207 - 8,462
Unassigned... - - - (1,966) - (1,966)
Total fund balances 42,912 - 6,541 16,333 - 65,786
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances........................ $ 73,420 $ 32,827 14,702 $ 22,047 $ (4,740) $ 138,256

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



STATE OF NEW YORK

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)
Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 65,786

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital, lease and intangible assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 97,064

Pension asset reported in governmental activities is not financial resources and
therefore is not reported in the funds. 3,254

Deferred inflows of resources related to the State's revenues that will be collected

after year-end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures, are deferred in the funds. 3,012

Deferred inflows of resources related to deferred gains on refundings of bonds
payable and other financing arrangements are not reported in the funds. (322)

Deferred inflows of resources related to pension and other postemployment
benefits are not reported in the funds. (20,449)

Medicaid cost recoveries are not available soon enough to reduce current period
expenditures that are due to the Federal government. (188)

Deferred outflows of resources related to deferred losses on refundings of bonds
payable and other financing arrangements are not reported in the funds. 156

Deferred outflows of resources related to pension and other postemployment
benefits are not reported in the funds. 14,539

Deferred outflows of resources related to asset retirement obligations 44

Some liabilities (listed below) are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:

Interest payable (112)
Due to business-type activities (621)
Claimant liability for escheated property (2,774)
Long-term liabilities due within one year (2,669)
Tax refunds payable (1,780)
Accrued liabilities (5,183)
Payable to local governments (384)
Due to Federal government (300)
Net pension liability (113)
Other postemployment benefits (52,616)
Pollution remediation (965)
Asset retirement obligations (61)
Lease liability (1,997)
Subscription-based IT arrangements (36)
Collateralized borrowings (235)
Other financing arrangements (44,832)
Bonds payable (1,765)
Total net position - governmental activities $ 46,453

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



32

STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)
Major Funds

Federal General Other
Special Debt Governmental
General Revenue Service Funds Eliminations Total
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Personal income......... $ 39,107 $ - $ 37,112 $ 1,510 $ - $ 77,729
Consumption and use 6,785 - 9,331 4,629 - 20,745
Business... 10,042 - - 3,163 - 13,205
2,690 - 3 3,647 - 6,340
Federal grants 2,351 99,572 26 2,655 - 104,604
Public health/patient fees - - - 6,552 - 6,552
Tobacco settlement.............ccocoiiiiiiiiii - - - 541 - 541
Miscellaneous................... 31,816 557 24 5,976 - 38,373
Total revenues. 92,791 100,129 46,496 28,673 - 268,089
EXPENDITURES:
Local assistance grants:
Education 28,831 8,762 - 6,692 - 44,285
Public health 31,257 59,313 - 7,091 - 97,661
Public welfare... 5,118 17,280 - 741 - 23,139
Public safety.. 350 9,126 - 337 - 9,813
Transportation.. 151 60 - 9,215 - 9,426
Environment and recreation 6 2 - 492 - 500
Support and regulate busine: 883 159 - 651 - 1,693
General gOVErNMENT.........coeuiiiiriirieieieieeeeeeee e 1,659 470 - 859 - 2,988
State operations:
Personal service 10,489 707 - 249 - 11,445
Non-personal service 23,971 1,947 41 2,189 - 28,148
Pension contributions.... 1,723 118 - 40 - 1,881
Other fringe benefits.. 5,036 275 - 90 - 5,401
Capital construction - - - 6,558 - 6,558
Debt service, including payments on financing arrangements......... - - 10,168 105 - 10,273
Total expenditures 109,474 98,219 10,209 35,309 - 253,211
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures...........ccccceeuee. (16,683) 1,910 36,287 (6,636) - 14,878
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers from other funds.............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiee 43,557 1 434 11,247 (51,440) 3,799
Transfers to other funds (11,894) (2,036) (38,156) (7,724) 51,440 (8,370)
Financing arrangements issued... 467 125 - 3,396 - 3,988
Refunding debt issued.................. - - 899 - - 899
Payments to escrow agents for refundings... - - (972) - - (972)
Premiums/discounts on bonds issued - - 92 202 - 294
Net other financing sources (uses). 32,130 (1,910) (37,703) 7,121 - (362)
Net change in fund balance: 15,447 - (1,416) 485 - 14,516
Fund balances at April 1, 2022, as restated 27,465 - 7,957 15,848 - 51,270
Fund balances at March 31, 2023, $ 42,912 $ - $ 6,541 $ 16,333 $ - $ 65,786

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



STATE OF NEW YORK

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds and the sale of capital
assets is recorded as revenue in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation and amortization expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Depreciation and amortization expense, net of asset disposal $ (459)
Disposal of assets (269)
Purchase of assets 2,172

Payments for leases and subscription-based IT arrangements are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds, and an asset and long-term liabilities are established
in the statement of net position. In the statement of activities those expenditures are
reduced to liquidate the long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. The assets
are amortized over the term of the arrangement as amortization expense. In the current
period, these amounts are:

Arrangement payments 273
Amortization expense, net (297)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the statement of net position. Amortization of premiums and discounts
recorded only in the statement of net position as an adjustment of interest expense.
These amounts are the net effect of proceeds, amortization and repayments:

Repayment of principal $ 7,774
Amortization of Premiums/Discounts 1,015
Long-term debt proceeds (4,498)
Payments to escrow agents for refundings 972

Increase in revenues in the statement of activities that do not reduce current financial
resources and are not reported in the funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Local assistance grants $ (161)
State operations 889
Capital construction 3,065
Transfers to business-type activities 113

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

$ 14,516

1,444

(24)

5,263

180

3,906

$ 25,285

33
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Net Position
Enterprise Funds

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Unemployment
Insurance June 30, 2022
Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..............cccccoueeeiiiieiiiiieeiie e $ 1,060 $ 129 $ 3,352 $ 889 $ 5,430
INVESTMENES....oeie 93 - 563 167 823
Deposits with trustees and DASNY ........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiens - - 53 81 134
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles......................
L BASES. .ttt - - - 1 1
Due from Federal government..............ccccovviviiiiiiinininnennen. - 39 - - 39
Other......cooovvviiiiii, 389 2,356 1,357 500 4,602
Due from other funds.. - - 269 381 650
Other assets.................. 15 - 138 14 167
Total current assets.. 1,557 2,524 5,732 2,033 11,846
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents................coocoveiviiinennn. - - 180 4 184
Long-term investments............coooiiiiiiiii 843 - 1,565 334 2,742
Deposits with trustees............coveiiiiiii e, - - 1,393 288 1,681
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles......................
L BASES. .ttt - - - 6 6
Other. e - - 73 3 76
Due from other funds...........cooviiiiiiii - - 729 - 729
Net pension asset.............ccooeiiiiiinann. 4 - 661 - 665
Net other postemployment benefits asset - 49 36 85
Capital assets:
Land, construction in progress and artwork........................... - - 1,933 1,730 3,663
Buildings and equipment, net of depreciation.. - 11,671 3,232 14,903
Leases, net of amortization ..............ccoiiiiiiiiii 7 - 453 451 911
Intangible assets, net of amortization........................olll - - - 138 138
Other @SSEtS. . .uiiiiiiii e - - 101 - 101
Total noncurrent assets.........ccoceeviiiiiiiiiciiccrce s 854 - 18,808 6,222 25,884
Total @SSetS.....cuvuuieiiiiiiiii e 2,411 2,524 24,540 8,255 37,730
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
8 - 1,052 131 1,191
8 - 1,611 240 1,859
- - 92 117 209
- - 10 - 10
16 - 2,765 488 3,269
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...... ... 10 - 502 243 755
Accrued liabilities. ..........c.ooiiiii 437 191 1,404 580 2,612
Lottery prizes payable.............ooooiiiiiii 121 - - - 121
Pension contributions payable..................ooo - - 4 - 4
Duetoother funds............oooiiiiii 502 - 633 - 1,135
Interest payable........ ... - - 168 64 232
Unearned reVeNUES. ... ..o 10 - 382 205 597
Lease liability...... ..o 2 - 94 42 138
Collateralized borrowing........... . - - 6 - 6
Other financing arrangements... - - 351 76 427
Total current liabilities...........cc.cviiiiieiiiiiiicrec s 1,082 191 3,544 1,210 6,027

(Continued)



STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Net Position (cont'd)
Enterprise Funds

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Unemployment
Insurance June 30, 2022
Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued liabilities. .........c.oovvieii i - - 1,195 115 1,310
Due to Federal government.............cooveviiiiiiiiiiiiiineeen, - 8,298 - - 8,298
Lottery prizes payable.............ooooiiiiii 886 - - - 886
Pension contributions payable..................oo - - 6 - 6
Net pension liability. ... - - 6 620 626
Net other postemployment benefits liability............................ 66 - 12,294 1,542 13,902
Lease liability...........oouiiiiiiii 5 - 481 445 931
Collateralized bOrrOWINgG..........euieiiiiiiiiiiiecee s - - 2,036 - 2,036
Other financing arrangements..............ccoovviiniiiiiiiiiinenennen, - - 10,701 4,875 15,576
Total noncurrent liabilities. 957 8,298 26,719 7,597 43,571
Total liabilities 2,039 8,489 30,263 8,807 49,598
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Pension actiVities...........ooviiiii 13 - 2,018 83 2,114
Other postemployment benefits activities... 10 - 3,811 832 4,653
Deferred gain on refunding................... - - 147 6 153
O .. - - 46 - 46
Total deferred inflows of resources.............cccceeieveennn. 23 - 6,022 921 6,966

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets.............cccociiiiiiiiiiiins - - 1,107 581 1,688
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable purposes:

Instruction and departmental research............................. - - 319 - 319
Scholarships, fellowships and general education support..... - - 167 - 167
Investments........................ s - - - 52 52
General operations and other - - 180 - 180
Expendable purposes:
Instruction and departmental research............................. - - 238 - 238
Scholarships, fellowships and general education support..... - - 120 170 290
LOANS. ..o - - - 6 6
General operations and other...............ccocoveiviiiiiiniiennnn, - - 148 17 165
FULUPE PriZES. . .. 399 - - - 399
PeNSIONS. ..ottt - - 66 - 66
Unrestricted (defiCit)...........cooviiiiii (34) (5,965) (11,325) (1,811) (19,135)
Total net POSItioN...........cceeeiiiiiiieiienrerrre e e e e e eeees $ 365 $ (5,965) $ (8,980) $ (985) $ (15,565)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Position
Enterprise Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Unemployment
Insurance June 30, 2022
Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Ticket and video gaming sales.............cccceeeeeeeeeeeennnnn. $ 10,545 $ - $ - $ - $ 10,545
Employer contributions................... - 3,487 - - 3,487
Tuition and fees, Net..........oooiiiiiiii s - - 1,619 556 2,175
Government grants and contracts.................cooeveienanns - - 980 314 1,294
Private gifts, grants and contracts................c..c.ooienee. - - 457 99 556
Hospitals and Clinics...........cooiiiiiiiieeen, - - 2,901 - 2,901
Auxiliary enterprises.........cooeveiiiiiiiiie - - 685 3 688
OFNET. .t - 20 279 34 333
Total operating revenues.............ccccveiieiiniiiiinnenne. 10,545 3,507 6,921 1,006 21,979
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Benefits paid..........cooiiiii - 2,293 - - 2,293
Pz, e 4,924 - - - 4,924
Commissions and fees.........oooiiiiiiiiiii e 1,811 - - - 1,811
Educational and general..............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiini, - - 6,251 3,745 9,996
Hospitals and Clinics..........cccoiiiiiiiieee, - - 3,625 - 3,625
Auxiliary enterprises.........coveveiiiiiiiii - - 558 3 561
Instant game ticket costs.............oooiii 19 - - - 19
Depreciation and amortization... - - 792 306 1,098
Other.....cooooviiiiiiiiiiin, 123 12 41 - 176
Total operating expenses.. 6,877 2,305 11,267 4,054 24,503
Operating income (I0SS)........ccceruiiiiiniiirinineiieeans 3,668 1,202 (4,346) (3,048) (2,524)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings. ..........oooviiiiiiiiii 70 - 64 7 141
Other income (expenses), Net..........ccovvveiiiiiniienennen. 2 172 9) 120 285
Private gifts, grants, and contracts...................c..cocoeiil - - 134 1 135
Federal and city appropriations.............c.ccoeeiiiiniienians - - 22 81 103
Federal and State nonoperating grants......................... - 46 1,207 1,166 2,419
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments... (113) - (120) (19) (252)
Plant and equipment write-off................... - - (2) - (2)
INterest eXPense. ......ocu i i (41) - (462) (211) (714)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)................. (82) 218 834 1,145 2,115
Income (loss) before other revenues and transfers....... 3,586 1,420 (3,512) (1,903) (409)
TRANSFERS, CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS &
ADDITIONS TO PERMANENT ENDOWMENTS:
State transfers. ... ..o - - 4,005 1,506 5,511
Federal and State hospital support transfers.................. - - 960 - 960
Education aid transfer..............coocoiiiiiiii (3,686) - - - (3,686)
Capital transfers. ..o - - 25 739 764
Capital gifts and grants.............coooviiiiiiiii - - 97 - 97
Additions to permanent endowments..........................l - - 64 - 64
Increase (decrease) in net position.................ceeueene (100) 1,420 1,639 342 3,301
Net position - beginning of year, as restated.... 465 (7,385) (10,619) (1,327) (18,866)
Net position - end of year........c..cccceeeuereereneireeennenen, $ 365 $ (5,965) $ (8,980) $ (985) $ (15,565)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



STATE OF NEW YORK
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Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from:
ContribUtIONS. ...
Ticket sales

Payments for:
ClaiMS .
Prizes

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer to education..............ccoooiiiiiiiii
Temporary loan from Federal government...................coooviiiin.
Repayment of temporary loan from Federal government................
Transfers from governmental activities.........................

Federal and State nonoperating grants..
Private gifts and grants...
Giftsand grants.....................
Proceeds from short-term loans...
Repayment of short-term loans....
Direct loan receipts.................
Direct loan disbursements.....
Enterprise fund transactions..
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities....

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from capital debt...............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii
Capital transfers..................
Purchase of capital assets.................c..ooeuns
Principal payments on capital debt and leases....
Principal payments on refunded bonds...........
Interest payments on capital debt and leases...
Capital gifts and grants received..............c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiii
Bond issuance CoSt..............ovviviiiiiiiii
Deposits advanced from State
Deposits held by bond trustees and DASNY ............coocoviiiiiiinninnns
Increase in amounts held by DASNY ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiie
Transfer to/from foundations..................ccoooiiin,

Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities.

Unemployment
Insurance June 30, 2022
Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total

- $ 3,473 $ - $ - $ 3,473
10,540 - - - 10,540
- - 1,628 553 2,181

- - 983 20 1,003

- - 470 185 655

- - 2,840 - 2,840

- - 674 3 677

2 - 237 28 267
- (2,341) - - (2,341)
(5,035) - - - (5,035)
(1,847) - - - (1,847)
(115) - (8,913) (3,385) (12,413)
- - (517) (425) (942)
3,545 1,132 (2,598) (3,021) (942)
(3,890) - - - (3,890)
- 1,484 - - 1,484
- (2,768) - - (2,768)

- - 3,195 1,575 4,770

- 21 1,219 1,330 2,570

- 172 149 - 321

- - - 1 1

- - 20 - 20
- - (26) - (26)

- - 953 - 953
- - (953) - (953)

- - (55) 157 102
(3,890) (1,091) 4,502 3,063 2,584
- - 2,610 806 3,416

- - 23 739 762
- - (811) (170) (981)
- - (2,367) (263) (2,630)
- - - (587) (587)
- - (541) (289) (830)

- - 85 - 85
- - - (40) (40)

- - 154 - 154
- - (622) (183) (805)

- - - 32 32

- - - 6 6
- - (1,469) 51 (1,418)

(Continued)
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Cash Flows (cont'd)
Enterprise Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest, dividends and realized gains (loss) on investments............
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments.......................
Purchases of investments......................ooooe
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year...........................
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year.............c..ccoeiveiennnns

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNCoOMEe (I0SS). ...« vueneeiei e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by nonoperating and noncash activities:
Depreciation and amortization...................cocoi
Bad debt expense
Investment EXPENSE.........c.iiu i
Other nonoperating and noncash items
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, Net.........c.oiii i
Other @sSets. ........iiviiiiiii e
Lottery prizes payable
Unclaimed and future prizes.............coooeiiiiiiiiiiieeeens
Accrued liabilities. .......... ..o
Net pension liability .
Other postemployment benefits..............ccocoooiiii .
Unearned reVENUES. ..........ccuuiuiiieeie e
Other payables
Deferred OUtflOWS............ovuiiiiiiiii
Deferred iNflOWS. ..o,
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities.......................

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Amortization of investment discount
Noncash gifts. ..o

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Unemployment
Insurance June 30, 2022
Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total

47 - 128 7 182

98 - 428 991 1,517
(7) - (593) (1,036) (1,636)

138 - (37) (38) 63

(207) 41 398 55 287

1,267 88 3,134 838 5,327

$ 1,060 $ 129 $ 3,532 $ 893 $ 5,614
$ 3,668 $ 1,202 $ (4,346) $ (3,048) $ (2,524)
2 - 792 306 1,100

- - - 7 7
(41) - - - (41)

2 - 1,897 - 1,899

88 (34) 290 (249) 95
1) - (266) (26) (303)
(56) - - - (56)

(111) - - - (111)

8 (36) 214 (33) 153

4) - - (64) (68)

- - (1,176) 61 (1,115)

- - 3) 25 22

2 - - - 2

2 - - - (2)

$ 3,545 $ 1,132 $ (2,598) $ (3,021) $ (942)
(113) - (209) 12 (310)

23 - - - 23

- - 82 - 82




STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Pension (and Private
Other Employee Purpose Custodial
Benefit) Trusts Trusts Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and iNnvestments.............eeeveeieeeciiiieee e, $ 1,250 $ 40,331 $ 2,085
Retirement system investments:
Short-term investments............cccccceeeiieciiiiieie e, 4,019 - -
DomestiC qUItIES.........uvrveriieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiviviveveveeevenenenenenes 75,055 - -
Global fixed INCOME.......ccooiiiiiiieieeeeee e 48,479 - -
International equities.............eueveieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee 33,944 - -
Private equities..........cccccviiie 36,977 - -
Real estate and mortgage loans.............cccccoeeeeiiii 26,365 - -
Opportunistic/ARS investments...........cccccoeeviiiiieeeeeeiens 6,463 - -
Real @SSetS.......coovviiiiiie e 7,812 - -
Credit @SSets........cccuiviiiie e 9,411 - -
Securities lending collateral, invested................ccccceeenen 29,079 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts.............ccccvvvveeeeennnn. 1 - -
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Employer contributions............coevvvvveieieiiieiiieieieieieieieeeieees 196 - -
Member contributions..............coovvviiieiiiiiiiicee e, 14 - -
MeMDEr [0ANS.....ccoiiiieeee e 919 - -
Accrued interest and dividends..............ccccceeeviiiiei, 428 - -
Investment Sales............uuvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 459 - -
OthEr ...t 76 122 8
Due from other funds..........ccceeeeiiiiiiiiee e, - - 1
Other @SSetS.....uuiiiiiiiiciiiiiee e, 631 - -
Total @SSetS....cciiiiuiiiieiirr e e, 281,578 40,453 2,094
LIABILITIES:
Securities lending obligations.................cccccviiiiiiieeiiiece, 29,080 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts.............ccccceevvvirennnen. 1 - -
Accounts payable.........ccoooiiiiiii e - - 1
Accounts payable - investments..........cooooiiiiiiiiiii, 690 - -
Accounts payable - benefits...........ccccceeiiiiiiiiii 211 - -
Other liabilities. .........ccccvveieeee e, 838 122 -
Payable to local governments.............ceuvvvvvevvveveieieivinennnnnns - - 1,280
Total liabilities..........ccceererrrriiircccceerre e 30,820 122 1,281
NET POSITION:
Restricted for pension benefits and other purposes............ 250,758 - -
Individuals, organizations, and other governments............. - 40,331 813
Total net position.........ccceeveiieiiiiiei i $ 250,758 $ 40,331 $ 813

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Pension (and Private
Other Employee Purpose Custodial
Benefit) Trusts Trusts Funds
Additions:
Investment earnings:
Interest iNCOMe. ... 1,527 6 $ -
Dividend iNCOME........cuieiiii e 1,681 965 -
Securities lending iNnCome............ccoviiiiiiiiiiie 774 - -
Other iNCOME. ... e 1,418 7 -
Net decrease in the fair value of investments..................... (17,270) (8,160) -
Total investment earnings..........c.coeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiienieenns (11,870) (7,182) -
Less:
Securities lending eXpeNnSes.........ccveiiiiii i (729) - -
INvestMeNt EXPENSES. .......c.vviviiiiiiiieeeee e (932) (69) -
Net investment earnings..........c.cocoveiiiiiiiiiiiiiineeeens (13,531) (7,251) -
Contributions:
College SaVINGS. .. .o - 4,555 -
NY ABLE SaViNgS.....cuiiiieiiiieiie e - 11 -
EMPIOYErS. ... 7,819 - -
MEMDEIS. ... 657 - -
Interest on accounts receivable....................o 16 - -
Other. . 57 - -
Total contributions..........ccovviiiiiii i 8,549 4,566 -
Collection of sales tax for other governments............cccce..... - - 22,559
Collection of income tax for other governments................... - - 16,643
Collection of real estate tax for other governments.............. - - 4,095
MiSCellanN@oOuUS........cvuvieiiiiii i e e e neaens - - 2,509
Total additions............couiieiiniiniii (4,982) (2,685) 45,806
Deductions:
College aid redemptions............cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeans - 3,816 -
NY ABLE SAVINGS.....ucnieiiiieiiie e - 5 -
Payments of sales tax to local governments.............c.c.ccceeennee - - 22,559
Payments of income tax to other governments...............cccc...... - - 16,643
Payments of obligations on behalf of other governments.......... - - 4,095
Payments to beneficiaries...........ccccovvveiiiiini e - - 238
Benefits paid:
Retirement allowances.............ccocoviviiiiiiiiiiieee 15,174 - -
Death benefits..........cooiiiiii 311 - -
Other benefits.........coiiiiii 2,606 - -
Administrative eXpenses............ocoiiiiiiiiiiiii 208 - -
Other EXPENSES. .. .uiu e - - 1,772
Total deductions...........cccouiiniiniiiii s 18,299 3,821 45,307
Net increase (decrease) in net position...................... (23,281) (6,506) 499
Net position restricted for pension benefits and
other purposes at April 1, 2022.........cccovviiiiiereeeee, 274,039 46,837 314
Net position restricted for pension benefits and
other purposes at March 31, 2023.............cccciiieiiiiieenene. 250,758 40,331 $ 813

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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46 « Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the State of New York (State) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for governments. Such principles
are prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles in the United States of
America.

The basic financial statements have been prepared primarily from accounts maintained by the State
Comptroller. Additional data has been derived from reports prescribed by the State Comptroller and
prepared by State departments, agencies, public benefit corporations and other entities based on
independent or subsidiary accounting systems maintained by them.

a. Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements include all funds of the primary government, which is the State, as well
as the component units and other organizational entities determined to be included in the State’s
financial reporting entity.

The decision to include a component unit in the State’s reporting entity is based on several criteria,
including legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. A brief review of certain
entities included in the State’s reporting entity follows.

Blended Component Units — The Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation (TSFC) was created by
Part D3 of Chapter 62 of the Laws of 2003. TSFC was created as a subsidiary of the State of New York
Municipal Bond Bank Agency (MBBA). The directors of the MBBA are members of TSFC. TSFC is
governed by a seven-member board, consisting of the Chairman of the MBBA, the Secretary of State,
the Director of the Budget, the State Comptroller or his appointee, and three directors appointed by the
Governor. TSFC was created to issue long-term debt on behalf of the State to finance State operations
plus amounts necessary to fund a capital reserve fund and other issuance costs. TSFC is legally separate
but provides services exclusively to the State, and therefore is reported as part of the primary government
as a blended component unit.

Discretely Presented Component Units — The public benefit corporations (Corporations) listed in Note
14 were established by State statute with full corporate powers. The Governor, with the approval of the
State Senate, appoints most members of the board of directors of most Corporations and either the
Governor or the board of directors selects the chairman and chief executive officer. Corporations
generally submit annual reports to the Governor, the Legislature and the State Comptroller on their
operations and finances, accompanied by an independent auditors’ report thereon. Corporations also
submit to the Governor and the Legislature annual budget information on operations and capital
construction. The State Comptroller is empowered to conduct financial and management audits of the
Corporations. Financial assistance was provided in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 to certain
Corporations, and such assistance is expected to be required in future years. Accordingly, the fiscal
condition of the State is related to the fiscal stability of the Corporations. Since the Corporations are
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legally separate organizations for which the Governor and the Legislature are financially accountable,
they are discretely presented as component units of the State.

Related Organizations and Joint Ventures — The State’s officials are also responsible for appointing
the members of the boards of various related organizations (e.g., the Nassau County Interim Finance
Authority), but the State’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the
appointments. As discussed in more detail in Note 15, the State participates in several joint ventures
but only reports on one due to materiality considerations.

b. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effects of interfund activity within governmental and business-
type activities have been eliminated from these statements. However, balances due and resource flows
between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise,
the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which
the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Certain indirect costs have been allocated and are reported as direct
program expenses of individual functions or programs. Program revenues include: charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment; grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
requirements of a particular function or segment; and capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Taxes and other items not included as program revenues are reported as general revenues, as
required.

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds, Enterprise Funds and Fiduciary
Funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual Governmental Funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

c¢. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the Enterprise Funds, the Component Units and the
Fiduciary Funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year in which they are earned. Grants, entitlements and donations are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are collected within the current
period or collectible within 12 months of the end of the current fiscal period. Tax revenues are recorded
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by the State as taxpayers earn income (personal income, general business and other taxes), as sales are
made (consumption and use taxes), and as the taxable event occurs (miscellaneous taxes), net of
estimated overpayments (refunds). Receivables not expected to be collected within the next 12 months
are recorded as deferred inflows of resources. Expenditures and related liabilities are generally recorded
in the accounting period the liability is incurred, to the extent it is expected to be paid within the next
12 months, with the exception of items covered by GASB Interpretation 6 (GASBI 6), Recognition and
Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements.
GASBI 6 modified the recognition criteria of certain expenditures and liabilities. GASBI 6 requires that
expenditures and liabilities such as debt service, leases, subscription-based IT arrangements,
compensated absences, and claims and judgments be recorded in the governmental fund statements only
when they mature or become due for payment within the period. Expenditure-driven grants are
recognized as revenues when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant
requirements have been met and amounts are considered available. Other nonexchange grants and
subsidies, such as local assistance grants and public benefit corporation subsidies, are recognized as
expenditures when all requirements of the grant and/or subsidy have been satisfied.

The State reports the following major and other governmental funds:

General Fund — is the primary operating fund of the State and is used to account for all financial
transactions not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Federal Special Revenue Fund — accounts for federal grants received by the State that are
earmarked for specific programs. In order to comply with federal accounting and reporting
requirements, certain federal grants are accounted for in a number of accounts that are combined
and reported as the Federal Special Revenue Fund. Accounts that are combined include the Federal
USDA-Food and Nutrition Services Account (Federal USDA-FNS), the Federal Health and Human
Services Account (Federal DHHS), the Federal Education Account, the Federal Operating Grants
Account, the Unemployment Insurance Administration Account, the Unemployment Insurance
Occupational Training Account and the Federal Employment and Training Grants Account.

General Debt Service Fund — accounts for the payment of principal and interest on the State’s
general obligation debt, and payments on other debt and contractual obligations.

Other Governmental Funds — is a summarization of all the nonmajor governmental funds.

The governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation between the fund statements and
the government-wide statements. Differences that make a reconciliation necessary include the
differences in measurement focus and basis of accounting between the statements. The Statement of
Activities reflects the net costs of each major function of State operations, which differs from the
presentation of expenditures in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
— Governmental Funds, which matches the State’s budgetary (financial plan) presentation.

The State reports the following major Enterprise Funds:

Lottery Fund — accounts for lottery revenues that are earmarked for education assistance to local
school districts, lottery administrative costs of the New York State Gaming Commission, and
payment of lottery prizes.

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Fund (UIB Fund) — accounts for unemployment contributions
from employers that are utilized for the payment of unemployment compensation benefits.
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SUNY Fund — accounts for the operations of the State University of New York (SUNY).
Information reported in this fund is obtained from the audited financial statements prepared by
SUNY for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

CUNY Fund — accounts for the operations of the City University of New York (CUNY) Senior
Colleges. Information reported in this fund is obtained from the audited financial statements of the
Senior Colleges prepared by CUNY for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Enterprise Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with an Enterprise Fund’s
principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or custodial capacity for others, which
therefore cannot be used to support the government’s own programs. The types of Fiduciary Funds
maintained by the State consist of the following:

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trusts — account for the activities of the New York State
and Local Retirement System and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund, for the purpose of
accumulating resources for pension benefit payments to qualified public employees and
postemployment benefits (OPEB), such as retiree health benefits for retired state employees and
their dependents.

Private Purpose Trust Funds — account for resources held in trust to facilitate savings for higher
education expenses and disability-related expenses, pursuant to New York’s 529 College Savings
and New York ABLE Savings programs, respectively. There is no requirement that any portion of
these resources be preserved as capital. Information reported for the savings programs is obtained
from the audited financial statements prepared by the programs for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2022.

Custodial Funds —report fiduciary activities that are not required to be reported in another fiduciary
fund type. This includes funds that are held for the benefit of individuals, organizations, or other
governments that are not part of the State’s reporting entity, such as sales taxes and NYC income
and real estate taxes collected on behalf of other governments.

Additionally, the State includes discretely presented component units:

Component Units — the public benefit corporations’ financial statements, except for the State
Insurance Fund, are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and are accounted
for on the accrual basis of accounting. The State Insurance Fund prepares financial statements in
conformity with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the New York State Department of
Financial Services. The Department of Financial Services recognizes only New York Statutory
Accounting Practices for determining and reporting the financial condition and results of operations
of an insurance company and for determining its solvency under New York State Insurance Law.
The impact of variances from GAAP is not material to the Corporations in total.

d. Cash and Investments

Cash balances of funds held in the State Treasury are commingled in a general checking account and
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several special purpose bank accounts. The available cash balance in the general checking account
beyond immediate need is pooled for short-term investment purposes. The balances pooled are limited
to legally stipulated investments, which are reported at cost, including accrued interest, which
approximates fair value. Non-interest-bearing compensating balances of $13 million are included in
cash and investments at March 31, 2023. At various times during the year, compensating balances could
be substantially higher. Cash balances not held in the State Treasury and controlled by various State
officials are generally deposited in interest-bearing accounts or other legally stipulated investments.
Additional information about the State’s cash and investments is provided in Note 2.

Generally, for purposes of reporting cash flows, cash includes cash and cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are liquid assets with maturities of 90 days or less. The Enterprise Funds’ Statement of Cash
Flows use the direct method of reporting cash flows.

All investments with a maturity of more than one year are recorded on the Statement of Net Position
and the balance sheet at fair value and all investment income, including changes in the fair value of
investments, is reported as revenue. Fair values were determined using market values at the applicable
entities’ year-end. Investments of the short-term investment pool have a maturity of one year or less
and are recorded at cost.

e. Receivables

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts, which are determined
based upon past collection experience and current economic conditions. The lease category represents
the amounts owed to the State for future payments the State will receive due to lease agreements in
effect at fiscal year-end. The Due from federal government category represents amounts owed to the
State to reimburse it for expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs. Loans and notes
receivable represents amounts due in accordance with various housing and clean water and drinking
water financing agreements. The Other receivables category represents amounts owed to the State,
including Medicaid drug rebates, financial service settlements, tobacco settlements, patient fees of
SUNY and Health Department hospitals and various mental hygiene facilities, student loans, and lottery
ticket sales. Additional information about receivables is provided in Note 4.

f. Internal Balances

All outstanding balances between funds at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other
funds” on the fund financial statements. Generally, the effects of interfund activity within the
governmental funds have been removed. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.” For the most part, the remaining difference is a result of SUNY and CUNY having
a different fiscal year than the State.

g. Other Assets

Other assets in governmental activities and business-type activities include payments for costs
applicable to future accounting periods, and other types of assets not reported on other lines. Inventories
reported by the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when they are purchased. Inventories
reported by the Enterprise Funds are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.
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In response to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the State received approximately $46 million in
donations of goods and services. At March 31,2023, $13 million of donated goods remain in inventory.
These donations included items such as Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), personal hygiene
products and cleaning products. Donated services were provided by licensed medical professionals
registered in the Roll Up Your Sleeves and ServNY program, administered by the Department of Health,
throughout the pandemic relief effort.

h. Capital Assets (excluding lease and subscription-based I'T arrangement assets)

Capital assets (excluding lease and subscription-based IT arrangement assets) are reported in
the Statement of Net Position for government-wide and enterprise funds, and all capital assets are
further disclosed in Note 5. Capital assets include land in urban centers, rural areas and forest
preserves; land improvements; land preparation for roads; buildings which house State offices,
correctional facilities, hospitals and educational facilities; equipment used in construction work,
hospitals, offices, etc.; construction in progress; intangible assets (i.e., easements and internally
generated software); and infrastructure assets such as roads and bridges. Capital assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost, and donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition

value at the date of donation.
For governmental activities, equipment that has a cost in excess of $40,000 at the date of acquisition

and has an expected useful life of two or more years is capitalized. All initial building costs and building
improvements and land and land improvements in excess of $100,000 are capitalized. Infrastructure
assets in excess of $1 million are also capitalized. Software is capitalized when the costs exceed $1
million.

The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value or extend lives of assets
materially are not capitalized, but are reported as expenses in the year incurred. All maintenance and
preservation costs relating to roads and bridges are expensed in the year incurred and not capitalized.
Expenses relating to roads and bridges that add to the capacity and efficiency of the road and bridge
networks are capitalized rather than expensed.

Capital assets in business-type activities and Enterprise Funds are from SUNY and CUNY. These
capital assets are stated at cost, or in the case of gifts, acquisition value at the date of receipt. SUNY
capitalizes building renovations and additions costing over $100,000, equipment items with a unit cost
of $5,000 or more, and intangible assets, including internally generated computer software, costing
$1 million or more. CUNY capitalizes renovations and improvements that significantly increase the
value or extend the useful lives of the structures and equipment with a cost of more than $5,000 and
useful lives of two or more years. CUNY reports intangible assets with a unit cost of more than $5,000.

Buildings, land improvements, equipment and intangible assets of the primary government are
depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Assets (Years) (Years)
Buildings and building improvements...... 12-60 2-50
Equipment and vehicles..........c.ccccveeienen, 4-30 2-50
Land improvements .........ccccceecveeveeenieennen, 12-30 2-50
Intangibles — easements ..........c.ccceeeueennen, 20 2-50

Intangibles — computer software............... 10-12 2-50
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Land preparation reflects the costs of preparing the land for the construction of roads. Since land
preparation has an indefinite life, associated costs are not depreciated.

The State has elected to use the modified approach for reporting and accounting for its highways and
bridges, which are reported by the State Department of Transportation (DOT). The modified approach
requires the State to commit to preserving and maintaining these infrastructure assets at levels
established by DOT. No depreciation expense is reported for these assets, and no amounts are
capitalized in connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of such assets, unless the
improvements also increase their capacity or efficiency. DOT maintains an inventory of these assets
and performs periodic condition assessments to ensure that the predetermined condition level is
maintained. The Required Supplementary Information (RSI) contains additional information regarding
infrastructure reported using the modified approach.

Capital asset reporting does not include historical artifacts, artwork and collections that are maintained
by various State agencies, the State Archives, the State Museum and the State Library with the exception
of SUNY and CUNY. These items are protected, preserved, and held for public exhibition and
educational purposes, and the proceeds from any sale of such items are used to acquire new items for
the collection. SUNY reports all artwork, historical treasures and library books. CUNY reports artwork,
historical treasures and library books with a unit cost of more than $5,000.

i. Leases (Lessee and Lessor) and Similar Subscription-Based Information Technology (IT)
Arrangements

As Lessee

The State is a lessee for various noncancellable leases. The State also has noncancellable subscription-
based IT arrangements for the right-to-use information technology and hardware. Both are reported in
the Statement of Net Position for government-wide and enterprise funds and further disclosed in Note
5.

Short-term Leases and Subscription-Based IT Arrangements

For leases and subscription-based IT arrangements with a maximum possible term of 12 months or less
at commencement, the State recognizes an expense/expenditure based on the provisions of the lease
contract or subscription-based IT arrangement, respectively.

Leases and Subscription-Based IT Arrangements other than short-term

For all other leases and subscription-based IT arrangements, the State recognizes a lease or subscription-
based IT liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset or subscription-based IT asset, respectively.

Measurement of Lease Amounts

At lease commencement, the State initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments
expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal
portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease
liability, less lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs ancillary to placing the underlying asset into service, less any lease incentives received at or before
the lease commencement date. The lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. If the State is reasonably certain of exercising a
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purchase option contained in a lease, the lease asset will be amortized over the useful life of the
underlying asset.

Measurement of Subscription-Based IT Amounts

At subscription commencement, the State initially measures the subscription-based IT liability at the
present value of payments expected to be made during the subscription term. Subsequently, the
subscription-based IT liability is reduced by the principal portion of subscription payments made. The
subscription-based IT asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the subscription-based IT
liability, less subscription payments made at or before the subscription commencement date, less any
vendor incentives received at or before the subscription commencement date, plus the capitalizable
implementation costs. The subscription-based IT arrangement asset is amortized on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the subscription term or the useful life of the underlying hardware or software.

To measure the lease or subscription-based IT arrangement liability, the State generally uses its
estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate unless the lease contract or subscription-based
IT arrangement contains an explicit rate. The State’s incremental borrowing rate is based on the rate of
interest it would need to pay if it issued general obligation bonds, or similar, to borrow an amount equal
to the payments under similar terms at the commencement or remeasurement date. The term includes
the noncancellable period, plus any additional periods covered by an option to extend for which it is
reasonably certain to be exercised, or by an option to terminate for which it is reasonably certain not to
be exercised. Periods in which both the State and the lessor/vendor have a unilateral option to terminate
(or if both parties must agree to extend) are excluded from the lease or subscription term. The State
evaluates payments to determine if they should be included in the measurement of the lease and
subscription-based IT liabilities, including those payments that require a determination of whether they
are reasonably certain to be made. The State monitors lease and subscription-based IT arrangements for
possible changes that may require remeasurement if they could materially affect the amount of the
liability and related asset that should be recognized.

As Lessor
The State is also a lessor for various noncancelable leases.
Short-term Leases

For leases with a maximum possible term of 12 months or less at commencement, the State recognizes
revenue based on the provisions of the lease contract.

Leases other than short-term

For all other leases, the State initially recognizes a lease receivable at the present value of lease payments
expected to be received during the lease term. It also recognizes a deferred inflow of resources at the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease receivable, adjusted for any lease payments received
prior to the commencement of the lease term.

Lease receivables and the related deferred inflows of resources are reported in the accompanying
financial statements as further disclosed in Note 4 and Note 1j, respectively.

Measurement of Lease Amounts

Similar to lessee arrangements, at the commencement of the lease, the State initially measures the lease
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receivable at the present value of lease payments expected to be received from lessees over the
lease term. The estimated payments are discounted using the State’s estimated incremental
borrowing rate. Lease receivables are subsequently reduced by the principal portion of lease payments
received.

The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease
receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Deferred
lease inflows are recognized as revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

j- Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are defined as a consumption of net assets by the government that
is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are defined as an acquisition
of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows
of resources increase net position, similar to assets, and deferred inflows of resources decrease net
position, similar to liabilities.

The components of the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the
primary government at March 31, 2023 are as follows (amounts in millions):

Governmental  Business-Type Primary

Activities Activities Government

Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension activities .......cooevveveeeiieeieieeeeee, $ 8,168 $ 1,191 $ 9,359
Other postemployment benefits activities ... 6,371 1,859 8,230
Asset retirement obligation......................... 44 - 44
Loss on refunding of debt.............ccvvneeee. 156 209 365
Other ..o - 10 10
Total deferred outflows of resources...... $ 14,739 § 3,269 $ 18,008

Deferred inflows of resources:

Pension activities ......ooeeeeveeveeeeeiiviiiiieeeeeeenn, $ 12,214  §$ 2,114  $ 14,328
Other postemployment benefits activities ... 8,235 4,653 12,888
LRSS weeeeiieeiieeiee e 30 6 36
Deferred gain on refunding..............c........... 322 147 469
Federal grants..........ccccoeeeviieeciieciieeceeee, 15 - 15
Other ...oooeiiieeecee e - 46 46

Total deferred inflows of resources........ $ 20,816 $ 6,966 $ 27,782
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The components of the deferred inflows of resources related to the governmental funds at March 31,
2023 are as follows (amounts in millions):

Federal General Other Total
Special Debt Governmental Governmental

General Revenue Service Funds Funds

Deferred inflows of resources:

Taxes considered unavailable... $§ 796 § - $ 411 $ 24 $ 1,231
Medicaid receivables................ 102 270 - - 372
Medicaid liabilities.................... - 35 - - 35
Financial settlements................ 3 - - 959 962
Oil spill...eeeeiieiiiiieiieies - - - 75 75
Miscellaneous agency............... 32 - - 288 320
Federal grants ...........cccccvenenne - 15 - - 15
Leases...ccoovveeeciiieeciieeeeee, 32 - - - 32
ENCON* ..o, - - - 6 6
Public health/patient fees.......... - - - 3 3
Other.....coovveieeeiieeeeeee, 6 - - - 6
Total....eeeeererecncnnccrcnnecscnnecnens $ 971 § 320 § 411 S 1,355 § 3,057

* State Department of Environmental Conservation
k. Long-Term Obligations

In the Government-wide Statement of Net Position and in the Enterprise Funds Statement of Net
Position, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. For governmental
activities, bond premiums and discounts are reported as a component of the related bonds payable, and
gains and losses on refunding are reported as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of
resources. Both are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. For business-
type activities, SUNY losses on refunding are reported as deferred outflows of resources and amortized
over the life of the related debt. CUNY bond premiums and discounts are reported as a component of
the related bonds payable, and gains and losses on refunding are reported as deferred inflows of
resources or deferred outflows of resources. Both are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
straight-line method. Issuance costs are reported as an expense in the period incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued and the present
value of the liability related to leases and subscription-based IT arrangements are reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as non-personal service expenditures in the period
incurred.

I. Compensated Absences

The estimated vacation leave liability for State employees at March 31, 2023 is $1.1 billion, which
represents a decrease of $126 million from the prior year. State employees accrue vacation leave based
primarily on the number of years employed up to a maximum rate of 25 days per year, but may
accumulate no more than a maximum of 40 days.
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SUNY employees accrue vacation leave based primarily on the number of years employed up to a
maximum rate of 21 days per year and may accumulate no more than a maximum of 40 days. CUNY
employees accrue vacation leave based upon the number of years employed, with the maximum
accumulation generally ranging from 45 to 50 days. The liability for vacation leave approximated
$353 million and $204 million for SUNY and CUNY, respectively, at June 30, 2022.

CUNY employees may receive payments of up to 50 percent of the value of their accumulated sick leave
as of the date of retirement from CUNY. CUNY reported a liability of $72 million for sick leave credits
in other postemployment benefits liabilities at June 30, 2022.

Lottery’s employees, upon termination, may receive vacation pay benefits up to a maximum of 30 days.
Lottery recognizes employees’ compensated absence benefits when earned. The liability for employees’
compensated absences was approximately $1 million as of March 31, 2023.

m. Accounting for Other Financing Arrangements

The construction of certain State office buildings, campus facilities and other public facilities has been
financed through bonds and notes issued by public benefit corporations pursuant to financing
arrangements with the State. The State has also entered into financing arrangements with public benefit
corporations that have issued bonds to finance past State budgetary deficits and grants to local
governments for both capital and operating purposes (Note 7).

These financing arrangements, which the State will repay over the duration of the agreements, constitute
long-term liabilities. The amount included in obligations under other financing arrangements consists
of total future principal payments and equals the outstanding balance of the related bonds and notes.

n. State Lottery

The State Lottery is accounted for as an Enterprise Fund. The revenues, administrative costs, aid to
education and expenses for amounts allocated to prizes are reported, and uncollected ticket sales at
March 31, 2023 are accrued. Prize monies to meet long-term prize payments are invested in United
States government-backed obligations, New York City Transitional Finance Authority municipal bonds
and U.S. Agency for International Development (AID) bonds, and are recorded at fair value. Lottery
prize liabilities are recorded at a discounted value equivalent to the related investments. At March 31,
2023, the prize liabilities of approximately $1.3 billion were reported at a discounted value of
approximately $1 billion (at interest rates ranging from 0.08 percent to 7.58 percent).

0. Net Position

On the government-wide, enterprise fund, component unit and fiduciary fund financial statements, “Net
Position” is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources.

Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either:

a. Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws or
regulations of other governments; or

b. Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.



State of New York « 57

Enabling legislation, which restricts net position, authorizes the State to assess, levy, charge or otherwise
mandate payment of resources and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be
used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceable requirement is
one that an outside party (such as citizens, public interest groups or the judiciary) can compel the
government to honor. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
State’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

At March 31, 2023, the Governmental Activities reported restricted net position of $9 billion due to
restrictions externally imposed by creditors or enabling legislation. This included $7.2 billion restricted
for debt service payments from various capital reserve funds, $1.1 billion restricted for health and patient
care, $195 million restricted for economic development, housing and transportation, $153 million
restricted for insurance and administrative requirements, $20 million restricted for environmental
projects and energy programs, $5 million restricted for education and research programs, and $283
million restricted for other purposes (details of fund balance classification are available in Note 1.p).

The following terms, if applicable for the fiscal year, are used in the reporting of net position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, and
leases, net of accumulated amortization and depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings and liabilities that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Debt Service

Net position restricted for the payment of future debt service payments from various capital
reserve funds.

Health and Patient Care

Net position restricted for funding of medicaid and health care delivery programs, and patient
care.

Education and research programs

Net position restricted for funding of various education programs for instruction, scholarships,
operations, and various types of research initiatives.

Environmental Projects and Energy Programs
Net position restricted for funding of various environmental projects and energy programs.
Economic Development, Housing and Transportation

Net position restricted for funding of various economic development, housing-related and
transportation-related programs.

Insurance and Administrative Requirements

Net position restricted for funding certain insurance payments and administrative costs.
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Unemployment Benefits

Net position restricted for the payment of unemployment benefits.

Future Lottery Prizes

Net position restricted for future lottery prize payments.

Pensions

Net position restricted for pension payments.

Other Government Programs

Net position restricted for the funding of legal and law enforcement programs, various gifts,
grants or bequests received by the State, and other legally restricted programs.

Unrestricted

Unrestricted net position (deficit) is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net
investment in capital assets or the restricted components of net position described above.

p.- Fund Balance

On governmental fund financial statements, “Fund Balance” is the difference between (a) fund assets
and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.

Fund Balance Hierarchy

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in the following classifications, which describe
the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts in the funds can be
spent:

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they either: (a)
are not in spendable form; or (b) are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed on the use of resources that are either: (a)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the State’s highest level of decision-making authority, which
includes establishment of laws of the State, and by bills passed by the Legislature and
approved by the Governor, or any contracts approved by authorized State officials that are
known to have their liability satisfied with the current fund balance. Commitments may be
changed or lifted only by the State’s highest level of decision-making authority taking the
same formal action that originally imposed the constraint.

Assigned fund balances are constrained by the intent to use amounts for specific purposes,
but are neither restricted nor committed. The Director of the Budget is authorized to assign
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amounts to a specific purpose through the approval of budget certificates as required by
statute.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. Other
governmental funds cannot report a positive unassigned fund balance but can report negative
unassigned fund balance if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts
restricted or committed to those purposes.

For classification of governmental fund balances, the State considers expenditures to be made
from restricted resources first, then in the following order: committed, assigned, and unassigned
resources.

Reserve Accounts
Tax Stabilization Reserve Account

The authority for establishing the Tax Stabilization Reserve Account is in State Finance Law
Section 92. The account was established in 1984.

At the close of each fiscal year, any surplus funds up to 0.2 percent of 1 percent of the “norm”
shall be transferred to the Tax Stabilization Reserve Account, which shall not cumulatively
exceed 2 percent of the “norm.” The norm is the aggregate amount disbursed from the State
Purposes Account during the fiscal year.

In any given fiscal year, when receipts fall below the norm, funds shall be transferred from the
Tax Stabilization Reserve Account to the State Purposes Account, in an amount equal to the
difference between the norm and the receipts, to the extent that funds are available in the Tax
Stabilization Reserve Account. Money in the Tax Stabilization Reserve Account may be
temporarily loaned to the State Purposes Account during the year in anticipation of the receipt
of revenues, but these funds must be repaid within the same fiscal year.

The balance in the Tax Stabilization Reserve Account at March 31, 2023 is $1.6 billion, and is
included in the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund. (See General Fund - Combining
Schedule of Balance Sheet Accounts in the Other Supplementary Information section).

Rainy Day Reserve Account

The authority for establishing the Rainy Day Reserve Account is in State Finance Law
Section 92-cc. The account was established in 2007.

Funds deposited to this account are transferred from the State Purposes Account. The maximum
balance in this account shall not exceed 25 percent of the aggregate amount projected to be
disbursed from the General Fund during the then current fiscal year.

The amounts in this account can be spent for two reasons:

a. In the event of an economic downturn, as evidenced by a composite index of business
cycle indicators prepared by the Commissioner of Labor. If the index declines for five
consecutive months, the Commissioner of Labor shall notify the Governor, the Speaker
of the Assembly, the Temporary President of the Senate and the minority leaders of the
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Assembly and the Senate. Upon such notification, the Director of the Budget may
authorize the State Comptroller to transfer funds from the Rainy Day Reserve Account
to the State Purposes Account.

b. A catastrophic event, e.g., the need to repel invasion, suppress insurrection, defend the
State in war, or to respond to any other emergency resulting from a disaster, including
but not limited to a disaster caused by an act of terrorism.

The balance in the Rainy Day Reserve Account at March 31, 2023 is $4.6 billion, and is included
in the committed fund balance of the General Fund (See General Fund - Combining Schedule of
Balance Sheet Accounts in the Other Supplementary Information section).

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
future expenditures are established in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds. These amounts generally will become
liabilities in future periods.

Significant encumbrances at March 31, 2023 include (amounts in millions):

Fund Type Amount

General......ooooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 1,386
Federal Special Revenue*................... 1,626
Other Special Revenue ....................... 159
Federal Capital Projects*.................... 4,674
Other Capital Projects...........ccceeeuvnnne. 7,637

*Spending in federal funds is typically reimbursed by the federal government
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Fund Balances

Fund balances at March 31, 2023 are as follows (amounts in millions):

Major Funds
Federal General Other
General Special Debt Governmental
Fund Revenue Service Funds
Restricted for:
Education...........cccoeveeeeerenennn, $ - $ - $ - $ 5
Public health...............ccccooenl, 209 - - 1
Health care initiatives................. - - - 564
Environment and recreation....... - - - 29
Transportation ............ccceeeeveennne, - - - 220
Workers’ Compensation............. 153 - - -
General administration............... - - - 267
Debt SErvice.....uuvvvvveivvviierrennnnnn, - - 6,412 151
Capital purposes........cccceeeveenn, - - - 7
Committed to:
Education..........ccccoeeeevieeeennnns, 13 - - 417
Public health..............cccccoooeenl, - - - 159
Mental hygiene............cceeeuvennnne, 5 - - -
Health care initiatives................. - - - 2,061
Environment and recreation....... 3 - - 215
Public safety ........cccceveveeinnennn, - - - 912
Transportation ...........cccceeeeveenn, - - - 1,309
Economic development.............. - - - 33
General administration............... - - - 550
Debt service.......cooeeeeeiiieeeennnens, - - 129 468
Capital purposes........cccceeeeveenn, - - - 6,724
Fund reserves ......cccccovvveevvvvnnnn., 38,274 - - -
Assigned to:
Education...........ccccoeeeevieeeennnns, 245 - - 530
Public health............ccooevunnnnnnnnn, 2,394 - - -
Mental hygiene...........ccceeeuuennnne, 5 - - -
Public welfare...........ccceeeennnnns, 18 - - -
Environment and recreation....... 11 - - 19
Public safety ........cccoeveveeennennn, 194 - - -
Workers’ Compensation............. - - - 3,093
Insurance ........cccceeveeeeeeccnninnnnns, - - - 565
General administration............... 1,241 - - -
Support and regulate business... 147 - - -
Unassigned ........ccoeveeeecarecsencssnnne. - - - (1,966)

Total fund balance.................. $ 42912 § - $ 6541 § 16,333
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q. Pensions

The State is the largest participating employer of the New York State and Local Retirement System
(System), consisting of the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) and the
New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS), which are cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, defined benefit pension plans. Consequently, the State has recorded the largest proportionate
share of the net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows from pension activities,
which are reflected in the reported amounts on the balance sheet. For purposes of determining net
pension liability and other pension-related amounts, information about the fiduciary net position of ERS
and PFRS and additions to and deductions from the fiduciary net position of ERS and PFRS have been
determined on the same basis reported by the System.

r. Postemployment Benefits

Other postemployment costs are measured and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting in the
government-wide and enterprise funds financial statements (Note 13). In addition to providing pension
benefits, the State is statutorily required to provide health insurance coverage and survivor benefits for
retired employees and their survivors. Postemployment benefits other than pensions are recognized on
an actuarially determined basis as employees earn benefits that are expected to be used in the future.
Substantially all of the State’s employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal
retirement age while working for the State. Health care benefits are provided through plans whose
premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The cost of providing postemployment benefits
is shared between the State and the retired employee. The amounts earned include employee sick leave
credits expected to be used to pay for a share of post-retirement health insurance. The State, including
the Lottery, recognizes the cost of providing health insurance by recording its share of insurance
premiums as an expenditure in the respective fund in the year paid. Additionally, the survivor’s benefit
program provides for a death benefit to be paid by the State to a retiree’s designated beneficiary.

The State has an established trust for the employees of the primary government, excluding SUNY
Construction Fund, SUNY Hospitals, and CUNY, to cover future other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) obligations that is separate from the State and the assets of which are currently held in the short-
term investment pool (STIP), in joint custody between the State Comptroller and the Commissioner of
the Department of Civil Service for the exclusive benefit of the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (the
OPEB Trust) beneficiaries. All OPEB Trust assets are irrevocably dedicated to, and are used for the
exclusive purpose of, making payments of benefits to or for the benefit of the OPEB Plan and the OPEB
Trust and will not be available to any creditors of the State. The OPEB Trust does not issue a stand-
alone financial report and its financial statements are reported as a fiduciary fund in the State’s financial
report.

s. Deficit Fund Balances

As of March 31, 2023, a $6.7 billion fund deficit was reported in the General Fund Local Assistance
Account, a $195 million fund deficit was reported in the General Fund State Purposes Account, and a
fund deficit of $333 million was reported in the Health Insurance Program Account. In addition, Capital
Projects Funds reported fund deficits in the Mental Hygiene Facilities Capital Improvement Fund ($646
million), the Housing Program Fund ($514 million), Correctional Facilities Capital Improvement Fund
($279 million), the Hazardous Waste Remedial Fund ($186 million), and Miscellaneous Funds ($81
million). The deficits related to the Capital Projects Funds are the result of differences in cash flow
timing relating to the reimbursement of capital project costs and contractual commitments from bond
proceeds and are routinely resolved during subsequent fiscal years.
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t. Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the basic financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

u. Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncements and Immaterial Corrections

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the State adopted the following new accounting standards
as issued by GASB.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASBS 87). The objective of GASBS 87 is to establish a single
model for lease accounting and financial reporting for governments based on the foundational principle
that leases are financings of the right-to-use an underlying nonfinancial asset. Lessees recognize a lease
liability and a lease asset, and a lessor recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources,
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of lease activity information. The impact of the
implementation of this standard can be found in the Statement of Net Position and Notes 4, 5, 7 and 8.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations (GASBS 91). GASBS 91 by clarifying the existing
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the
issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and
voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations;
and improving required note disclosures. The implementation of this standard had an impact on
certain Discretely Presented Component Unit’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, par. 6 and 7 (GASBS 92). GASBS 92, paragraph 6 states
how intra-entity transfers of assets are reported between a governmental employer and a component unit
defined benefit pension or defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan. GASBS 92,
paragraph 7 provides additional guidance for reporting assets accumulated for defined benefits provided
through plans that are not administered through trusts that meet specified criteria. The remaining
paragraphs of GASBS 92 were implemented in prior years or had no impact to the financial statements
or notes.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (GASBS 96).
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for governments. A SBITA is a contract conveying the
right-to-use a vendor’s information technology software, sometimes in combination with a tangible
underlying capital asset, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. A subscription liability and an
intangible asset is recognized in the financial statements. The impact of the implementation of this
standard can be found in the Statement of Net Position and Notes 5, 7 and 8.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, par. 6-9 (GASBS 97). This
statement objective is to increase the consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary
component units that are established under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 457 deferred
compensation plans that meet the definition of a pension plan or other benefits of those plans. The
implementation of this standard did not have an impact on the financial statements.
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GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022 par. 26-32 (GASBS 99). GASBS 99, paragraph 26-32 will
improve the consistency of the requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for
SNAP distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging
governments, clarification of certain provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology updates
related to Statement 53 and Statement 63 are effective upon issuance. Implementation of the remainder
of GASBS 99 is planned for State fiscal year 2024 and 2025. The implementation of this standard did
not have an impact on the financial statements.

The effect on beginning net position in governmental activities, business-type activities and discretely
presented component units of the State relating to the implementation of new accounting
pronouncements and immaterial corrections were as follows (amounts in millions):

Net Position at Effect of new Net Position at
March 31, 2022, accounting April 1, 2022,
as previously  pronouncements Immaterial as revised
published (restatements) corrections (restated)
Governmental Activities:
General Fund
Workers” Compensation...................... $ 4351 § - $ (4,186) $ 165
Business-Type Activities/Enterprise
Funds:
SUNY ittt $ (10,615) $ 4 $ - $ (10,619)
Discretely Presented Component
Units:
New York State Thruway Authority ... $ 643 $ 1 $ - $ 644
Metropolitan Transportation
AUthOTItY...ooviiiieieieieic s 9,143 2) - 9,141
Dormitory Authority of the State of
New YOrK ...coovieeeiiiiciiciieeiee e, 86 (37 - 49
Urban Development Corporation ........ 3,804 5 - 3,809
State Insurance Fund ...............c.c.......... 7,937 467 - 8,404
Non-Major Component Units.............. 9,762 48 - 9,810
Total Discretely Presented
Component Unit.......ccceeeereereeneraereesaenees $ 31,375 $ 482 $ - $ 31,857

The immaterial correction in the General Fund is due to a change in the accounting classification of
certain financial instruments in relation to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities, where the financial instruments do not meet the classification of an asset that benefits the
State; thus, the assets were removed.
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NOTE 2 - Cash and Investments
Governmental Activities, Private Purpose and Custodial Funds
Deposits

The State maintains approximately 1,700 bank accounts for various purposes at locations throughout
the State. Cash deposits in the State Treasury are under the joint custody of the State Comptroller and
the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance. Cash balances not required for immediate use are invested
in a short-term investment pool (STIP) administered by the State Comptroller or by the fund custodian
to maximize interest earnings. Cash is invested in repurchase agreements involving United States (U.S.)
Treasury obligations, U.S. Treasury bills, commercial paper, government-sponsored agency bonds, and
certificates of deposit. Cash deposits not held in the State Treasury are under the sole custody of a
specified State official and are generally held in interest-bearing accounts. Both the State Comptroller
and the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance are sole custodians of certain accounts.

The custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution,
the State will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

For demand accounts, checking accounts and certificates of deposit, the State requires that its depository
banks pledge collateral or provide a surety bond based on actual and average daily available bank
balances. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the State’s fiscal agent in the name of the State
and are valued on a monthly basis. Surety bonds will be accepted only from companies which are highly
rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). The use of average daily
available balances to determine collateral requirements may result in the available balances being
undercollateralized at various times during the fiscal year. The State’s cash management policy is to
invest all major revenues as soon as the monies are available within the banking system, which limits
undercollateralization. The State’s cash deposits with financial institutions had a book and bank balance
of $8.6 billion and were fully collateralized at the end of the 2023 fiscal year. Included in these balances
were certificates of deposit held in the STIP with a book and bank balance of $3 billion. Also included
are deposits with a book and bank balance of $496 million held by the State’s fiscal agent, of which
$495 million were exposed to custodial credit risk because they were uninsured and uncollateralized.
The remaining $1 million in deposits were fully insured and collateralized.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the average daily balance of the STIP was $78.2 billion, with
an average annual yield of 2.7 percent and total investment income of $2.1 billion.

Investments

The State holds investments both for its own benefit and as an agent for other parties. Major investment
programs conducted for the direct benefit of the State include STIP, which is used for the temporary
investment of funds not required for immediate payments, and sole custody funds administered by the
Department of Taxation and Finance.

Investments are made in accordance with State Finance Law and vary by fund but generally include:
obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States; obligations of New York State and its political
subdivisions; certificates of deposit; savings bank trust company notes; bankers’ acceptances;
repurchase agreements; corporate bonds; and commercial paper.
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As of March 31, 2023 (except for New York’s 529 College Savings Program, which is as of December
31, 2022), the State had the following investments and maturities (amounts in millions):

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Carrying Less

Investment Type Value than 1 1-5 6-10
U.S. Treasury bills........c..cccoevennee. $ 51,275 $ 51275 § - $ -
Commercial paper..........cccceveeveenee. 17,609 17,609 - -
Government-sponsored agency

bONdS ..ooveiiiiiee e 8,726 8,653 - 73
U.S. Treasury notes/bonds .............. 1,762 1,543 188 31
Supranational debentures and

discount NOtes.........cceeveeeeeveeennenne 969 969 - -
Repurchase Agreements.................. 434 434 - -
Municipal bonds...........cccceeeiiennennn. 150 57 68 25
U.S. Treasury Strip......cccceeveeeveennee. 18 18 - -
Other......ooooiiiiiieeeeeeee e, 4 4 - -

1117107 71 [ 80,947 § 80,562 $ 256 $ 129
Investments held in an agent or

trust Capacity .....ccceeeveeriienieeneennen. 41,128

1) 7 | $ 122,075

Included in the table are securities which either were not acquired for investment purposes or cannot be
classified or categorized, and are being held by the State in an agent or trust capacity. Parents,
grandparents and other parties wishing to save for a child’s college education may deposit money into
the College Savings Program. Individuals with blindness or a disability wishing to save for disability-
related expenses without jeopardizing other assistance programs like Social Security or Medicaid may
deposit money into the NY Achieving a Better Life Experience (ABLE) Program. The State administers
these programs on behalf of the account owners and holds the investment portfolios in a trust. The fair
market value of the College Savings Program and ABLE Program portfolios were $40.2 billion and $15
million, respectively, at December 31, 2022. Securities that are unclaimed at financial institutions are
transferred periodically to the State and are held temporarily by the State until they can be liquidated.
The securities or proceeds can be claimed by the owners under established procedures. These securities
had a carrying amount and fair value of $920 million at March 31, 2023. The State holds cash and
securities deposited by contractors in lieu of retainage on contract payments (carrying amount and fair
value of $4 million).

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in commercial paper, repurchase agreements, government-sponsored
agency bonds and municipal bonds to securities with the highest ratings issued by two NRSROs For
those short-term investments that are not obligations or guaranteed by the U.S. Government, the
investments must have the highest rating from two independent rating services. If an investment in
commercial paper drops in rating below the legal requirements during the year, the State’s investment
staff would consult with appropriate advisors to determine what action, if any, should be taken.
Repurchase agreements are collateralized with U.S. Treasury obligations. Investments in government-
sponsored agency bonds and municipal bonds must be assigned the highest rating by all rating agencies
that rate such bonds.
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The portfolios of the College Savings Program, a Private Purpose Trust Fund, have underlying fixed
income mutual funds which are not rated by any NRSRO.

Custodial Credit Risk

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered
in the name of the government, and are held by either (a) the counterparty or (b) the counterparty’s trust
department or agent but not in the government’s name. The risk is that the State will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party
if the counterparty fails. The State’s policy is to hold all of its investments in the State’s name; however,
the investments listed below are exposed to custodial credit risk because they are not held by the State
but are held by a public benefit corporation in the public benefit corporation’s name or administered by
a fiscal agent on behalf of New York State. The following table presents the amortized costs, which
approximate fair value of investments by type (amounts in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value
Government-sponsored agency bonds...... $ 8,388
U.S. Treasury billS.......ccccvveevvieeiiieninens 3,585
U.S. Treasury notes ........ccccevveeeervveeeennnnen. 964
1] 1 $ 12,937

Interest Rate Risk

The fair values of the State’s fixed-maturity investments fluctuate in response to changes in market
interest rates. Increases in prevailing interest rates generally translate into decreases in fair values of
those instruments. Fair values of interest-rate-sensitive instruments may be affected by the
creditworthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, relative values of alternative investments, the
liquidity of the instrument and other general market conditions.

The State manages its interest rate risk by limiting the majority of its investments to a maturity structure
of one year or less. All investments in the STIP portfolio mature in one year or less. Additionally, the
State holds its investments to maturity, which minimizes the occurrence of a loss on an investment.

The State’s investments in mutual funds and equity securities have no stated maturity and have not been
allocated to a time period on the preceding table.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the State’s investment in a
single issuer (which may not exceed 5 percent of total investments). To mitigate this risk, it is the policy
of the State to maintain a diversified portfolio among a variety of investment instruments in which it is
legally permitted to invest.

Foreign Currency Risk

The State Finance Law, Section 98-a, does not expressly permit investment in foreign currency and
there is no formal policy related to foreign currency; however, the College Savings Plan has certain
underlying mutual funds which invest in foreign securities. There are certain additional risks involved
when investing in foreign securities that are not inherent with investments in domestic securities. These
risks may involve foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, adverse political and economic
developments, and the possible prevention of currency exchange or other foreign governmental laws or
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restrictions. In addition, the liquidity of foreign securities may be more limited than that of domestic
securities.

Fair Value

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASBS 72), establishes a three-
level valuation hierarchy of fair value measurements. This valuation hierarchy is based on observable
and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources,
while unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions and other inputs subject to management judgment.
These inputs are incorporated in the following fair value hierarchy:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
that a government can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs — other than quoted prices included within Level 1 — that are observable
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. If the fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of
the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority.

The State’s Level 1 investments in mutual funds and equity securities are reported at fair value using
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. The Level 2 mutual funds, Treasury investments,
municipal bonds, government-sponsored agency bonds, equity securities and debt securities are reported
at fair value using quoted prices for similar assets or quoted prices for identical items that are not actively
traded. The State’s Level 3 investments in equity securities include delisted, restricted, and fractional
securities and securities with no value; Level 3 investments, except for those with no value, are reported
at cost.

As of March 31, 2023, the State’s composition of investments by levels within the fair value hierarchy
were as follows (amounts in millions):

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Mutual funds......ccoecveviieriiennnnne $ 40,452 $ 40,219 $ 233§ -
Equity securities.........cccceeeveenennn. 670 666 - 4
U.S. Treasury notes.................... 219 - 219 -
Municipal bonds .........ccccecuvennnnn. 93 - 93 -
Government-sponsored agency
bonds.....ccoeeevieviiiiieieeeee, 73 - 73 -
Debt securities.........cceevveevrenennn. 6 - 5 1
Subtotal.........ccovevvveiiinienernnnens 41,513 § 40,885 $ 623 $ 5

o0 1) 80,562
Total ..ccceeeneeeeeccrrneeeccssnneecccnns $ 122,075
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Business-Type Activities
Deposits

SUNY does not have a formal policy for collateral requirements for cash deposits. At June 30, 2022,
SUNY had $3.3 billion in deposits held by the State Treasury and invested in the STIP, and $144 million
held by other local depositories. Deposits not held in the State Treasury that are not covered by
depository insurance are: uncollateralized ($116 million) and collateralized with securities held by a
pledging financial institution ($105 million). In addition, SUNY has $66 million in cash and cash
equivalents deposited with bond trustees, which are registered in SUNY’s name and held by an agent or
in trust accounts in SUNY’s name.

CUNY’s cash and cash equivalents were held by depositories and amounted to $950 million (carrying
value of $893 million), of which $502 million was insured and $448 million was uninsured and
uncollateralized, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust
department or agent, but not in CUNY’s name.

Lottery deposits are made in accordance with State Finance Law and State Tax Law. At
March 31, 2023, Lottery had $1.1 billion in deposits held by the State Treasury, which were invested in
the STIP.

The Unemployment Insurance Benefit Fund has a total of $13 million in a sole custody bank account,
which is on deposit with the State Comptroller and invested in the STIP, and is subject to the same
collateralization requirements as the State’s investments. The Unemployment Insurance Benefit Fund
has an additional $5 million in a trust fund held with the U.S. Treasury and managed by the Secretary
of the U.S. Treasury and $111 million held jointly by the State's Commissioner of Taxation and Finance
and the State Comptroller.

Investments

Generally, SUNY and CUNY are allowed to invest in a diverse investment portfolio. Permitted
investments include, but are not limited to, obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies,
municipal debt securities, repurchase agreements, corporate bonds, commercial paper, equity securities,
mutual funds, asset-backed securities, money market funds and security lending transactions.

The Lottery is authorized by State statute to invest in U.S. Government-backed obligations and New
York City Transitional Finance Authority municipal bonds that provide for payment of prizes payable.
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As of June 30, 2022 (except for the State Lottery, which is as of March 31, 2023), the business-type
activities had the following investments and maturities (amounts in millions):

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Carrying Less More

Investment Type Value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10
U.S. Treasury notes/bonds.............. $ 1,375 § 86 § 180 $§ 131 § 178
U.S. Treasury bills.........c.cccveeneen. 631 631 - - -
Municipal bonds ..........cccoeeveenennnen. 338 - 78 21 239
Government-sponsored agency

bONAS..ceveiiiiiiieee 226 226 - - -
AID bonds......cccovveveenienienieienene 104 - 86 18 -
Certificates of deposit..................... 100 100 - - -
Mutual funds non-equities.............. 88 6 9 62 11
Fixed income ..........ccceevveeveennnennnen. 46 - 12 20 14
Corporate bonds..........ccceeeveerueennne. 11 8 3 - -
U.S. Treasury STRIPS.................... 6 - 6 - -
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected

SECUITHIES .vevreeeeneeeieerieeieeiesre e 6 - 3 2 1
U.S. fixed income...........c.ccuvenenee. 5 - 5 - -
International bonds ............cccuue.... 1 1 - - -

Subtotal.......cocevecrnrecsercseesnecane 2937 § 1858 §$§ 382 § 254 § 443
External investment pools .............. 1,428
Cash and cash equivalents.............. 225
Global equitieS........ccceeeveeeveenerennen. 176
Hedge funds.......ccceevvveviinciieiennn. 127
Multi-strategy funds .............c......... 98
U.S. equitieS.....ccevveereereeereeneennen. 91
Limited partnership...........cccu...... 67
Private equity......coceeeveeereeeieeneennee. 62
Foreign equities ...........ccceeeveenennnee. 19
Equity mutual funds..........c..c......... 15
Credit securities .........cooevevereruennen. 8
U.S. money market fund................. 2
Other .....cccoviiniiiiieee, 59
TOtAl .cuueeeeeeereeeeecrrenneeccssneeecesnnnee $ 5,314

Credit Risk

Generally, SUNY individual fixed income investment securities must be of investment grade.
Parameters exist that allow some limited investments in non-investment grade securities; however,
investments rated below B3 by Moody’s or B- by S&P are prohibited.

CUNY s investment policy for the CUNY Investment Pool includes specific guidelines for investment
managers with a target allocation to fixed income, as well as reference to specific guidelines for each
investment manager.
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As of June 30, 2022 (except for the State Lottery, which is as of March 31, 2023), the business-type
activities had the following investments with ratings (amounts in millions):

Not
Investment Type Total AAA AA A BBB Rated
Municipal bonds..........ccceeverieennnne $§ 338 § 338 § - $ - $ - $ -
Government-sponsored agency
bONAS .o 226 164 - - - 62
AID bonds .....ccevverieiieiiieeeee, 104 - - - - 104
Mutual funds non-equities............... 62 62 - - - -
Fixed income..........cccovvevcvveeenieennnn, 46 23 5 18 - -
Corporate bonds .........ccccveeevveennennn. 11 - - 4 7 -
International bonds......................... 1 - - - 1 -
111 7 | DR $ 788 § 587 § S 8 22§ 8 § 166
Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2022, SUNY had $1.4 billion in cash and investments held by the Dormitory Authority of
the State of New York (DASNY), which represents bond proceeds needed to finance capital projects
and to establish required building and equipment replacement and debt service reserves. These cash
and investments are registered in SUNY’s name and held by an agent or in a trust in SUNY’s name.
SUNY’s investment policy does not formally address custodial credit risk.

At June 30, 2022, CUNY had $369 million in investments held by DASNY or the bond trustee, and not
in CUNY’s name. CUNY’s investment policy does not formally address custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

SUNY has policies in place that limit fixed income investment duration within certain benchmarks, and
a highly diversified portfolio is maintained which limits interest rate exposure. SUNY does not formally
address any interest rate risk related to its investment pools. CUNY’s investment policy does not
formally limit investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair market value losses arising
from increased interest rates. The Lottery’s policy for managing interest rate risk is to hold investment
securities to maturity, at which time the fair value of the investment is equal to the stated maturity value.

Investment Pool

SUNY has certain assets included in its financial statements that are attributable to the statutory colleges
at Cornell University and Alfred University, and are held as a portfolio of investments in external
investment pools. The fair value of the investments is primarily based on the unit value of the pools and
the number of shares owned in each pool. The unit values of the pools, as well as their fair values at
June 30, 2022, are presented in the table below (fair value amounts in millions):
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Pool Type Unit Value Fair Value
Cornell Statutory Colleges:
Endowments:
Long-term Investment Pool..............ccccceveveuennnee. $ 7181  § 1,349
Charitable Gift Annuities Master Trust Units...... 2.74 8
Charitable Trusts:
Endowment Strategy ..........cccooveeevvieeciireniieeeienen. 73.68 34
Common Trust Fund — Growth..............cccceenee. 50.41 6
Common Trust Fund — Income .............cccoeeeneee. 11.55 2
Pooled Life Income Funds (PLIF):
PLIF Ao 1.3 1
PLIF B 2.61 1
Alfred Ceramics:
Endowment Long-term Investment Pool ............... 8.17 27
Total External Investment Pools................... $ 1,428
Fair Value

Except for investments reported at net asset value (NAV) or its equivalent, as described in the table
below, SUNY reports its investments at fair value. For investments in mutual funds and exchange-traded
funds, fair value is determined based on quoted market prices as of balance sheet date June 30, 2022.
Investments in limited liability partnerships and corporations represent investments measured at NAV
or its equivalent and include hedge funds, real estate, domestic and foreign equity funds, fixed income
securities, and private equity funds in various investment vehicles. These investments, which are not
exchange-traded and for which fair values are not readily determinable, are typically redeemable at
NAYV under the terms of the investment agreements.

CUNY'’s investments in debt and equity securities and certain other investments with readily
determinable fair values are reported at fair value, which is based upon values provided by CUNY’s
custodian or current market quotations. Notable investments in hedge funds, or other investment funds
are reported at NAV as determined by the fund managers, without adjustment when assessed as
reasonable, unless it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different
from NAV. As of June 30, 2022, CUNY had no plans or intentions to sell such investments at amounts
different from NAV.

Lottery investments are measured based upon quoted prices for the security in active markets, or based
upon quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active or upon other observable
inputs such as interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals.

As of June 30, 2022 (except for the State Lottery, which is as of March 31, 2023), the composition of
investments for the State’s business-type activities by levels within the fair value hierarchy were as
follows (amounts in millions):
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Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Treasury notes/bonds........ $ 1,375 % 489 $ 886 $ -
U.S. Treasury bills.................... 631 62 569 -
Municipal bonds..........ccceeuee. 338 - 338 -
Government-sponsored
agency bonds.........ccceeeeuiennns 226 - 226 -
Cash equivalents.........c.ccceeeueee 160 160 - -
AID bonds ......cccceeveeeiienieeins 104 - 104 -
Certificates of deposit............... 100 - 100 -
U.S. equities .....cccceveereevuennenne. 91 91 - -
Mutual fund non-equities ......... 88 88 - -
Global equity .......ccceverveneennene 75 50 25 -
Fixed income.........cccccuevueenenne 46 46 - -
Foreign equities...........ccccueeueene 19 19 - -
Equity mutual funds ................. 15 15 - -
Corporate bonds ....................... 11 - 11 -
U.S. Treasury STRIPS.............. 6 6 - -
U.S. Treasury inflation-
protected securities................. 6 6 - -
U.S. fixed income............cc....... 5 5 - -
U.S. money market fund........... 2 2 - -
International bonds................... 1 - 1 -
Other.....cooevieiiiiiiieceeeeee 38 33 - 5
Total.....ccueeveerrensecsnrssecsuncnne $ 3,337 § 1,072 § 2,260 § 5

SUNY investments at June 30, 2022, measured at the NAV were as follows (amounts in millions):

Fair Redemption Frequency Redemption

Investment Type Value (If Currently Eligible) Notice Period
Monthly for funds functioning as
External investment pools ... $§ 1,428 endowments only Two months
Global equities...................... 102 Monthly, Quarterly, Annually 30-90 days
Hedge funds (equities).......... 101 Quarterly 90 days
Multi-strategy funds ............. 83 Monthly, Quarterly 45-95 days
Private equity........ccceveeuennen. 62  N/A —See below N/A
Credit securities..................... 8 Monthly, Quarterly 45 days
Other.....coovveeiireeeeeeee, 21 N/A N/A
Total...cecereeeeerrreeeccrsaneeeens $ 1,805

External investment pools represent ownership in Cornell University's and Alfred University's long-
term investment pools (LTIP) or other split-interest agreement pools. The objective of the LTIP
investment policy is to maximize total return within a reasonable risk parameter; specifically, to achieve
a total return, net of investment expenses, of at least 5 percent in excess of inflation as measured by a
rolling average of the Consumer Price Index.
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Private equity fund investments include non-controlling shares or interests in funds where the
controlling general partner serves as the investment’s manager. Such investments are generally not
eligible for redemption from the fund or general partner but can potentially be sold to third-party buyers
in private transactions. It is SUNY’s intent to hold these investments until the fund has fully distributed
all proceeds to the investors. SUNY has unfunded commitments to private equity investments as of June
30, 2022 of approximately $62 million.

CUNY investments at June 30, 2022, measured at the NAV were as follows (amounts in millions):

Investment Fair Unfunded Redemption Frequency Redemption
Type Value Commitments (If Currently Eligible) Notice Period
Limited partnership ................... $ 67 $ 25  Illiquid N/A
Multi-strategy funds.................. 14 - Illiquid, Monthly N/A, 90 days
Systematic trading hedge fund .. 11 - Daily 1 day
Global macro hedge funds ........ 8 - Miquid N/A
Global equity long/short hedge
funds.....ccooevveeeieeieee e, 7 - Monthly 30 days
Total... $ 107 § 25

CUNY’s limited partnership investments include credit, debt, and private real assets funds, including
private limited partnership investments in several funds that are diverse by sector (transportation,
energy, metal/mining, commodities, middle market, and financial assets), type/structure, and geography
(North/America, Western Europe, Australia). The systematic trading hedge funds invest in various
security instruments which include futures and foreign exchange contracts. Global equity long/short
hedge funds utilize over-the-counter (OTC) long-dated options as well as short options for investment
purposes across several asset classes, such as equities, interest rates, commodities, and currencies.
Global macro hedge funds generate returns through global macro, tactical, and relative value trading
strategies based on fundamental data, price changes, and asset convergence. The multi-strategy funds
category includes funds that invest in a diversified group of investment strategies utilizing both long and
short positions in an unlimited range of financial instruments throughout the world.

Fiduciary Activities
Retirement System - New York State and Local Retirement System

Investments of the New York State and Local Retirement System (System) are reported at fair value.
Equity securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at quoted fair value.
Investments that do not have an established market are reported at net asset values as determined by the
general partner or by the investment manager. The System trades in foreign exchange contracts in the
normal course of its investing activities in order to manage exposure to market risks. Such contracts,
which are generally for a period of less than one year, are used to purchase and sell foreign currency at
a guaranteed future price. These contracts are recorded at fair value using foreign currency exchange
rates. The System is exposed to various investment risks, which are discussed in the remainder of this
Note.



State of New York « 75
Custodial Credit Risk

Equity and fixed income investments owned directly by the System which trade in the United States
markets are generally held by the System’s custodian, in separate accounts, in the name of the
Comptroller of the State of New York in Trust for the Common Retirement Fund. These securities are
typically held in electronic form through the Federal Book Entry System and by the Depository Trust
Company (DTC) and its subsidiaries, acting as an agent of the System’s custodian bank. Securities held
directly by the System which trade in markets outside the U.S. are held by a subsidiary of the System’s
custodian bank in the local market, by a bank performing custodial services in the local market acting
as an agent for the System’s custodian bank, or, in some foreign markets, by a DTC subsidiary or an
organization similar to DTC, which holds the securities in electronic format. Equity investments held
indirectly by the System via limited partnerships, commingled investment funds, joint ventures, and
other similar vehicles are held in custody by an organization contracted with by the general partner
and/or the investment management firm responsible for the management of each investment
organization. Title to real estate invested in by the System is either held by a real estate holding company
or a real estate investment fund. Ownership of mortgage assets is documented by the System’s holding
of original mortgage and note documents by the Division of Pension Investment and Cash Management
in the Office of the State Comptroller.

Credit Risk

New York State statutes and the System’s investment policies provide investment guidance on credit
risk. Approximately $30.1 billion or 62 percent of the System’s $48.5 billion long-term bond portfolio
is rated AAA by NRSROs. For the balance of the portfolio: 36.95 percent is rated BBB to AA; 0.29
percent is rated C to BB; and 0.7 percent is not rated.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the
System’s fixed income securities. The price volatility of the System’s fixed income holdings is
measured by duration. The average duration of the System’s core fixed income portfolio is 6.17 years.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Issuer limits for investments held by the System are established for each investment area by New York
State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL), Article 2, Section 13 and Article 4A, Sections 176,
177, 178, and 313, and by policy guidelines adopted by the Comptroller.

Restrictions are placed on short-term fixed income investments, such that any one issuer of commercial
paper must have the highest rating by two NRSROs and a maximum of $500 million of the short-term
portfolio can be invested in any one issuer. In addition, simultaneous purchase and sales of U.S.
Treasury obligations may be executed with primary government dealers.

Restrictions are placed on fixed income investments with maturities longer than one year. These
investments are generally limited to obligations payable in U.S. dollars issued by: any department,
agency or political subdivision of the U.S. government; any corporation, company or other issuer of any
kind or description created or existing under the laws of the U.S.; any state of the U.S.; the District of
Columbia; the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico; and Canada or any province or city of Canada, provided
each obligation is rated investment grade by two NRSROs. The aggregate investment by the System in
the obligations of any one issuer should not exceed 2 percent of the assets of the System or 5 percent of
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the direct liabilities of the issuer. In addition, the aggregate amount invested in interest-bearing
obligations payable in U.S. dollars (which at the time of investment are rated one of the three highest
grades by each NRSRO approved by the New York State Department of Financial Services) may not
exceed 1 percent of the assets of the System; and bonds issued or guaranteed by the State of Israel,
payable in U.S. dollars, may not exceed 5 percent of the assets of the System; and obligations issued or
guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development may not exceed 5 percent of
the assets of the System.

As of March 31, 2023, the System did not hold any investments in any one issuer that totaled 5 percent
or more of fiduciary net position. Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government
and pooled investments are excluded from the above referenced aggregate investment policy.

Securities Lending

Section 177-d of the RSSL authorizes the System to enter into security loan agreements with
broker/dealers and New York State or national banks. The System has two providers to manage a
securities lending program. These programs are subject to written contracts between the System and
the Contractor, who acts as security lending agent for the System. The securities lending agents are
authorized to lend securities within the borrower limits and guidelines established by the System. Types
of collateral received from borrowers for securities loaned are cash, government securities and federal
agency obligations. The securities lending providers are authorized to invest the cash collateral in short-
term investments that are legal for the System. These include domestic corporate and bank notes, U.S.
Treasury obligations, obligations of federal agencies, repurchase agreements and specific asset-backed
securities. All rights of ownership to securities pledged as collateral remain with the borrower except
in the event of default. As of March 31,2023, there were no violations of legal or contractual provisions.
The System has not experienced any losses resulting from the default of a borrower or lending agent
during the year ended March 31, 2023.

The System lends fixed income, domestic equity, and international equity securities to approved
broker/dealers. Collateral for securities loaned equals 102 percent of fair market value for domestic
securities and 105 percent for international securities. Credit risk associated with the investment of cash
collateral pledged by borrowers is mitigated by the maturity restrictions, percentage limitations, and
rating requirements for individual asset classes included in the System’s reinvestment guidelines. Each
Contractor acknowledges responsibility to reimburse the System for any losses that might arise from
managing the program in a manner inconsistent with the contract. The System manages its market risk
by recording investments at fair market value daily and maintaining the value of the collateral held by
the System in excess of the value of the securities loaned.

As of March 31, 2023, the fair value of securities on loan was $28.6 billion. The associated collateral
was $29.2 billion, of which $29.2 billion was cash collateral. The fair value of the invested cash
collateral, as of March 31, 2023, was $29.1 billion and the securities lending obligations were $29.1
billion. The unrealized loss in invested cash collateral on March 31, 2023 was $1 million, which is
included in the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position as part of “Net increase in the fair value
of investments.”

All open security loans can be terminated on demand by either the System or the borrower. To provide
sufficient liquidity, the policy of the System is to maintain a minimum of 5 percent of collateral in
overnight investments, 10 percent must mature within seven days, and 20 percent must mature within
30 days. While the Securities Lending Investment Guidelines allow investments up to a maximum of
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three years for U.S. Treasury and federal agency obligations and up to one full year for all other
investments, the average term of open security loans at March 31, 2023 was 23 days. All loans were
open loans. There were no direct matching loans. The collateral pool is valued at fair value as obtained
from independent pricing services.

Foreign Currency Risk

As of March 31, 2023, the System’s current position in publicly traded international equity securities,
invested in directly or through commingled funds, is approximately $29.2 billion. The System also has
foreign investments held in U.S. dollars of $16.9 billion; $23.5 billion in private equity, opportunistic,
absolute return strategy, real asset and credit funds; and $4.5 billion in real property owned, made, or
located outside the United States. The approximate total fair market value of the System’s investments
made outside of the United States is $74.2 billion.

Fair Value

Investments classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued from predetermined external
pricing vendors or primary dealers who source quoted prices in active markets, which are readily
attainable exit values of these securities. Investments classified in Level 2 are subject to alternative
pricing sources, including a combination of price sources, descriptive data and pricing models based on
attributes such as spread data, sector, quality, duration, and prepayment characteristics. Investments
classified as Level 3 are valued using best available sources such as property appraisals, discounted cash
flow models and public market comparables of similar assets where applicable. The values are supplied
by advisors or general partners who hold those or similar assets in investment vehicles they oversee.
These pricing sources may or may not be indicative of realizable exit value attainable for the assets.

As of March 31, 2023, the composition of the System’s investments by levels within the fair value
hierarchy as of March 31, 2023 were as follows (amounts in billions):

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Domestic equities ................... $§ 70 $ 70 S - $ -
Global fixed income
SECUITEICS ..eevvreereeereeireenieenene, 48 - 48 -
International equities.............. 32 32 - -
Securities lending
collateral, invested............... 18 - 18 -
Short-term instruments........... 3 - 3 -
Real estate........ccceevvveevreneennes, 2 - - 2
Mortgage loans....................... 1 - - 1
Other......cccoeviieiieiieieeieen. 1 - - 1
Subtotal.........cccceeueeueireencene. 175 $ 102  § 69 § 4

Investments valued at
amortized COSt.....covvuuuunaeeenns, 13
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The System’s investments at March 31, 2023, measured at the net asset value (NAV) were as follows
(amounts in billions):

Fair Unfunded Redemption Frequency Redemption
Investment Type Value Commitments (If Currently Eligible) Notice Period
Private equity ............. $ 37§ 14 N/A N/A
Real Estate ................. 23 8 N/A N/A
N/A, 1-30
days, 18
Credit assets ............... 9 7  N/A, Monthly, 1-3 years months
Real assets.................. 8 5 N/A N/A
Opportunistic/ARS N/A, 5-90
investments .............. 6 4  N/A, Monthly, Quarterly days
N/A, Weekly, Monthly, N/A, 2-90
Domestic equities....... 5 - Annually days
International equity
funds.....cooeveeiennenne. 2 - Daily, Monthly, Quarterly 15-120 days
Total ....ceveevueerurenenee $ 920 S 38

Domestic equities consist of one commingled investment vehicles and one fund for which the System
is the only investor. The funds invest primarily in publicly traded domestic equity securities. The
investments are valued at the NAV of units held at the end of the period based upon the fair value of the
underlying investments.

International equity funds consist of six commingled investment vehicles and one fund for which the
System is the only investor. The funds invest primarily in publicly traded global equity securities. The
funds are valued at the NAV of units held at the end of the period based upon the fair value of the
underlying investments.

The System’s alternative investments portfolio includes private equity, opportunistic/absolute return
strategy funds, real assets, credit, and real estate through various fund structures. Private equity (13.3
percent of the System’s total investments and securities lending collateral invested at March 31, 2023)
consists of buyout, growth equity, co-investments, special situations, distressed debt and turnaround
funds, venture capital, and funds of funds. Opportunistic/absolute return strategy investments (2.3
percent) consist of investments in strategies including hedged equity, credit, global macro, closed-end
funds, and investments that do not meet the mandates of the other asset classes. Real assets (2.8 percent)
consist of commodities, farmland, capital assets, infrastructure, and renewables. Credit assets (3.4
percent) consists of non-investment grade public and private credit strategies in direct lending, distressed
and special situations, specialty finance, structured credit and real assets credit through closed-end and
open-end funds, co-investments, separately managed accounts, and funds of funds. Real estate
investments (9 percent) consist of investments in separate accounts, joint ventures, and commingled
funds. The fair values of the alternative investments have been determined using the NAV per share (or
its equivalent) of the System’s ownership interest in partner's capital. The private equity, real assets, and
real estate are not eligible for redemption. Distributions are received as underlying investments within
the funds are liquidated, which on average can occur over a span of 5-10 years.
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Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund

Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (the OPEB Trust) deposits are made in accordance with State Finance
Law. At March 31, 2023, the OPEB Trust had $1.3 billion in cash deposits held by the State Treasury,
which were invested in the STIP.

The money-weighted rate of return is calculated as the internal rate of return on OPEB Trust
investments, net of OPEB Trust investment expense. A money-weighted rate of return expresses
investment performance, net of OPEB Trust investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts
actually invested. Inputs to the money-weighted rate of return calculation are determined monthly. The
annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense calculated in accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans, was 2.9 percent for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023.
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NOTE 3 - Taxes Receivable, Tax Refunds Payable and Tax Abatements

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable represent amounts owed by taxpayers for the 2022 calendar year and the first quarter
of the 2023 calendar year, including prior year assessments for underpayments, penalties and interest.
Taxes receivable are recognized as revenue when they become both measurable and available, based on
actual collections or estimates of amounts to be collected during the next 12 months.

Personal income tax (PIT) revenues are reported as income when earned by the taxpayers. The primary
components of the PIT receivable are the estimated and withholding payments that relate to the first
quarter of the 2023 calendar year, payments with final returns which relate to the 2022 calendar year,
and assessments which relate to prior tax periods.

Consumption and use tax revenues are reported in the fiscal period when the sale is made. The principal
component of this receivable is sales tax receivables, which include sales taxes due through March 31,
2023 and assessments which relate to prior tax periods.

General business tax revenues are reported as businesses earn income. General business tax receivables
comprise estimated tax payments, payments remitted with final returns, and assessments.

Other taxes receivable comprises estate and gift taxes, real property gains taxes, real estate transfer taxes,
metropolitan commuter transportation mobility taxes and assessments.

Net taxes receivable at March 31, 2023 for the governmental funds totaled approximately $20 billion.
The following table summarizes taxes receivable by major tax type for the governmental funds (amounts
in millions):

General Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental
General Service Funds Funds
Current taxes receivable:
Personal income......................... $ 7,339 § 7,174  $ 430 $ 14,943
Consumption and use................ 627 575 164 1,366
Business.........cccoevveeeeeiiiiieeeennnn. 582 - 92 674
Other.....coociiiiieiieeeeee. 1,606 - 171 1,777
Subtotal .....ccceeerverecrcnncncsnnennns 10,154 7,749 857 18,760
Long-Term taxes receivable:
Personal income ............cc.......... 334 356 22 712
Consumption and use................ 56 55 2 113
Business.........ccooovveeeeeciiiieeeennen. 207 - - 207
Other.....oocovieeiiieieeee e, 199 - - 199
Subtotal ......ccccvveeeeenccnreccccannne 796 411 24 1,231
Allowance for uncollectibles....... (189) (98) (6) (293)

Total.uuuueeeceeeeenreeennnnecccceeenenns $ 10,761 $ 8,062 $ 875 $ 19,698
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Tax refunds payable primarily represent amounts owed to taxpayers because of overpayments of their
2022 calendar year and first quarter 2023 calendar year tax liabilities. Tax refunds payable, which
reduce respective tax revenues, are accrued to the extent they are measurable based on payments and
estimates. The amount of PIT refunds payable includes estimates of overpayments of the first calendar
quarter 2023 tax liability and payments of 2022 calendar and prior year refunds. The remaining portion
of tax refunds payable comprise payments made subsequent to the end of the fiscal year and estimates
of a remaining refund liability. Tax refunds payable at March 31, 2023 are summarized as follows

(amounts in millions):

Governmental Activities:

Current
General Other
Debt Governmental Total
General Service Funds Current Long-term
Personal income............. $ 8440 $ 6,158 $ 370§ 14,968 $ 629
Consumption and use .... 92 92 25 209 489
Business......cccoeevveeveennnn. 2,731 - 302 3,033 625
Other......cccvvevieeiieiene, 89 - 329 418 37
Total....ccueeeerueerercennnes $ 11,352 § 6,250 $ 1,026 § 18,628 § 1,780

Tax Abatements

For financial reporting purposes, a tax abatement is defined as an agreement between the government
and an individual or entity through which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the
individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development in the taxing entity’s jurisdiction or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens.
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As of March 31, 2023, the State provided tax abatements through the following programs:

Program Name .........c...........

Program Purpose...................

Taxes being abated................

Authority under which
abatements are entered

Criteria to be eligible to
receive abatements and
commitment of the
taxpayer........ccoooeiiin

How taxes are reduced...........

How amount of abatement
is determined...........ccouuueeee..

Provisions for recapturing
abated taxes.......ccceecvenvennnn,

Type of commitments other
than taxes .......ccceeeervernenennn,

Total revenue estimated to
be reduced for calendar
year 2022.....cocceeviieniieiienn,

Film and Commercial Production Credit

The program is designed to increase the
presence and overall positive impact of
the film production and post-production
industry on the State’s economy.

Personal income tax and Corporate
franchise tax.

State tax law:

Article 22, Sections 606(gg), 606(jj) and
606(qq)

Article 9-A, Sections 210-B(20), 210-

B(23) and 210-B(32)

Article 1, Sections 24, 28 and 31

The program is limited to feature films,
television series, relocated television
series, television pilots, and films for
television. The filming must be
substantially in the State or the post-
production work must be completed by a
State company.

Allowance of credit against taxes.
Taxpayer receives the full amount of the
credit regardless of its tax liability
Refundable credit.

The credit is 25 percent of qualified
production and post-production costs. It
increases by 5 percent if post-production
costs are incurred upstate and increases
an additional 10 percent of any qualified
labor expenses that are incurred in
specific counties.

$485 million

Brownfields

The program encourages cleanup and
development of brownfield sites across
the State to revitalize economically
blighted communities.

Personal income tax, Corporate franchise
tax, Insurance tax, and Corporate tax.

State tax law:

Article 22, Sections 606(dd), 606(ee) and
606(ff)

Article 9-A, Sections 210-B(17),
210-B(18) and 210-B(19)

Article 33, Sections 1511(u), 1511(v) and
1511(w)

Atrticle 9, Sections 187-G, 187-H and
187-1

Atrticle 1, Section 21, 22 and 23

The program requires an application with
the project description, purpose, and start
and end date of remediation. The
applicant commits to undertake remedial
activities under the direction of the
Department of Environmental
Conservation.

Allowance of credit against taxes.
Refundable credit.

Credits result from various percentages
of costs associated with three
components of cleanup and development:
site preparation, tangible property, and
on-site groundwater remediation.

N/A

N/A

$130 million



Program Name.........c.cccccee..e

Program Purpose.........cc...c......

Taxes being abated..................

Authority under which
abatements are entered

Criteria to be eligible to
receive abatements and
commitment of the
TAXPAYET ..oovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee

How taxes are reduced............

How amount of abatement is
determined ..........ccceeeeneeenn.

Provisions for recapturing
abated taXes.........coceverenennns

Type of commitments other
than taxes .......cccceeeeeeevennenne.

Total revenue estimated to
be reduced for calendar
year 2022.....covvieiieeiieien,

Empire Zones (EZ)

The program is designed to bring new
businesses and jobs to the State in areas that
need revitalization.

Personal income tax, Corporate franchise
tax, Bank and Insurance taxes, and
Corporate tax.

State tax law:

Article 22, Sections 606(j)(j-1), 606(k) and
606(1)

Article 9-A, Sections 210-B(3 & 4) and
210-B(46)

Article 33, Sections 1511(g) and 1511(h)

Article 9, Sections 187-K, 187-L and
187-M

An agreement is made between the State
and a local government to designate an area
as an EZ. Businesses will apply to be
certified, and then will conduct business
and make investments in the EZ to create
new jobs or prevent loss of employment.

Allowance of credit against taxes.
Taxpayer receives the amount of the credit
only up to the amount of their liability
(nonrefundable credit) and can carry
forward the credit against future tax
liability. Refundable credit available for
new businesses.

The Investment Tax Credit and
Employment Incentive Credit are equal to a
percentage of the cost or other basis of
tangible personal property for federal
income tax purposes, including buildings
and structural components of buildings
located within a designated EZ.

The Wage Tax Credit is calculated on the
average number of newly hired employees.
It is $3,000 per targeted and $1,500 per
nontargeted employee.

The Capital Credit equals 25 percent of the
sum of each type of investment.

$20 million

Qualified Empire Zone Enterprise (QEZE)

This program is designed to create jobs and
prevent loss of employment in the Empire
Zone and to enhance economic climate in
EZ areas.

Personal income tax, Sales and use tax,
Corporate franchise tax, Bank and
Insurance taxes, and Corporate tax.

State tax law:

Article 22, Sections 606(bb) and 606(cc)

Article 28, Sections 1119(d)

Article 9-A, Sections 210-B(5) and
210-B(6)

Article 9, Sections 187-]J

Article 33, Sections 1511(r) and 1511(s)

Article 1, Sections 14, 15 and 16

Businesses in the EZ apply to be certified
as QEZEs. QEZE:s are certified businesses
that meet the employment test (increase
level of employment between tax year and
base year).

Allowance of credit taxes.

Refundable credit.

against

A credit is available for tax paid on tangible
personal property and certain services
purchased by a QEZE and used or
consumed in an EZ.

The Real Property Tax Credit equals 25
percent of the wages plus health and
retirement benefits of net new employees.

The Tax Reduction Credit is based on
benefit period, employment increase, zone
allocation, and tax factors.

N/A

N/A

$12 million
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Program Name .....................

Program Purpose...................

Taxes being abated................

Authority under which
abatements are entered

Criteria to be eligible to
receive abatements and
commitment of the
LAXPAYET ...ovviviririiiiiiiniiieeeee,

How taxes are reduced...........

How amount of abatement
is determined.......................

Provisions for recapturing
abated taxes......c..cocecerenenen,

Type of commitments other
than taxes .........ccoeceeernenennn,

Total revenue estimated to
be reduced for calendar
year 2022....cccevveiieeeeenen,

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Industrial Development Agencies
(IDAs)

The program is intended to foster
economic development in specific
localities.

Sales and use tax.

State tax law:
Article 28, Section 1116(a)(1)

General municipal law:
Article 18-A

The IDA is an exempt government
organization and receives all the benefits
of that status. To extend the sales tax
exemption benefit, the IDA can appoint
an agent or project operator to make
purchases for its project.

Sales tax exemption on purchases.

Purchases to acquire, build, and equip the
project are exempt from sales taxes,
including the 3/8 percent sales tax in the
Metropolitan Commuter Transportation
District (MCTD), to the extent provided
by the terms of the IDA project
agreement.

$98 million

New York Youth Jobs Program
(Formerly Urban Youth Jobs Program)

The program is designed to provide
employment for at-risk youth in full-time
and part-time positions.

Personal income tax and Corporate
franchise tax.

State tax law:
Article 22, Section 606(tt)
Article 9-A, Section 210-B(36)

The taxpayer applies to be a qualified
employer and receives a certificate of
eligibility indicating the maximum
amount of credit allowed to be claimed.
The employer is required to hire high
school students on a part-time or full-
time basis and to retain those students for
a period of time.

Allowance of credit
Refundable credit.

against taxes.

The credit is $375 to $1,500 per qualified
employee, either part-time or full-time
high school student, and additional
amounts can be received if the employee
is retained for additional time.

N/A

N/A

$40 million



Program Name ..........c...c.......

Program Purpose....................

Taxes being abated................

Authority under which
abatements are entered

Criteria to be eligible to
receive abatements and
commitment of the
[£:0:4 011175 (PP

How taxes are reduced ..........

How amount of abatement
is determined...........c...........

Provisions for recapturing
abated taxes.....c.ccoererennennn,

Type of commitments other
than taxes.......ccccccevenerennens

Total revenue estimated to
be reduced for calendar
year 2022.....coocveviieiieeinnn,

Excelsior Jobs Program and Empire State
Job Retention Program Credit

The program encourages businesses to
expand in and relocate to the State while
maintaining a guarantee to deliver on job
and investment commitments to better
the economy in selected regions. It
includes three programs: Job Tax Credit,
Investment Tax Credit, and Research and
Development Tax Credit.

Personal income tax, Corporate franchise
tax, Bank and Insurance taxes.

State tax law:

Article 22, Section 606(qq) and Section
606(tt)

Article 9-A, Section 210-B(31) and

Section 210-B(37)

Article 33, Section 1511(y) and Section
1511(bb)

Atrticle 1, Section 31 and Section 36

The taxpayer applies for a credit and, if
approved, is issued a certificate entitling
it to the credit. The taxpayer in return
creates jobs or invests in the region as
specified in the application submitted.

Allowance of credit
Refundable credit.

against taxes.

The Job Tax Credit is 6.85 percent of
wages per net new job.

The Investment Tax Credit is 2 percent of
the qualified investments.

The Research and Development Tax
Credit is 50 percent of the federal
research and development credit, and up
to 6 percent of research expenditures in
the State.

$170 million

State of New York « 85

Low-Income Housing Credit

The program is designed to promote the
development of and facilitate investment
in low-income housing.

Personal income tax, Corporate franchise
tax and Insurance tax.

State tax law:

Article 22, Section 606(x)

Article 9-A, Section 210-B(15)
Atrticle 33, Section 1511(n)

Article 1, Section 18

Article 2, N.Y.S. Public Housing Law

The participant makes a long-term
commitment to offer low-income
housing where the buildings must serve
households whose incomes are at or
below 90 percent of the area median
income.

Allowance of credit against taxes. Non-
refundable credit, can be carried forward.

The credit is determined by the Division
of Housing and Community Renewal and
depends on the applicable percentage of
the qualified basis of each low-income
building. The credit amount allocated is
allowed as a credit for the next 10 tax
years.

N/A

N/A

$51 million
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Program Name...................... New York City (NYC) Musical and
Theatrical Production Tax Credit
Program Purpose................... The program is designed to help

revitalize NYC’s entertainment industry
and support tourism as the city recovers
from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Taxes being abated............... Personal income tax; Corporation

franchise tax

Authority under which State tax law:
abatements are entered Article 1, Section 24-c
10110 S Article 9-A, Section 210-b(57)

Article 22, Section 606(mmm)

Criteria to be eligible to Companies must implement State
receive abatements and approved diversity and arts jobs training
commitment of the plan and take actions to increase access
[£:0:4 0Y:) (<) SRR to productions for low-income residents.

Production must occur in a qualified
production facility in NYC.
How taxes are reduced ......... The credit is 25 percent of qualified
production expenditures.
How amount of abatement =~ Companies that apply with a first paid
is determined............ccceeee. performance date prior to January 1,
2023 can receive up to $3 million per
production. The cap remains at $3
million per production for all projects
which  have  submitted  original
applications prior to June 30, 2023.
Provisions for recapturing
abated taxes .......c..coceceruenenn N/A

Type of commitments other
than taxes........c.cecvevvervenenne. N/A

Total revenue estimated to
be reduced for calendar
year 2022 .....cooeeiiereiane, $25 million

The State had additional tax abatement programs each amounting to $10 million or less in revenue
estimated to be reduced in calendar year 2022. In total, these programs resulted in $14 million in
estimated tax abatements. These include the Employee Training Incentive Program, the Historic
Homeownership Rehabilitation Tax Credit, the Excelsior Business Program (formerly START-UP NY
Tax Elimination Credit), the Recovery Tax Credit, and the Workers with Disabilities Tax Credit.
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NOTE 4 — Lessor Leases and Other Receivables
Lessor Leases

The State is the lessor of buildings and land. The related receivables are presented in the Statement of
Net Position for the amounts equal to the present value of lease payments expected to be received during
the lease term. The total amount of lease revenue, interest revenue, and other lease-related revenues
recognized in the current reporting period from leases is $1.6 million.

The State does not have any variable payment clauses within its lease arrangements as the lessor.
Likewise, the State did not earn revenue related to residual value guarantees or lease termination
penalties. It also does not currently have agreements that include sale-leaseback and lease-leaseback
transactions.

As of June 30, 2022, CUNY had leases as a lessor. The related receivables are presented in the Statement
of Net Position for the amounts equal to the present value of lease payments expected to be received
during the lease term. The total amount of lease revenue, interest revenue, and other lease-related
revenues recognized in the current reporting period from leases is $1.1 million.

CUNY does not have any leases as a lessor with partial or completely variable payments.
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Other Receivables

Other receivables at March 31, 2023 are summarized as follows (amounts in millions):

Governmental Activities:

Other current receivables:

Medicaid .........ccovvveeeuveennennns
Public health/patient fees.......
Financial settlements .............
Tobacco settlement.................
Escheated property.................
Miscellaneous agency............

Investment earnings................

Health insurance.....................
Oil spill ...ooeeiiiiiiiiiee
Public authorities....................
CasiNoO .....eeeeeeverecrieeeiee e

Other long-term receivables:

Medicaid .......cccceeveeeeiiieenennns
Public health/patient fees.......
Financial settlements .............
Appropriated loans.................
Miscellaneous agency............

Gross receivables ........cceeeeeeee.
Allowance for uncollectibles ...

Total other receivables.......

Federal Other Total

Special  Governmental Governmental

General Revenue Funds Activities
$ 980 $ 856 $ - $ 1,836
4 - 903 907
35 - 165 200
- - 379 379
234 - - 234
135 47 217 399
343 - - 343
446 - - 446
- - 10 10
79 - - 79
22 - - 22
294 8 84 386
2,572 911 1,758 5,241
102 188 - 290
- - 3 3
3 - 959 962
- - 115 115
63 231 1,016 1,310
- - 117 117
- - 14 14
168 419 2,224 2,811
2,740 1,330 3,982 8,052
(82) (288) (1,114) (1,484)
$ 2,658 § 1,042 § 2,868 § 6,568
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Other receivables at June 30, 2022 (except for the State Lottery, which is as of March 31, 2023) are
summarized as follows (amounts in millions):

Business-Type Activities:

Unemployment
Insurance June 30, 2022
Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total

Other current receivables:

Ticket salesS .......ccoevvvevvereernnene $ 381 $ - $ - $ - $ 381

Public health/patient fees.......... - - 1,376 - 1,376

Student loans............cccuveeeennnnenn. - - 90 4 94

Contributions ........ccceevveeeuneenen.. - 3,452 - - 3,452

Benefit overpayments............... - 602 - - 602

State agencies/municipalities.... - 14 - - 14

Other....coooeeeieieeeeeeeeeee, 9 57 430 595 1,091

Subtotal.......cccceeeerreeeccneecnnees 390 4,125 1,896 599 7,010

Allowance for uncollectibles...... (1) (1,769) (539) (99) (2,408)

Net current receivables .......... 389 2,356 1,357 500 4,602
Other long-term receivables:

Accounts, notes and loans ........ - - 69 4 73

Contributions..........ccceueeeeennenn. - - 29 - 29

Other.....oooeeviiiieeeeeee - - - - -

Subtotal........cccerrrericcscrnneccsnns - - 98 4 102

Allowance for uncollectibles...... - - (25) (1) (26)

Net long-term receivables ...... - - 73 3 76

Total other receivables....... $ 38 § 2356 $ 1,430 $ 503 $ 4,678




90 « Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 5 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2023 was as follows (amounts in millions):

Governmental Activities:

Depreciable and amortizable assets:

Buildings and building improvements.............
Land improvements...........ccoceeeververeenneenennnns
Infrastructure .......cocveevevienieeneececeees
Equipment .........ccooovoiiiiiiieeeeeee e
LSS ..eeuiiiniiiniieeieereeeeee e
Intangible assets — easements ........c..cccceeenenne,
Intangible assets — computer software.............

Intangible assets — subscription-based IT

AITANZEIMNENLS ..vvenveveeieeeenienietente e eeeeneeneens

Total depreciable and amortizable
assets

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization:

Buildings and building improvements.............
Land improvements............cecceeeeeveeneenenneenncns
Infrastructure ........cccceeveveeneneninencecciecee,

Intangible assets — easements .............ccueeevenen.
Intangible assets — computer software.............

Intangible assets — subscription-based IT

AITan@ements ..........cceeeeeiiiii,

Total accumulated depreciation and

amortization
Total depreciable and amortizable

assets, net

Nondepreciable and nonamortizable
assets:

Land preparation............c..cceevveeeenreenreecveenennns
Construction in progress (buildings) ...............

Construction in progress (roads and

BIid@es) . ccvveeeeeeieiieieee e
Infrastructure (roads and bridges)....................

Total nondepreciable and
nonamortizable assets

Governmental activities,
capital assets, net

Balance Balance
April 1, 2022, March 31,
as restated Additions Retirements 2023
14,510 $ 352 $ 125 14,737
893 56 2 947
541 22 3 560
1,128 62 92 1,098
1,922 667 91 2,498
205 - - 205
1,135 97 - 1,232
56 16 1 71
20,390 1,272 314 21,348
(9,057) (389) (85) (9,361)
(549) (32) 2) (579)
(191) (24) (1) (214)
(760) (73) (81) (752)
- (287) (18) (269)
(113) (10) - (123)
(674) (100) - (774)
- (18) 1) 17)
(11,344) (933) (188) (12,089)
9,046 339 126 9,259
4,303 24 1 4,326
4,299 39 - 4,338
886 702 302 1,286
1,794 1,073 586 2,281
74,987 633 46 75,574
86,269 2,471 935 87,805
95,315 $ 2,810 $ 1,061 97,064
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Business-Type Activities:

Balance
July 1, 2021, Balance
as restated Additions Retirements June 30, 2022
SUNY:
Depreciable and amortizable assets:
Infrastructure and land improvements............. $ 1,644 $ 46 $ - $ 1,690
Buildings ....c.ceoveeeieieieieieieeeeeeeee 16,249 436 7 16,678
Equipment and library books 3,216 217 69 3,364
LeaSES..c ettt 432 100 25 507
Total depreciable and amortizable assets .. 21,541 799 101 22,239
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization:
Infrastructure and land improvements............. (817) (69) - (886)
Buildings ....c.ceoveeeieieieieieeeeeeeee (6,164) (465) (6) (6,623)
Equipment and library books ...........ccccceeeenens (2,434) (179) (61) (2,552)
LRSS .ottt - (79) (25) (54)
Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization (9,415) (792) 92) (10,115)
Total depreciable and amortizable
assets, net 12,126 7 9 12,124
Nondepreciable assets:
Land ....ooeoeieieeeee 805 16 - 821
Construction in Progress ........ceceeeereereereennens 1,014 576 515 1,075
ATEWOTK .t 36 1 - 37
Total nondepreciable assets.........cccceeueeueranes 1,855 593 515 1,933
SUNY capital assets, net.......cceceervereruerernecas 13,981 600 524 14,057
CUNY:
Depreciable and amortizable assets:
Buildings and building improvements ........... 6,752 200 83 6,869
Land improvements............ccccevvevererenieenene 56 - - 56
Equipment.........coccoeeiieeniniiiiieneeeceee e 478 17 11 484
Infrastructure.........cccveveevevieeieieieceee e 164 1 - 165
LeaSes. .cuveiiiiiiiiiiie 527 - - 527
Intangible assets 252 2 - 254
Total depreciable and amortizable
assets 8,229 220 94 8,355
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization:
Buildings and building improvements ............ (3,518) (193) - (3,711)
Land improvements..........ccccoocveveevencenennenne (53) (H - (54)
Equipment........ccccoeeiiienieciiiienicee e (450) (12) - (462)
Infrastructure..........ccoecveeieveiienieeeee e (107) ®) - (115)
LRSS, .ottt - (76) - (76)
Intangible assets (100) (16) - (116)

Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization (4,228) (306) - (4,534)

Total depreciable and amortizable
assets, net 4,001 (86) 94 3,821
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Business-Type Activities (cont’d):

Balance
July 1, 2021, Balance
as restated Additions Deletions June 30, 2022

Nondepreciable assets:

Land.....cooeiiiiii 321 - - 321

Construction in progress..........veeeeeeerveeneennes 1,355 170 126 1,399

Artwork and historical treasures................... 10 - - 10

Total nondepreciable assets ...................... 1,686 170 126 1,730

CUNY capital assets, Net.......cceeerecrurcreenee 5,687 84 220 5,551

Lottery:

Leases ....coouveriiiniiiiiiic e 7 2 - 9

Total amortizable assets..........ccceeeueeeneeee. 7 2 - 9
Less accumulated depreciation and

amortization:

LEaSES .ottt - 2) - 2)

Total accumulated amortization .............. - 2) - 2)

Lottery amortizable assets, net................. 7 - - 7
Business-type activities,

capital assets, net $ 19,675 684 $ 744 $ 19,615

As of March 31, 2023 (business-type as of June 30, 2022 for SUNY and CUNY and March 31, 2023
for Lottery), the State had the following lease assets by major class of underlying asset (amounts in

millions):

Total
Governmental  Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Lease asset:

Lease buildings ..........ccooovevevvecveveecieeeenene, $ 2477 $ 980 $ 3,457
Less accumulated amortization.................... (265) (123) (388)
Lease buildings, net ................................. 2,212 857 3,069
Lease equipment..........cccceeeevveeecveeencneeennnenn. 7 54 61
Less accumulated amortization.................... (2) (8) (10)
Lease equipment, net.....................cc....... 5 46 51
Lease other.......ccceeeviieeniiieiiieeieeeeeen 14 9 23
Less accumulated amortization.................... (2) (1) (3)
Lease other,met....................coovvvnnnnnnnnnn. 12 8 20
Total 1ease aSSEtS ..cccveeeeerrreneeccrssneeeccssaneeee $ 2,229 § 911 § 3,140
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For the year ended March 31, 2023, governmental activities charged depreciation and amortization
expense to the following governmental functions (amounts in millions):

Subscription-
Based IT Total

Allocation of depreciation Arrangement  Governmental

and amortization: Capital Assets Lease Assets Asset Activities
Education .......c.ccceveveveenriinens $ 4 $ 9 § - $ 13
Public health ...........ccocevevnnee, 216 50 5 271
Public welfare ...........ccccooo...... 25 56 5 86
Public safety.........cccceevvieennnnnn, 170 23 6 199
Transportation.......................... 58 32 1 91
Environment and recreation..... 43 4 - 47
Support and regulate business.. 4 19 - 23
General government................. 108 94 1 203

Total depreciation and

amortization expense......... $ 628 $ 287 § 18 § 933

Business-type activities charged depreciation and amortization expense to the following business-type
functions (June 30, 2022 for SUNY and CUNY and March 31, 2023 for Lottery) (amounts in millions):

Total
Allocation of depreciation and Business-Type
amortization: Capital Assets Lease Assets Activities
SUNY .o, $ 713§ 79 8 792
CUNY i 230 76 306
Lottery ..ceveeeniieeiiiieeeiiieees - 2 2

Total depreciation and
amortization expense........... S 943 § 157 § 1,100
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NOTE 6 - Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the State, and constitutionally must
be repaid in equal annual principal installments or substantially level or declining debt service payments
beginning not more than one year after issuance of such bonds and must mature within 40 years after
issuance. The Debt Reform Act of 2000 further limits the maximum term of new State-supported debt
issued on and after April 1, 2000, including general obligation bonds, to a maximum term of 30 years.
Refer to Note 7 for further discussion of the Debt Reform Act of 2000. Changes for the year in bonds
payable were as follows (amounts in millions):

Outstanding Outstanding
April 1, March 31,
Purpose 2022 Issued Redeemed 2023
Accelerated capacity and transportation
improvements of the 1990s................... $ 8 §$ - $ 1 3 7
Clean water/clean air ...........ccccceevuvennenns 294 - 26 268
Environmental quality (1986):
Land acquisition, development,
restoration, and forestS..........cccceeeennnns 1 - - 1
Solid waste management ...................... 68 - 14 54
Environmental quality (1972):
Land and wetlands ..........ccccceeeevveennenns 3 - - 3
Water.....oooiiiiiiiieieee e 3 - - 3
Housing:
Low INCOME .....oocvvveiieiieiieieeiee 2 - 1 1
Middle iIncome .......ceeeeveeenieeeniieeiees 2 - 2 -
Pure waters.........cooeveeviiiiiniiei 13 - 2 11

Transportation capital facilities:
Energy conservation through improved

transSportation .........cceeeeeveeeeveeerveeenneenns 2 - 1 1
Rebuild New York transportation

infrastructure renewal:

Highways, parkways, and bridges ...... 1 - 1 -
Rapid transit, rail, and aviation........... 2 - 1 1
Rebuild and Renew New York
transportation:
Highway facilities ..........c.ccoeeeeeveennnne 514 - 46 468
Canals and waterways............cccceeuvenns 6 - 2 4
AVIALION ..o 39 - 2 37
Mass transit - DOT ........cccccvvveeveeeneen. 12 - 1 11
Mass transit - MTA........cceevienieennnne 664 - 21 643
Rail and port.......cccecevevcieeeiieeeieeee, 85 - 6 79
Smart Schools Bond Act.........c.cccueuneee.e. 277 - 33 244
K1) 7 | $ 1,996 $ - $ 160 § 1,836

Debt service expenditures (principal and interest) related to the above general obligation bonds during
the year were approximately $220 million. Federal subsidies related to the interest payments made
during the year on Build America Bonds were $4.4 million. The total amount of general obligation
bonds authorized but not issued at March 31, 2023 was $6.4 billion.
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Debt service requirements for general obligation bonds in future years, which are financed by transfers
from the General Fund to the General Debt Service Fund, are as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2024 ... $ 147 $ 55 $ 202
2025 172 50 222
2026 164 46 210
2027 o 175 41 216
2028 160 35 195
2029-2033 .....coeeneeee. 542 117 659
2034-2038 ................. 311 56 367
2039-2043 ..o 161 13 174
2044-2048 ................. 4 - 4
Total....ccovueeeerurecnnnnes $ 1,836 $ 413 § 2,249

Debt service requirements were calculated based upon actual rates ranging from 0.53 percent to 5.62

percent.
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NOTE 7 - Other Financing Arrangements
Governmental Activities Debt

The State has entered into contractual financing arrangements with certain public benefit corporations
and other entities for various capital assets, local assistance payments and deficit financing. Under these
agreements, generally, construction costs are initially paid by the State from appropriations (reported as
capital construction expenditures in the governmental funds). These appropriations are then repaid to
the State from the proceeds of bonds issued by the public benefit corporations or other entities (reported
as financing arrangements in the governmental funds). The State becomes the tenant of the facility
under a financing agreement, which provides for the payment of rentals sufficient to cover the related
bond debt service and for the passage of title to the State after the bonds have been repaid.

The State has also entered into contractual obligation financing arrangements (also referred to as
“service contract bonds”’) with certain public benefit corporations that have issued bonds to finance past
State budgetary deficits, grants to local governments and various special project initiatives undertaken
in partnership with private entities, including commercial enterprises, for both capital and operating
purposes. The terms of these arrangements require the State to fund the debt service requirements of
the specific debt issued by these entities.

Chapter 59 of the Laws of 2000 enacted the Debt Reform Act (Act) which applies to all new State-
supported debt issued on and after April 1, 2000. The Act imposes statutory limitations which restrict
the issuance of State-supported debt to capital purposes only and establishes a maximum term of
30 years for such debt. The Act also imposes phased-in caps that ultimately limit the amount of State-
supported debt issued on and after April 1, 2000 to 4 percent of State personal income, and limit State-
supported debt service on debt issued on and after April 1, 2000 to 5 percent of total governmental funds
receipts. The Act requires that the limitations be calculated by October 31% of each year using the State-
supported debt outstanding and State-supported debt service amounts from the previous fiscal year. As
of March 31, 2022, the cumulative debt outstanding and debt service caps were at 4 and 5 percent, and
there was $41.8 billion of State-supported debt outstanding applicable to the debt reform cap, which
was about $19.1 billion below the statutory debt outstanding limitation. The debt service cost on this
new debt was $4.8 billion, about $7.4 billion below the statutory debt service limitation. The Act does
not apply to debt that is not considered State-supported and therefore does not encompass State-
guaranteed debt, moral obligation debt, and contingent-contractual obligation financing.

State legislation enacted in connection with the Enacted Budgets for the 2020-21 and 2021-22 fiscal
years suspended the Debt Reform Act as part of the State response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Accordingly, any State-supported debt issued in the 2020-21 and 2021-22 fiscal years is not limited to
capital purposes and is not counted towards the statutory caps on debt outstanding and debt service. In
addition, debt issuances undertaken by the State for MTA capital projects in the 2021-22 fiscal year may
be issued with maximum maturities longer than 30 years. This change allows bonds to be issued over
the full useful life of the assets being financed, subject to federal tax law limitations, and is consistent
with the rules that would have been in effect if the projects had been directly financed by the MTA.

The State and some of its public authorities which issue debt on behalf of the State have purchased
letters of credit and standby purchase agreements from various providers to ensure that the liquidity
needs of certain variable rate demand bonds can be met. As of March 31, 2023, these agreements
covered $75 million of variable rate demand bonds outstanding, with costs of 45 basis points of the
amount of credit provided and an expiration date of June 5, 2026.
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In 2003, the State enacted legislation creating the TSFC to finance a portion of its future revenues
expected to be received under the 1998 Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) with the settling cigarette
manufacturers. The MSA revenues were intended to compensate the State for all claims for past,
present, and future health care costs originating from health care expenses incurred by the State from
the effects of cigarette smoking by its citizens. In accordance with the legislation, TSFC issued
$4.6 billion in bonds to finance a payment of $4.2 billion to the State’s General Fund, enabling the State
to finance a portion of the budget deficits occurring in fiscal years ending March 31, 2003 through
March 31, 2005, to establish $449 million in debt service reserves, and to provide $129 million to
finance a portion of the first debt service payments due on TSFC bonds. In accordance with the
legislation, all future revenues from the 1998 MSA would be used to repay the debt until it was fully
retired, after which all MSA revenues would revert to the State. The State agreed to make additional
payments for TSFC debt service, subject to annual appropriation, from other sources if the future
revenues proved insufficient to meet TSFC debt service requirements of the State. However, the State
was never called upon to make any payments related to this contingency agreement. In the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2018, bonds secured by annual payments from tobacco manufacturers under the MSA
were retired, with no remaining debt service requirements to be paid on these bonds. The fiscal year
2018 Enacted Budget authorized and directed that MSA payments be used to help defray costs of the
State’s takeover of Medicaid costs for counties and New York City. During the fiscal year, pledged
MSA revenues of $379 million were recognized and $362 million of Medicaid payments were made.

Prior to 1996, certain payments due to the State’s local government units in the first quarter of the State’s
fiscal year exceeded available State funds. To meet these payments in the past, the State issued short-
term tax and revenue anticipation notes called the annual “Spring Borrowing.” Local Government
Assistance Corporation (LGAC) was established in 1990 to issue up to $4.7 billion in long-term debt to
finance certain local assistance aid payments, plus amounts necessary to fund a capital reserve fund and
other issuance costs. Issuance of the entire $4.7 billion bond authorization as of March 31, 1996
eliminated the need for the State's annual Spring Borrowing. Pursuant to the legislation establishing
LGAC, the State deposits an amount equal to a 1 percent rate of taxation of the total State sales and use
tax collected into Other Governmental Funds (Local Government Assistance Tax Fund) to make
payments to LGAC for debt service on its bonds and other expenses of LGAC. Amounts in excess of
LGAC’s needs are subsequently transferred to the General Fund. Payments to LGAC are subject to
annual appropriations by the Legislature. LGAC’s bondholders do not have a lien on monies deposited
in the Local Government Assistance Tax Fund. On April 1, 2021, LGAC bonds were fully retired. The
Local Government Assistance Tax Fund was terminated on October 1, 2022 after all liabilities from
LGAC had been met.

Chapter 62 and Chapter 63 of the Laws of 2003 enacted, among other provisions, the Municipal
Assistance Refinancing Act (Refinancing Act), effective July 1, 2003 and deemed repealed July 1, 2034.
The Refinancing Act created an incentive for the State to seek an appropriation to provide $170 million
per year, from Other Governmental Funds (Local Government Assistance Tax Fund (Fund) to the City
of New York (City) for each of the City’s fiscal years beginning July 1, 2003 and ending June 30, 2034.
The Refinancing Act requires LGAC to annually certify $170 million so that the State, subject to annual
State appropriation by the Legislature, can provide for a series of payments to the City or the Mayor’s
assignee in each City fiscal year, beginning July 1, 2003 and ending June 30, 2034, totaling $5.3 billion.
From the City’s fiscal year 2005 to 2020, each year the Legislature enacted an appropriation of $170
million and LGAC certified the release of the funds before the $170 million State payment was made.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022, pursuant to Chapter 59 of the Laws of 2021 enacted
provisions, LGAC certified the release for the State payment of $46 million to the City and the remaining
outstanding bonds under the Refinancing Act were satisfied by the State-supported bond proceeds.
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Chapter 56 of the Laws of 1993 authorized the New York State Thruway Authority to issue up to
$2.93 billion in bonds for State highway and bridge projects (the amount of authorized bonds has been
raised six times, most recently in 2023, up to $20.6 billion). The bonds are secured and funded by a
dedication of portions of the State’s petroleum business tax, motor fuel tax, highway and fuel use tax,
motor vehicle registration fees, auto rental tax, transmission and transportation tax and certain
miscellaneous revenues.

In 2001, the State enacted legislation providing for the issuance of State Personal Income Tax Revenue
Bonds (PIT bonds) to be issued by several State public benefit corporations. The original legislation
provided that 25 percent of personal income tax receipts, excluding refunds owed to taxpayers, be
deposited to the Revenue Bond Tax Fund (RBTF), which is an account of the General Debt Service
Fund. These deposits are used to make debt service payments on PIT bonds, with excess amounts
returned to the General Fund. In the event that the State Legislature fails to appropriate amounts required
to make debt service payments on the PIT bonds, or if required payments have not been made when due,
the original legislation required that deposits continue to be made to the RBTF until amounts on deposit
equal the greater of 25 percent of personal income tax receipts or $6 billion. Amounts in excess of that
needed for current debt service are subsequently transferred to the General Fund. Effective April 1,
2018, enacted legislation amends the State Finance Law provisions to increase the level of personal
income tax receipts to be deposited into the RBTF to 50 percent, in addition to a requirement that 50
percent of the Employer Compensation Expense Program (ECEP) receipts and 50 percent of the Pass-
Through Entity Tax (PTET) receipts are deposited into the RBTF for the purposes of making debt
service payments on PIT bonds. The legislation also provides that personal income tax receipts, ECEP
and PTET receipts continue to be deposited to the RBTF equal to 40 percent of the aggregate annual
receipts or $12 billion, whichever is greater, in the event the State Legislature fails to appropriate
amounts required to make debt service payments on the PIT bonds, or if required payments have not
been made when due. The first PIT bonds were issued on May 9, 2002, and approximately $43.6 billion
issued for both governmental and business-type activities were outstanding as of March 31, 2023.

In 2013, the State enacted legislation providing for the issuance of State Sales Tax Revenue Bonds to
be issued by certain State public benefit corporations. The legislation created the Sales Tax Revenue
Bond Tax Fund, an account of the General Debt Service Fund, to provide for the debt service payments
on these bonds. The bonds are secured by the pledge of payments from this fund, which will receive 25
percent of the State’s sales and use tax receipts. Upon the satisfaction of all of the obligations and
liabilities of LGAC on April 1, 2021, this share increases to 50 percent of the State’s sales tax receipts.
Amounts in excess of that needed for current debt service will be transferred to the General Fund. The
first sales tax bonds were issued on October 24, 2013, and approximately $10.1 billion issued for both
governmental and business-type activities were outstanding as of March 31, 2023.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 88, Certain
Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements (GASBS 88).
GASBS 88 requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial
statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified
in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant
termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses.
For notes to financial statements, GASBS 88 also requires that existing and additional information for
direct borrowings and direct placements of debt be presented separately from other debt.
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Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt

Changes in governmental activities long-term debt for the year were as follows (amounts in millions):

Outstanding Outstanding
April 1, March 31,
Issuer 2022 Issued Redeemed 2023
Public Benefit Corporations:
Dormitory Authority ...........cccceeeevevennne. $ 24,010 $ - $ 5072 $ 18,938
Municipal Bond Bank Agency................ 30 - 30 -
Thruway Authority.........cccceviiiinnnnen. 2,699 2,751 433 5,017
Urban Development Corporation -
Direct Placement...........cccooeeviiiniennns 119 - 119 -
Urban Development Corporation
= Other ..o, 18,815 1,453 3,417 16,851
Total uceeueeereeneennnecnenneeceensnecsnensanenne $ 45,673 $ 4204 § 9,071 $ 40,806

Debt service expenditures (principal and interest) for the aforementioned obligations during the fiscal
year were $10 billion. These expenditures were financed primarily by the revenues reported in the
governmental funds. Federal subsidies related to the interest payments made during the year on Build
America Bonds and Qualified School Construction Bonds were $73 million ($31.7 million related to
governmental activities and $41.3 million for business-type activities related to SUNY and CUNY).

Certain of the underlying bond indentures require the maintenance of various reserves. Such amounts
totaled $136 million at March 31, 2023 and are reported as cash and investments in the General Debt
Service Fund and appropriate Other Governmental Funds, with a corresponding restriction of fund
balance.

Following are summaries of the future minimum rental payments for long-term debt, presenting direct
placements of debt separately from all other forms of debt in compliance with GASBS 88. The actual
amounts of future interest to be paid are affected by changes in variable interest rates. Fixed rate interest
ranges from 0.62 percent to 5.88 percent and variable rate interest is at 3.86 percent (amounts in
millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2024, $ 927 § 1,784  $ 2,711
2025 e, 914 1,737 2,651
2026..c.cciiiiinen. 1,462 1,694 3,156
2027 oo, 666 1,629 2,295
2028, 2,640 1,592 4,232
2029-2033 ............ 11,224 6,346 17,570
2034-2038 ............ 7,745 4,177 11,922
2039-2043 ............ 5,691 2,671 8,362
2044-2048 ............ 5,764 1,472 7,236
2049-2053 ............ 2,752 456 3,208
2054-2058 ............ 938 126 1,064
2059-2063 ............ 83 4 87

Total.........ccuueen... $ 40806 $ 23,688 § 64,494
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Summarized by bond type/purpose, the schedule below details outstanding bonds that have assets
pledged as collateral for debt and contain terms specified in debt agreements related to events of default,

termination events and subjective acceleration clauses that have finance-related consequences.

Subjective
Bonds Assets Pledged Events of Termination Acceleration
Qutstanding as Collateral Default Events Clauses

Dormitory Authority:
Personal Income Tax (Multiple

Purposes) ....ccocceevverieiiiiieneee $ 14,891 (1) @) ) (10)
Sales Tax (Multiple Purposes)......... 3,974 2) @) 9 (10)
Upstate Community Colleges.......... 4 3) ®) 9 (11)
City University Community

Colleges ...ccvvvveevienieiieieiee e 1 4 ®) ©) 11
Department of Health ..................... 68 (5) (8) 9 (11)
Urban Development

Corporation:
Personal Income Tax (Multiple

Purposes) .....ccccoeeeeeeeieieniene 13,653 (1) @) Q) (10)
Sales Tax (Multiple Purposes)......... 3,198 2) (7N ) (10)
Thruway Authority:
Personal Income Tax (Multiple

Purposes) ....ccccevvevienieeienien, 4,794 (1 @) 9 (10)
Dedicated Highway & Bridge.......... 223 (6) (N 9 (10)

Total $ 40,806

Footnotes for the column identified as Assets Pledged as Collateral:

(1

2)

)
“4)
)

(6)

Effective April 1, 2018, a statutory allocation of 50 percent (previously 25 percent) of State of New York personal
income tax receipts are deposited into the Revenue Bond Tax Fund which is held jointly by the State's Commissioner
of Taxation and Finance and the State Comptroller. Also added was a requirement to deposit 50 percent of the New
York State Employer Compensation Expense Program receipts and 50 percent of New York State Pass-Through
Entity Tax receipts as additional revenue sources. Annual State appropriations are required prior to any payments
out of the account.

Initially a statutory allocation of 1 percent rate of New York State sales taxation receipts are deposited in the Sales
Tax Revenue Bond Tax Fund which is held jointly by the State's Commissioner of Taxation and Finance and the
State Comptroller. The 1 percent rate allocation of sales taxation receipts are increased to 2 percent after all New
York Local Government Assistance Corporation bonds were retired on April 1, 2021. Annual State appropriations
are required prior to any payments out of the account. Should the balance be insufficient to make financing
agreement payments that have been appropriated, the State Comptroller is required to transfer from the State’s
General Fund amounts necessary to meet the cash requirements.

Community College Tuition and Instructional Income Fund held by the State's Commissioner of Taxation and
Finance where all monies appropriated annually by the State are to be deposited.

Secured by a pledge of all revenues received by the City University Construction Fund and an annual State and City
appropriation. Certain bonds are also secured by a direct pay letter of credit.

Health Income Fund held by the State Comptroller where all patient care revenues are required to be deposited, as
well as an annual State appropriation. The State Comptroller is required to maintain an amount sufficient to meet
the next succeeding six months financing obligations before transferring the balance to the medical care facilities.
Secured by a pledge of Cooperative Agreement Payments to be made by the State to the Authority from funds in
the Dedicated Highway and Bridge Trust Fund held in the joint custody of the State’s Commissioner of Taxation
and Finance and the State Comptroller.

Footnotes for the column identified as Events of Default:

(7
®)

There are no events of default that cause additional financial consequences. Bondholders continue to be entitled to
receive all principal and interest that is due.

Failure of timely payment of amounts due and meeting all bond covenants, conditions, agreements, and provisions
in the respective resolutions; or tax exempt bonds have been deemed taxable.
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Footnotes for the column identified as Termination Events:

(9) There are no termination events with financial consequences.

Footnotes for the column identified as Subjective Acceleration Clauses:

(10) The bond resolution does not permit the trustee or bondholders to declare the bonds immediately due and payable.
Bondholders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of bonds outstanding may bring an action
or suit to enforce the rights of the bondholders.

(11) Upon the written request of bondholders of not less than 25 percent in principal outstanding, the Trustee may
declare all principal and interest on the outstanding bonds to be due immediately after a thirty day notice period.

Refunding

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the State, acting through certain public authorities,
refunded $988 million in existing fixed and variable rate bonds by issuing refunding bonds in a par
amount of $899 million at a $92 million premium and releasing a net amount of $27 million from
reserves and debt service accounts. The result will produce an estimated gain of $105 million in future
cash flow, with an estimated present value gain of $89 million. The differences between the
reacquisition prices and the net carrying values of the refunded bonds generated deferred accounting
gains, resulting in deferred inflows of resources. The accounting gain was $95.6 million, of which $86.5
million was deferred and will be amortized as an adjustment to interest expense in future years. The
impact of the refunding issues is presented in the following table (amounts in millions):

Present
Refunding  Refunded  Cash Flow Value
Issue Description Amount Amount Gain (Loss) Gain
Thruway Authority PIT General Purpose
Bonds Series 2022A.........cccocoeeeeeeeennn. $ 267 $ 320§ 39§ 34
Urban Development Corporation PIT
General Purpose Bond Series 2022A.......... 611 648 67 55
Urban Development Corporation PIT
General Purpose Bond Series 2022B........... 21 20 (1) -
17 | $ 899 § 988 $ 105 § 89

Defeasance Using Only Existing Resources

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the State, acting through certain public authorities,
deposited $6 billion of cash into irrevocable escrow accounts for the defeasance of debt to provide debt
service savings and significant debt cap relief. The differences between the reacquisition prices and the
net carrying values of the defeased bonds generated a net gain of $402 million. The gain was recognized
in the Statement of Activities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023.

The State defeased certain of its obligations, whereby proceeds of new obligations or cash were placed
in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased obligations. At
March 31, 2023, approximately $5.9 billion of such defeased obligations were outstanding. The assets
and liabilities are not reported in the accompanying basic financial statements.
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Business-Type Activities Debt

The State has issued bonds for SUNY educational facilities through the Dormitory Authority of the State
of New York (DASNY) and the Urban Development Corporation (UDC). SUNY residence halls are
issued through DASNY. CUNY Senior Colleges educational facilities have bonds issued through
DASNY. Such debt, totaling $15.7 billion, is funded by payments from the State’s General Fund. The
remainder of the debt of SUNY and CUNY ($302 million) is funded from student fees and other
operating aid provided by the State.

The following represents year-end principal balances (at June 30, 2022 for SUNY and CUNY) for
financing arrangements for business-type activities (amounts in millions):

Beginning
Outstanding, Ending
as restated Issued Redeemed  Outstanding
DASNY and UDC:
SUNY educational facilities ............... $ 9,828 $ 1,935 $ 1,924 $ 9,839
Unamortized premium ..............e....... 969 255 221 1,003
SUNY residence halls.......cccoouuueeeeen, 5 - 5 -
Unamortized premium .............c.ee....... 1 - 1 -
CUNY educational facilities............... 4,401 672 693 4,380
Unamortized premium ..........c..ccoueeeee. 449 101 71 479
Total DASNY and UDC ................. 15,653 2,963 2,915 15,701
SUNY installation commitments.......... 134 2 13 123
SUNY other long-term debt.................. 95 - 8 87
CUNY installation commitments.......... - 33 - 33
CUNY mortgage loan commitments ... 61 - 2 59
11771 $ 15943 § 2998 § 2938 § 16,003

The following represents a year-end summary at June 30, 2022 of future minimum debt service
payments on the bonds issued by DASNY and UDC for SUNY, including interest rates ranging from
.31 percent to 5.63 percent (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2023 e $ 283  § 453  § 736
2024 ..o 231 438 669
2025 e 297 427 724
2026 387 411 798
2027 i 400 393 793
2028-2032 ......coeueeeee 1,804 1,694 3,498
2033-2037 ..covveenennen 1,706 1,262 2,968
2038-2042 .......c........ 1,995 844 2,839
2043-2047 ..ccuvvennne. 1,940 392 2,332
2048-2052 .......ccuue.e. 796 55 851

Total.....covueerueecnnennee $ 9,839 § 6,369 $ 16,208
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The following represents a year-end summary at June 30, 2022 of future minimum debt service
payments on the bonds issued by DASNY for CUNY Senior Colleges, including interest rates ranging
from .7 percent to 5.6 percent (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 e $ 72 $ 203 $ 275
2024 169 200 369
2025 128 192 320
2026 142 185 327
2027 i 183 179 362
2028-2032 .....cocveuennns 839 763 1,602
2033-2037 ..ceeeennenn 941 556 1,497
2038-2042 .....cceeeuenne 1,335 326 1,661
2043-2047 .....ooovevnenns 568 66 634
2048-2050 .....cocvevuennes 3 - 3
Total .....cevueeverunenne. $ 4,380 $ 2,670 $ 7,050

Future debt service on the bonds issued by DASNY for CUNY Senior Colleges, together with the net
swap amount, is calculated assuming current interest rates remain the same. The actual amounts of
future interest to be paid are affected by changes in variable interest rates. The actual amounts of future
net swap payments are also affected by changes in published indexes — the LIBOR and the SIFMA
floating rate.

The following represents a year-end summary at June 30, 2022 for SUNY and CUNY of future
minimum debt service payments on installation commitments, mortgage loan commitments, other State-
supported debt and other long-term debt for business-type activities (amounts in millions):

SUNY CUNY Total

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 e, $ 18 § 5 8§ 4 1§ 22§ 6
2024 o, 19 5 5 1 24 6
2025 e, 18 5 5 1 23 6
2026 ..o, 16 4 5 - 21 4
2027 i, 15 3 5 - 20 3
2028-2032............. 59 13 68 1 127 14
2033-2037............. 38 7 - - 38 7
2038-2042............. 27 2 - - 27 2
Total .....cevuveeneene $ 210  § 4 3 922 S 4 9 302 $ 48

The liabilities for mortgage loans, other State-supported debt and other long-term debt are reported as
other financing arrangements in the Enterprise Funds.

Debt service expenditures (principal and interest) for all of the aforementioned obligations during the
year ended June 30, 2022 totaled $1.9 billion.
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During SUNY’’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, Personal Income Tax (PIT) Bonds and Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds were issued with a par amount of $1.9 billion at a premium of $254.9 million for the
purpose of financing capital construction and major rehabilitation for educational facilities as well as to
refund $1.1 billion of SUNY’s existing educational facilities obligations. The refunding will produce

an estimated savings of $198.7 million in future cash flows, with an estimated present value gain of
$206.9 million.

In prior years, SUNY defeased various obligations, whereby proceeds of new obligations were placed
in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased obligations.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased obligations are not included in
SUNY’s financial statements. As of June 30, 2022, outstanding educational facility obligations of $1.3
billion and outstanding residence halls obligations of $692.2 million were considered defeased.

During CUNY's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, DASNY issued refunding bonds with a par value of
$672.2 million and original issue premium of $100.9 million on behalf of CUNY Senior Colleges. Bond
proceeds of $545.1 million were used to defease $544.1 million of existing debt. Under the terms of the
resolutions for the defeased bonds, bond proceeds were paid directly to the bondholders of the defeased
bonds. As a result, the refunded debt is considered defeased. The remaining unamortized premium and
discount of $39.1 million are deferred and amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the
remaining life of the old debt or new debt, whichever is shorter. There were no remaining unamortized
bond issue costs, underwriter discounts, or any other related costs affiliated with the refunded debt.

At June 30, 2022, a total of $570 million of previously outstanding CUNY Senior Colleges debt was
defeased.

Interest Rate Exchange Agreements (Swaps)

Article 5-D of the State Finance Law authorized the use of a limited amount of swaps equal to 15 percent
of statutorily defined State-supported debt.

The statutory authorization for the use of swaps also requires that each of the swaps entered into meet
the following requirements:

e Counterparties have a credit rating from at least one NRSRO that is within the two highest
investment grade categories;

¢ An independent financial advisor certifies that the terms and conditions of all swaps reflect a fair
value;

e A standardized interest rate exchange agreement is utilized;

e Monthly reports are issued by the public benefit corporations to provide monitoring and swap
performance assessment; and

e The agreements comply with uniform interest rate exchange guidelines.

Currently, there are no swap agreements outstanding as of March 31, 2023.



State of New York « 105
Leases

Governmental Activities — Leases

A lease is defined as a contractual agreement that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s
nonfinancial asset, for a minimum contractual period of greater than one year, in an exchange or
exchange-like transaction. The State, as a lessee, leases a significant amount of nonfinancial assets such
as real property, land, equipment, and infrastructure. The related obligations are presented in the
amounts equal to the present value of lease payments payable during the remaining lease term. As the
lessee, a lease liability and the associated lease asset is recognized on the government-wide Statement
of Net Position.

As of March 31, 2023, the State had minimum principal and interest payment requirements for its leasing
activities, with a remaining term in excess of one year, as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2024 oo $ 260 S 34 $ 294
2025 i 233 30 263
2026 ..o 225 27 252
2027 oo 212 24 236
2028 i 199 21 220
2029-2033................ 758 68 826
2034-2038........ccu..... 270 23 293
2039-2043................ 17 8 25
2044-2048................ 6 7 13
2049-2053........cc.... 8 7 15
2054-2058........ccu..... 9 6 15
2059-2063................ 7 5 12
2064-2068................ 10 4 14
2069-2073................ 12 3 15
20744 i 31 3 34
Total......ccoeeeuernnen. $ 2,257  $ 270  $ 2,527

Additionally, the State currently has no variable payment clauses associated with its lease arrangements,
and did not incur expenses with its leasing activities related to residual value guarantees, lease
termination penalties or losses due to impairment. Furthermore, there are currently no agreements that
include sale-leaseback and lease-leaseback transactions. The State had no commitments for leases that
have not commenced as of March 31, 2023, nor lease arrangements with third parties where it is a
sublessee.

The State is also committed under numerous Customer Installation Commitments with the New York
Power Authority (NYPA) for energy efficiency projects, and other leases for computer network and
telecommunications equipment. At March 31, 2023, the State had approximately $1 million
outstanding, which is expected to be paid during the next fiscal year.
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Business-Type Activities — Leases

As of June 30,2022, SUNY and CUNY reported minimum principal and interest payment requirements
for its leasing activities, with a remaining term in excess of one year, as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 e, $ 136 §$ 32§ 168
2024 .., 131 27 158
2025 i 121 24 145
2026 .o 116 20 136
2027 o 101 16 117
2028-2032........uu.. 309 37 346
2033-2037....uvveeennns 94 12 106
2038-2042................ 40 4 44
2043-2047 ....ccceuvenn. 11 1 12
2048-2052......c.cuuuee. 3 - 3
Total....cccoverercunnenns $ 1,062 $ 173  § 1,235

As of March 31, 2023, Lottery reported minimum principal and interest payment requirements for its
leasing activities, with a remaining term in excess of one year, as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2024 .o $ 2§ - $ 2
2025 e 1 - 1
2026 ..o 1 - 1
2027 e 1 - 1
2028 i 1 - 1
2029-2033........c..... 1 - 1
111 71 D $ 7 S - $ 7

Business-type activities reported $14 million in variable expenses associated with its lease
arrangements, however, no expenses were incurred with its leasing activities related to residual value
guarantees, lease termination penalties or losses due to impairment. Furthermore, there are currently no
agreements that include sale-leaseback and lease-leaseback transactions. There were no commitments
for leases that have not commenced as of June 30, 2022 or March 31, 2023, or lease arrangements with
third parties where SUNY, CUNY or Lottery were a sublessee.

Subscription-Based IT Arrangements

A subscription-based IT arrangement (SBITA) is defined as a contractual agreement that conveys
control of the right-to-use another entity’s IT asset, alone, or in conjunction with a tangible capital asset,
for a minimum contractual period of greater than one year, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
The State enters into a significant amount of these SBITAs such as software licenses downloaded or
available remotely, data storage, and hardware necessary to use the IT asset. The related obligations are
presented in the amounts equal to the present value of SBITA payments, payable during the remaining
SBITA term. As the lessee, the State recognizes a SBITA liability and an associated intangible-SBITA
asset on the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
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As of March 31, 2023, the State had minimum principal and interest payment requirements for SBITA,
with a remaining term in excess of one year, as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2024 o $ 15 $ 1 $ 16
2025 e 14 - 14
2026 ..o 12 - 12
2027 e 5 - 5
2028 i 1 - 1
2029-2033........c....... 4 - 4
111 71 D $ 51§ 1 S 52

The State has a variety of variable payment clauses within its SBITA, including variable payments based
on future performance, usage of the underlying asset, number of software licenses, or hours of access
necessary. Such amounts are recognized as an expense in the period in which the obligation for those
payments is incurred. Components of variable payments that are fixed in substance, are included in the
measurement of the SBITA liability presented in the table above. During the year, the State recorded
$47 million for variable payments related to SBITA. As of March 31, 2023, the State had no losses
reported from impairments of SBITA or payments for arrangements that have not yet commenced.

Governmental Activities - Collateralized Borrowings

In December 2013, $370 million of Employer Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A, were issued
by DASNY. These bonds are special revenue obligations of DASNY. Principal and interest on the
Series 2013 A Bonds are payable from employer assessments to be assessed and collected by the Chair
of the Workers” Compensation Board. At March 31, 2023, principal and interest outstanding were $252
million and $83 million, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments will continue through
December 1, 2034.

The State determined that these transactions meet the criteria for collateralized borrowings under
GASBS No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of
Assets and Future Revenues, since the pledged revenues are formally committed to directly collateralize
or secure debt of a component unit. These Employer Assessment Revenue Bonds are reported as
collateralized borrowings in the State’s financial statements (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2024 ..o $ 17  $ 11 $ 28
2025 i 17 11 28
2026 ...coiiiiieieeene 18 10 28
2027 e 19 9 28
2028 i 19 9 28
2029-2033................ 110 29 139
2034-2038........ccn..... 52 4 56
Total.......cccerueeeneen. $ 252§ 8 S 335

Business-Type Activities - Collateralized Borrowings

In March 2013, the State enacted legislation that authorized SUNY to assign all its rights, title and
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interest in revenues of certain residence halls to DASNY, and authorized DASNY to issue SUNY
Dormitory Facilities Revenue Bonds payable from and secured by the residence hall revenues assigned
to it by SUNY. The legislation also created a special fund to be held by the State’s Commissioner of
Taxation and Finance on behalf of DASNY. All residence hall revenues collected by SUNY are required
to be deposited in this special fund.

The outstanding obligations under these bonds are reported as a collateralized borrowing, since these
bonds are not payable from any money of SUNY or the State, and neither SUNY nor the State has any
obligation to make any payments with respect to the debt service on the bonds. The pledged revenues
recognized during SUNY's fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 amounted to $515.4 million. There were
principal payments of $320.4 million and interest payments of $76.8 million during the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022. During 2022, bonds with a par amount of $345.6 million were issued for the
purpose of refinancing existing residence hall obligations bonds. These bonds are special obligations
of DASNY payable solely from the dormitory facilities revenues collected by SUNY as agent for
DASNY. At June 30, 2022, total principal and interest outstanding on the bonds were $1.9 billion and
$730.5 million, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments will continue through July 1, 2049
(amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2023 e $ - $ 69 $ 69
2024 ..o 94 66 160
2025 e 95 62 157
2026 oo 98 58 156
2027 o 103 55 158
2028-2032.....ccvenuee. 528 218 746
2033-2037 ..oovverennee 467 131 598
2038-2042................. 387 56 443
2043-2047 ..cuveueenee. 119 14 133
2048-2052.....ccuvenee. 27 1 28

Total........ceeueeuennee $ 1,918 § 730 § 2,648
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NOTE 8 - Liabilities
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following table summarizes changes in long-term liabilities for both governmental activities and
business-type activities (amounts in millions):

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities — Governmental Activities

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Description Balance  Additions Deletions Balance  One Year
Tax refunds payable........cccceeveueeee $ 1,783 § - $ 3§ 1,780 $ -
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and fringe benefits ........... $ 179 § 14 $ - $ 193 -
Compensated absences................. 1,192 - 126 1,066 65
Medicaid.......ccoceeveerierieecieeee, 326 1,498 153 1,671 76
Health insurance............c.cccceeneen. 192 - - 192 -
Litigation ......c.ccceevveeeiieenieeeeieeens 599 28 582 45 31
Workers’ compensation reserve ... 2,984 - 236 2,748 569
Due to component unit.................. 43 - 43 - -
Miscellaneous..........ccceeeveerveennnnnn. 11 11 11 11 2

Total.....cuueueenennenneenennecneennen. $ 5526 $ 1,551 § 1,151 § 5,926 § 743
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Due
Beginning Ending Within
Description Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Payable to local governments:
Education aid...........coooeveveivviviiieieieeeeeen $ 292§ 13§ - $ 305 -
Medicaid.......cooovviiiiiieiieieeeeee e 1,175 - 1,175 - -
Miscellaneous ........coceveereerernieneenceneeeeae 52 79 52 79 -
Total $ 1,519 $ 922 $ 1,227 $ 384 -
Due to federal government.............cccceuuee. $ 500 $ - $ 100 $ 400 100
Net pension liability $ 389 § - $ 276 $ 113 -
Other postemployment benefits .......cccceseeuns $ 52,062 $ 3,525 § 2971 § 52,616 -
Pollution remediation $ 1,055 $ 256 $ 160 $ 1,151 186
Asset retirement obligations..........ceeeeeeueenes $ - $ 65 $ - $ 65 4
Leases $ 1,922 § 667 $ 332§ 2,257 260
Subscription-based IT arrangements ......... $ 56 $ 16 § 21§ 51 15
Collateralized borrowings.........ceceeeseesvesseeses $ 268 $ - $ 16 $ 252 17
General obligation bonds payable:
General obligation bonds payable ................ $ 1,996 $ - $ 160 3 1,836 147
Deferred amounts:
Unamortized premiums ...........cocceeveeeeenen. 94 - 9 85 9
Total $ 2,090 $ - $ 169 $ 1,921 156
Other financing arrangements:
Installation commitments .............ccccceeveneenen. $ 32 3 - $ 31 $ 1 1
Other financing arrangements-Direct
Placements.........ccoeeveereenienceneee e 119 - 119 - -
Other financing arrangements-Other ............ 45,554 4,204 8,952 40,806 927
Deferred amounts:
Unamortized premiums ...........cccvevveeevnnen. 5,928 294 1,007 5,215 261
Unamortized discounts ............cecveverevenen. 3) - @) 2) (1)
Total $ 51,630 $ 4,498 $ 10,108 $ 46,020 1,188
Derivative instruments $ - $ - $ - $ - -

Total due within one year .........cceeeeeureees S 2,669
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities — Business-Type Activities

Beginning Due
Balance, Ending Within
Description as restated Additions Deletions Balance One Year
Accrued liabilities:
Compensated absences............ocvvvevevrvennne. $ 560 $ 202 S 204 $ 558 $ 337
LitiZatioN ....couveueeiiiiniinienericeiceeceeceenie e 831 - 85 746 19
Miscellaneous..........ccvevveverienenenienereeieene 385 3 24 364 2
Total $ 1,776 $ 205 § 313 § 1,668 358
Due to Federal government (UIB Fund)..... S 10,173 $ 1,071 $ 2946 $ 8,298 -
Lottery prizes payable $ 1,072 § 53 8§ 118 $ 1,007 121
Pension contributions payable.....................
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....cceverereeieieienne $ 14 8 - $ 4 10 4
Total $ 14 8 - $ 4 3 10 4
Net pension liability:
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....coeeieieiiierieeienene $ 51§ 15§ 60 § 6 -
CUNY (June 30, 2022)..ccccceeeeieieieeieieennns 73 547 - 620 -
Total $ 124 § 562 § 60 $ 626 -
Other postemployment benefits:
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....cocveieieiireieeeeennne $ 13,554 $ - $ 1,260 $ 12,294 -
CUNY (June 30, 2022)...c.ccccevemenencneneennee 2,047 16 521 1,542 -
| 0] 1155 o USROS 66 5 5 66 -
Total $ 15,667 $ 21§ 1,786 $ 13,902 -
Collateralized borrowings:
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....cooveieieieieieeienene $ 1,892 $ 346§ 320 S 1,918 -
Unamortized premiums ............ccoceeeveennnne 149 24 49 124 6
Total $ 2,041 $ 370 $ 369 $ 2,042 6
Lease liability:
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....ocveeeieieieierieen $ 538 $ 131 § 94 § 575 94
CUNY (June 30, 2022)..cc.cocerereeeereieiennens 527 - 40 487 42
LOteTY coveveeieeieeeecee e 7 2 2 7 2
Total $ 1,072 § 133 $ 136 $ 1,069 138
Other financing arrangements:
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....ooeverenieieieienene $ 10,062 $ 1,937 $ 1,950 $ 10,049 301
CUNY (June 30, 2022)..ccceeeieieieniinieiieene 4,462 705 695 4,472 76
Unamortized premiums:
SUNY (June 30, 2022) ....ccceovevvenenennennene 970 255 222 1,003 50
CUNY (June 30, 2022)...c.cccuevvenenenennenne. 449 101 71 479 -
Total $ 15943 § 2,998 § 2,938 $ 16,003 427
Derivative instruments $ 38 § - $ 38 § - -

Total due within one year ........cceceeveuees $ 1,054
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Litigation and workers’ compensation liabilities will be liquidated by the General Fund. Medicaid
accrued liabilities and amounts payable to local governments will be liquidated by the General Fund and
the Federal Special Revenue Fund. Payroll and related fringe benefits, compensated absences, health
insurance, pension contributions, other postemployment benefits, pollution remediation, secured
hospitals and miscellaneous accrued liabilities will be liquidated by the General Fund, Federal Special
Revenue Fund, General Debt Service Fund and Other Governmental Funds.

Accrued Liabilities — Governmental Activities

The following table summarizes accrued liabilities at March 31, 2023 for governmental activities
(amounts in millions):

Federal General Other Total
Special Debt Governmental  Governmental
Description General Revenue Service Funds Activities
Payroll......cccoooeeveveeeeeeeennnn. $ 654 $ 34§ - $ 61 $ 749
Fringe benefits .........ccccevveeeenennns 406 7 - 11 424
Medicaid ......ccooeeveriiriireieens 4,875 7,844 - - 12,719
Health programs...........cccccuvenen. 374 - - - 374
Public school aid...............c......... - 121 - - 121
Miscellaneous .........coovvvvvevnnnen. 1,007 1,163 14 194 2,378
Total Governmental Funds... § 7,316 $ 9,169 §$ 14 3 266 16,765
Claimant liability for escheated
1403015 ¢ S 2,774
Total $ 19,539

Payable to Local Governments — Governmental Funds

The following table summarizes amounts payable to local governments at March 31, 2023 for
governmental funds (amounts in millions):

Federal  General Other

Special Debt Governmental
Description General Revenue  Service Funds Total
Education programs.............ccccceevevervenrnnen. $ 1,790 $ 485 § - $ 50 $ 2,325
Temporary and disability assistance.......... 499 1,365 - - 1,864
Local health programs .............cccceevveerneenn 810 776 - 54 1,640
Mental hygiene programs.............c.eevvennenn. 132 29 - - 161
Criminal justice programs ..............cecveenenn. 38 6 - - 44
Child and family services programs.......... 32 - - - 32
Local share of tax revenues ....................... - - 800 - 800
Public safety ......coccevvieeiieiieieieeeeee, 10 35 - 28 73
Emergency management............c.ccceeeuveennnn, 38 7,488 - - 7,526
Transportation..........cceeeeeeeeerveercieesrveenneenn. - - - 28 28
Miscellaneous ........ceceveeeereneeieeeeeeeen 215 578 - 144 937

Total.......cceueuueee. $ 3564 § 10,762 $ 800 $ 304 § 15,430
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Accrued Liabilities — Business-Type Activities

The following table summarizes current accrued liabilities at March 31, 2023 for business-type activities
(June 30, 2022 for SUNY and CUNY) (amounts in millions):

Unemployment
Insurance
Description Lottery Benefit SUNY CUNY Total
Payroll.......ccoooieoieniiieeeeens $ - $ - $ 346 § 106 § 452
Fringe benefits .........cccocvevevennn - - 265 148 413
Employer overpayments......... - 111 - - 111
Benefits due claimants............ - 46 - - 46
Unclaimed and future prizes... 436 - - - 436
Miscellaneous ...........ccceenneeee. - 34 563 199 796
Total 436 191 1,174 453 2,254
Long-term accrued liabilities -
due within one year............... 1 - 230 127 358

Total $ 437 $ 191 § 1,404 § 580 § 2,612
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NOTE 9 - Interfund Transactions and Other Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended March 31, 2023 consisted of the following (amounts in millions):

Transfers To

Total
Federal General Other Govern- Business-
Special Debt Govern- Elimi- mental Type
Transfers From General Revenue Service mental nation Funds Activities Total
General ........cc.ocuee... $ - $ - $ 300 $ 6,022 § - $ 6,322 $ 5572 $ 11,894
Federal Special
Revenue................... 231 - - 1,351 - 1,582 454 2,036
General Debt
Service......coeeveenenne 36,365 - - - - 36,365 1,791 38,156
Other
Governmental.......... 6,941 - 105 125 - 7,171 553 7,724
Elimination................ - - - - (51,440) (51,440) - (51,440)
Total
Governmental
Funds.....cccceeurennen. 43,537 - 405 7,498 (51,440) - 8,370 8,370
SUNY ..o, 20 1 - 63 - 84 - 84
Lottery....ccovvvvenennne. - - 29 3,686 - 3,715 - 3,715
Governmental
Activities ................. - - - - - - (113) (113)
Total....cceeveurerneenen. $ 43557 $ 1 8 434 §$ 11,247 § (51,440) $ 3,799 § 8257 § 12,056

Transfers constitute the transfer of resources from the fund that receives the resources to the fund that
utilizes them. Significant transfers include transfers to the General Fund from other funds representing
excess revenues not needed in those funds. Transfers to the General Fund from the General Debt Service
Fund for excess funds not needed for debt service on revenue bonds backed by personal income and
sales tax revenues totaled approximately $36.4 billion. Transfers to the General Fund from Other
Governmental Funds are primarily due to: excess sales tax receipts not needed for LGAC debt service
requirements of $2.2 billion; mental health patient fees in excess of debt service and rental reserve
requirements of $1.6 billion; excess real property transfer tax receipts from clean water and clean air
programs of $1.2 billion; $1.2 billion from the Dedicated Highway and Bridge Trust Fund to make
required service contract payments; and $529 million for health care-related expenditures. Transfers
from the General Fund to the General Debt Service Fund are primarily due to State debt service
payments of $298 million. Transfers from the Other Governmental Funds to the General Debt Service
Fund include $40 million to the Dedicated Highway and Bridge Trust Fund and $35 million to the Clean
Water Clean Air Fund. Transfers from the General Fund to Other Governmental Funds include: $3
billion to the State Capital Project Fund for capital projects; $691 million to the Dedicated Highway and
Bridge Trust Fund; $504 million to the Housing Program Fund; $500 million to the Health Care
Transformation Fund; $397 million to the MTA Financial Assistance Fund; and $260 million to the
Dedicated Infrastructure Investment Fund. Transfers from the General Fund to the Enterprise Funds
comprise State support to the Lottery, SUNY and CUNY Funds ($5.6 billion). Transfers from the
Federal Special Revenue Fund to Other Governmental Funds comprise the federal share of Medicaid
payments for a variety of purposes, including transfers to the Mental Health Services Fund for recipients
residing in State-operated facilities ($1.3 billion). Transfers from the Lottery to Other Governmental
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Funds represent Lottery support for school aid payments ($3.7 billion). The eliminations of $51.4 billion
represent transfers made between the governmental funds.

Transfers from the governmental funds to the SUNY and CUNY Funds are reported as transfers to other
funds by the governmental funds and as State appropriations by the SUNY and CUNY Funds. As
explained in Note 1, the amounts reported for the SUNY and CUNY Funds are derived from their annual
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Therefore, because of the different fiscal
year-end for the SUNY and CUNY Funds, total transfers from other funds exceed total transfers to other
funds by $938 million. The following is a reconciliation of transfers resulting from different year-ends
(amounts in millions):

Governmental Activities transfers:

SUNY ot $ (5,893)
CUNY ettt (2,280)
Lottery (Education aid) ........ccccceevveevveeeenieennneen. 3,686
Total Governmental Activities transfers......... (4,487)
Business-Type Activities transfers:
STALE e 5,511
Federal and State hospital support transfers...... 960
Education aid..........cccoceeeeiieeiiieeieccee e (3,686)
Capital ....c.ooviieieeiiee e 764
Total Business-Type Activities transfers......... 3,549
Total transfers......ccccecercerecccencccnecscnscssanaesenne $ (938)

Due To/From Other Funds

The following is a summary of the amounts due to other funds and due from other funds at March 31,
2023 (amounts in millions):

Due To Other Funds

Total

Federal  General Other Govern- Business- Govern-
Due From Other Special Debt Govern-  Elimin- mental Type mental
Funds General Revenue  Service mental ation Funds Activities  Activities Total
General ................. $ - $ 1,046 $ 685 $ 2410 $ - $ 4141 $ 5% - $ 4,146
Federal Special
Revenue.............. 69 - - - - 69 - - 69
Other
Governmental ..... 219 310 1 - - 530 1,460 - 1,990
Elimination ........... - - - - (4,740) (4,740) - - (4,740)
Total
Governmental
Funds .....ccoeeueeennnen. 288 1,356 686 2,410 (4,740) - 1,465 - 1,465
Business-Type
Activities............. 377 3 - 49 - 429 - 621 1,050

Total....coeeueruennene, $§ 665 $§ 1359 § 686 $ 2,459 § (4,740) $ 429 § 1465 § 621 § 2,515
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The more significant balances in due to/from other funds include $2.4 billion due to the General Fund
to cover cash overdrafts in the short-term investment pool. These temporary interfund loans include
$90 million to the Federal Special Revenue Fund and $2.3 billion to Other Governmental Funds. Due
to other funds in the General Debt Service Fund includes $685 million for amounts owed to the General
Fund for excess personal income revenues.

As explained in Note 1, the amounts reported for the SUNY and CUNY Funds are derived from their
annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Therefore, because the fiscal year-
end of the SUNY and CUNY Funds differs from the State’s fiscal year-end, the total amount reported
as due to other funds exceeds the total amount reported as due from other funds by $621 million. Of
this amount, $594 million is related to ongoing litigation between SUNY and other parties as discussed
in Note 11.
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NOTE 10 - Commitments and Contingencies

The State receives significant financial assistance from the federal government in the form of grants and
entitlements. Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of
the grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for
eligible purposes. Substantially all federal grants are either subject to the Federal Single Audit Act or
to financial and compliance audits by grantor agencies of the federal government or their designees.
Disallowances by federal program officials as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the State.

Health care providers have a right to appeal Medicaid reimbursement rates. Based on an analysis of
appeals, a liability of $120 million has been recognized in the government-wide Statement of Net
Position.

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) disallowed Medicaid claims for services
provided by the New York State Office for People With Developmental Disabilities in fiscal years 2011,
2012 and 2013. The State and CMS reached a settlement agreement on March 20, 2015 on this matter,
whereby the State agreed to pay a total of $1.95 billion to CMS. The agreement called for the State to
adjust the federal and State shares of Medicaid costs over 12 years to yield repayments of $850 million
in fiscal year 2016, and $100 million in fiscal years 2017 through 2027. Through March 31, 2023, the
State has reimbursed the federal government $1.55 billion and, accordingly, has reported the remaining
liabilities of $400 million in the governmental activities.

In 1977-78, the State required that reserve funds held by insurance companies that underwrite the State
employee health insurance programs be paid to the General Fund. The State is liable to replenish these
reserve funds if needed to pay insured benefits or if the contracts with the insurance companies are
terminated. Accordingly, based on actuarial calculations, the State has recorded a liability of
$192 million, which is reported as accrued liabilities due in more than one year on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position.

The State recognizes the increasing cost related to other postemployment benefits (Note 13). The
contribution requirements of NYSHIP members and the State are established and may be amended by
the Legislature. The State is not required to provide funding above the PAYGO (paying the costs as they
become due) amount necessary to provide current benefits to retirees. The State continues to fund these
costs, along with all other employee health care expenses, on a PAYGO basis.

Generally, the State does not insure its buildings, contents or related risks and does not insure its State-
owned automobiles for bodily injury and property damages, but the State does have fidelity insurance
on State employees. A liability is estimated for unpaid automobile claims based on an analysis of
property loss and claim settlement trends. Routine uninsured losses are recorded as expenditures in the
General Fund as paid, while significant uninsured losses usually are the result of litigation that is
discussed further in Note 11. Insured losses incurred by the State did not exceed coverage for any of
the three preceding fiscal years. Litigation losses are estimated based on an assessment of pending cases
conducted by the Office of the Attorney General.

Workers’ compensation is provided with the State Insurance Fund acting as the State’s administrator
and claims processing agent. Under an agreement with the State Insurance Fund, the State pays only
what is necessary to fund claims. Based on actuarial calculations, discounted at 3.49 percent as of March
31, 2023, the State is liable for unfunded claims and incurred but not reported claims totaling
$2.7 billion, which are reported as accrued liabilities in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
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Changes in the State’s liability relating to workers’ compensation claims, litigation and incurred but not
reported loss estimates related to medical malpractice claims, and auto claims in fiscal years 2022 and
2023 were (amounts in millions):

Claim Liability Increase Payments and Claim
Beginning in Liability Decrease in Liability
Fiscal year of Year Estimate Liability Estimate End of Year
2021-2022......o... $ 4,438 $ 513 $ 666 $ 4,285
2022-2023 ... $ 4,285 $ 245 $ 1,140 $ 3,390

The State Finance Law requires the Abandoned Property Fund (Fund), a General Fund Account, to have
a maximum cash balance of $750,000 at fiscal year-end. All Fund receipts are recorded in the State
Purposes Account (Account) and receipts recorded in the Fund are for payment upon approval of a
claim. At March 31, 2023, the Fund included $920 million of securities not yet liquidated and not
subject to the State Finance Law’s cash provisions. Net collections from inception (1942) to March 31,
2023 of approximately $18.4 billion, excluding interest, represent a contingent liability to the State since
the owners of such property may file claims for refunds.

Restricted net position at March 31, 2023 of $2.8 billion, representing the probable amount of escheat
property that will be reclaimed and paid to claimants, is reported in the State’s Statement of Net Position.
To the extent that assets in the Fund are less than the claimant liability, a receivable (due from other
funds) is reported in the Fund and an equal liability (due to other funds) is reported in the Account. At
March 31, 2023, the amount reported was $1.6 billion due from the Fund to the Account. Since receipts
in the Fund are expected to be adequate to pay current claims, it is not expected that the Account will be
required to support the Fund for that purpose. Claims paid from the Fund during the year totaled $380
million.

The State is liable for costs relating to the closure and post-closure of landfills totaling $4 million, which
is recorded in accrued liabilities. Closure and post-closure requirements are generally governed by Title
6, Part 360 of the New York Code of Rules and Regulations. Since most landfills are inactive, the
liability reflects the total estimated closure and post-closure cost at year-end. Liability estimates are
based on engineering studies or on estimates by agency officials that are updated annually.

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations
(GASBS 49), provides guidance for state and local governments in estimating and reporting the potential
costs of pollution remediation. While GASBS 49 does not require the State to search for pollution, it
does require the State to reasonably estimate and report a remediation liability when any of the following
obligating events has occurred:

Pollution poses an imminent danger to the public and the State is compelled to take action;
The State is in violation of a pollution-related permit or license;

The State is named or has evidence that it will be named as responsible party by a regulator;
The State is named or has evidence that it will be named in a lawsuit to enforce a cleanup; or
The State commences or legally obligates itself to conduct remediation activities.

Site investigation, planning and design, cleanup and site monitoring are typical remediation activities
underway across the State. Several State agencies have dedicated programs, rules and regulations that
routinely deal with remediation-related issues; others become aware of pollution conditions in the
fulfillment of their missions. The State has the knowledge and expertise to estimate its remediation
obligations based upon prior experience in identifying and funding similar remediation activities. The
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standard requires the State to calculate pollution remediation liabilities using the expected cash flow
technique. Where the State cannot reasonably estimate a pollution remediation obligation, it does not
report a liability; however, the State has not identified any such situation.

The State’s estimated pollution remediation obligations are subject to change over time. Costs may vary
due to price fluctuations, changes in technology, changes in potential responsible parties, results of
environmental studies, changes to statutes or regulations and other factors that could result in revisions
to these estimated obligations. Prospective recoveries from responsible parties may reduce the State’s
obligation. Capital assets may be created when pollution remediation outlays are made under specific
circumstances.

During the fiscal year, the State recognized estimated additional liabilities of $256 million, spent
$148 million in activities related to pollution remediation obligations and recognized adjustments
decreasing the liability by $12 million. The State recovered $28 million from other responsible parties.
At March 31, 2023, the State had an outstanding pollution remediation liability of $1.15 billion, with an
estimated potential recovery of $94 million from other responsible parties.

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, provides guidance for state and local
governments in estimating and reporting the potential costs of asset retirement. GASBS 83 defines an
Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) as a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of
a tangible capital asset with a legal obligation to perform future asset retirement activities. A liability
exists with the occurrence of both an external and internal obligating event from normal operations.

An external event is one of the following:
e The approval of federal, state, or local laws or regulations;
e The creation of a legally binding contract;
e The issuances of a court judgement.
An internal event is one of the following:
e A contamination occurrence resulting from normal operations and not in the scope of pollution
remediation;
e An occurrence resulting from placing a tangible capital asset into operations and consuming a
portion of it in normal operations;
e An occurrence of acquiring a tangible capital asset.

At March 31, 2023, the State had an outstanding asset retirement obligation of $65.1 million in two
areas, petroleum bulk storage tanks and dams.

The Department of Environmental Conservation has AROs of $53.5 million to take petroleum bulk
storage tanks out of service. The AROs are measured using the current cost for closure or the best
estimate for taking the tanks out of service, which consists of emptying the tanks, removing the
secondary containment, and proper disposal. The tanks have estimated remaining useful lives of less
than 1 year to 30 years. The petroleum bulk storage tanks are regulated under the New York Code,
Rules, and Regulations Part 613 (6NYCRR Part 613). The AROs will be funded by state appropriations
and there are no assets restricted for payment of the liabilities.

The Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation and the Department of Corrections and
Community Supervision oversee numerous dams owned and regulated by the State. The AROs,
calculated using the best estimate to dismantle the facilities, are projected to be $11.6 million. The
assets have estimated remaining useful lives of 5 to 20 years. Dams are regulated under the New York
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Code, Rules, and Regulations Part 673 (6NYCRR Part 673). The AROs will be funded by state
appropriation and there are no assets restricted for payment of the liabilities.

Several unions have not reached labor settlement agreements with the State at this time. Settlements
may result in added costs to the State.

Business-Type Activities

State funds support a significant portion of SUNY and CUNY operations. In the fiscal year 2023 Enacted
Budget Financial Plan, which includes projections up to fiscal year 2027, the State provides $1.9 billion
to fully support fringe benefit costs of SUNY employees at State-operated campuses. The State is also
projected to pay $1 billion in fiscal year 2024 for debt service on bond financed capital projects at SUNY
and CUNY.

SUNY has entered into contracts for the construction and improvement of various projects. At June 30,
2022, these outstanding contractual commitments totaled approximately $864 million. CUNY Senior
Colleges have also entered into contracts for the construction and improvement of various capital assets.
At June 30, 2022, these outstanding contractual commitments totaled approximately $359.9 million.

SUNY and CUNY Senior Colleges have insurance coverage for residence halls, but in general, do not
insure educational facilities, contents or related risks and do not insure vehicles and equipment for claims
and assessments arising from bodily injury, property damages, and other perils. Unfavorable judgments,
claims, or losses incurred by SUNY and CUNY Senior Colleges are covered by the State on a self-
insured basis. The fidelity insurance the State has on State employees includes SUNY and CUNY Senior
Colleges employees.

The Lottery is party to a number of contracts with vendors relating to maintaining the traditional lottery
gaming network, supplying instant game tickets, maintaining instant game ticket self-service terminals,
supplying video lottery gaming machines to nine video lottery gaming facilities, and providing a central
processing system for the operation of video lottery gaming.

During fiscal year 2022-23, the State Department of Labor (DOL) continued to receive an increased
amount of unemployment claim filings due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Although the increase in
claims is less than the prior two years, there remains an inherent increase in the risk of fraudulent claims
thereby increasing the risk of improper unemployment benefit payments compared to the pre-pandemic
years. To mitigate this risk, DOL was deliberate in maintaining its existing controls over processing and
implemented enhanced identity verification procedures, which at the onset resulted in a backlog and
delay in processing and payment of unemployment claims. DOL continues to process and pay
unemployment claims with the enhanced procedures; however, the backlog and delays have decreased.
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NOTE 11 - Litigation

The State is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the
performance of routine governmental operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims
asserted against the State arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation
proceedings, and other alleged violations of State and federal laws.

Included in the State’s outstanding litigation are a number of cases challenging the legality or the
adequacy of a variety of significant social welfare programs, primarily involving the State’s Medicaid
and mental health programs. Adverse judgments in these matters generally could result in injunctive
relief coupled with prospective changes in patient care that could require substantial increased financing
of the litigated programs in the future.

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the State has reported $639 million in the primary
government; $45 million is related to governmental activities and $594 million pertains to SUNY.
SUNY reported $747 million as of December 31, 2022 for awarded claims, anticipated unfavorable
judgments, and incurred but not reported loss estimates related to medical malpractice claims. The
difference of $153 million is due to a timing difference between the State’s and SUNY ’s fiscal year end.
In addition, the State is party to other claims and litigation that its legal counsel has advised may result
in possible adverse court decisions with estimated potential losses of approximately $109 million.



122 « Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 12 - Retirement Systems

New York State and Local Retirement System

The Office of the State Comptroller administers the following plans: the New York State and Local
Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement
System (PFRS), which are collectively referred to as the New York State and Local Retirement System
(the System). The net position of the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Fund
(the Fund), which was established to hold all assets and record changes in fiduciary net position allocated
to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the
administrative head of the System. ERS and PFRS are cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit
pension plans. The Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP) provides death benefits in the
form of life insurance. For financial reporting purposes, GLIP amounts are apportioned to and included
in ERS and PFRS.

The System issues a publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that includes financial
statements, expanded disclosures, and required supplementary information for the System. The report
may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, Office of the State
Comptroller, 110 State Street, Albany, New York, 12244-0001 or at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire.

Plan Benefits

The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. System benefits are
established by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL) and are dependent upon
the point in time at which the employees last joined the System. The RSSL has established distinct
classes of membership. The System uses a tier concept within ERS and PFRS to distinguish these
groups, as follows:

ERS

Tier 1 ....... Those persons who last became members before July 1, 1973.

Tier2....... Those persons who last became members on or after July 1, 1973, but before
July 27, 1976.

Tier3....... Generally, those persons who are State correction officers who last became
members on or after July 27, 1976, but before January 1, 2010, and all others who
last became members on or after July 27, 1976, but before September 1, 1983.

Tier4 ....... Generally, except for correction officers, those persons who last became
members on or after September 1, 1983, but before January 1, 2010.

Tier5....... Those persons who last became members on or after January 1, 2010, but before

April 1, 2012.

Tier6....... Those persons who first became members on or after April 1, 2012.
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PFRS

Tier1........ Those persons who last became members before July 31, 1973.

Tier2........ Those persons who last became members on or after July 31, 1973, but before
July 1, 20009.

Tier3........ Those persons who last became members on or after July 1, 2009, but before
January 9, 2010.

Tier4........ N/A

Tier5........ Those persons who last became members on or after January 9, 2010, but before
April 1, 2012, or who were previously PFRS Tier 3 members and elected to join
Tier 5.

Tier6........ Those persons who first became members on or after April 1, 2012.

Generally, members of ERS and PFRS must be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement
benefit. There is no minimum service requirement for Tier 1 members. Full benefits may be collected
at age 55 for Tier | members. Members of Tiers 2 through 6 must generally have five years of service
to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. The full benefit age for members of Tiers 2 through 5 is
62. The full benefit age for Tier 6 is 63 for ERS members and 62 for PFRS members. Members
generally need five years of service to be 100 percent vested. Members with less than five years of
service may withdraw and obtain a refund, including interest, of the accumulated employee
contributions; membership is automatically terminated once seven years has lapsed since employment
if the years of service was not at least five years. Members with at least five years of service but less
than ten years of service may choose: (1) to withdraw and obtain a refund of employee contributions
plus interest or (2) leave contributions in their account and qualify for a retirement benefit at age 55.

Typically, the benefit for members in all Tiers within ERS and PFRS is 1.67 percent of final average
salary for each year of service if the member retires with less than 20 years. If a Tier 1 or 2 member
retires with 20 or more years of service, the benefit is 2 percent of final average salary for each year of
service. If a Tier 3, 4 or 5 member retires with between 20 and 30 years of service, the benefit is
2 percent of final average salary for each year of service. If a Tier 3, 4 or 5 member retires with more
than 30 years of service, an additional benefit of 1.5 percent of final average salary is applied for each
year of service over 30 years. Final average salary for Tiers 1 through 5 is the average of the wages
earned in the three highest-paid consecutive years of employment. For Tier 1 members who joined on
or after June 17, 1971, earnings in any year included in the final average salary calculation cannot exceed
the previous year’s earnings by more than 20 percent. For Tier 2 members, earnings in any year included
in the final average salary calculation cannot exceed the average of the previous two years by more than
20 percent. For Tier 3, 4 and 5 members, the earnings for any year used in computing final average
salary cannot exceed the average of the previous two years by more than 10 percent. The benefit for
Tier 6 members who retire with 20 years of service is 1.75 percent of final average salary for each year
of service. If a Tier 6 member retires with more than 20 years of service, an additional benefit of 2
percent of final average salary is applied for each year of service over 20 years. The final average salary
for a Tier 6 member is computed as the average of the wages earned in the five highest-paid consecutive
years. Earnings for each year used in the final average salary calculation cannot exceed the average of
the previous four years by more than 10 percent.

A cost-of-living adjustment is provided annually to: retirees who have attained age 62 and have been
retired for five years; retirees who have attained age 55 and have been retired for 10 years; all disability
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retirees, regardless of age, who have been retired for five years; ERS recipients of an accidental death
benefit, regardless of age, who have been receiving such benefit for five years; and the spouse of a
deceased retiree receiving a lifetime benefit under an option elected by the retiree at retirement. An
eligible spouse is entitled to one-half the cost-of-living adjustment amount that would have been paid to
the retiree when the retiree would have met the eligibility criteria. This cost-of-living adjustment is a
percentage of the annual retirement benefit of the eligible member as computed on a base benefit amount
not to exceed $18,000 of the annual retirement benefit. The cost-of-living percentage shall be 50 percent
of the annual Consumer Price Index as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor, but cannot be less than
1 percent or greater than 3 percent.

Contributions

Employee contribution requirements depend upon the point in time at which an employee last joined
the System. Most Tier 1 and Tier 2 members of ERS and most members of PFRS were not required to
make employee contributions. Employees in Tiers 3, 4 and 5 are required to contribute 3 percent of
their salaries. However, as a result of Article 19 of the RSSL, eligible Tier 3 and 4 employees who have
ten or more years of membership or credited service within the System are not required to contribute.
The Tier 6 contribution rate varies from 3 percent to 6 percent, depending on salary. Generally, Tier 5
and 6 members are required to contribute for all years of service. Members cannot be required to begin
contributing or to make increased contributions beyond what was required when their memberships
began.

Participating employers are required under the RSSL to contribute to the System at an actuarially
determined rate adopted annually by the Comptroller. The average contribution rate for ERS for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 was approximately 11.6 percent of covered payroll. The average
contribution rate for PFRS for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 was approximately 27 percent of
covered payroll. The State’s contributions for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 were $1.6 billion
for ERS and $210 million for PFRS.

Net Pension Liabilities (Assets) and Other Pension-Related Amounts

For purposes of determining net pension liability and other pension-related amounts, information about
the fiduciary net position of ERS and PFRS and additions to and deductions from the fiduciary net
position of ERS and PFRS have been determined on the same basis reported by the System. Benefits
are recognized when due and payable. Investments are recorded at fair value as further described in
Note 2.

The State’s proportionate shares of the collective net pension asset for ERS and net pension liability for
PFRS reported at March 31, 2023, were measured as of March 31, 2022, and were determined using an
actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2021, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension
liabilities to March 31, 2022. The overall State’s ERS proportion of the net pension asset measured at
March 31, 2022 was 46.03 percent, of which, the State’s share net of SUNY hospitals and SUNY
Construction Fund (SUCF) was 42.92 percent. The overall State’s PFRS proportion of the net pension
liability measured at March 31, 2022 was 20.98 percent, of which, the State’s share net of SUNY
hospitals and SUCF was 20.95 percent. The State’s shares related to each plan were determined
consistently with the manner in which contributions to the pension plan are determined. The State’s
total projected long-term contribution effort to ERS and PFRS was compared to the total projected long-
term contribution effort from all employers to ERS and PFRS in order to determine the State’s
proportionate share of the respective plan’s net pension liability.
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State employees engaged in governmental activities, as well as those employed by the SUNY and
Lottery enterprise funds, are generally members of ERS. The State proportion of the ERS collective net
pension asset measured at March 31, 2022 of 42.92 percent was allocated 39.81 percent to governmental
activities, 3.06 percent to the SUNY enterprise fund, and 0.05 percent to the Lottery enterprise fund. In
addition to its allocation of the State proportion, SUNY recognized a proportion of the ERS collective
net pension asset of 3.11 percent associated with specific related entities excluded from the State
proportion measured at March 31, 2022. The State proportion of the PFRS collective net pension
liability measured at March 31, 2022 of 20.95 percent was allocated 19.86 percent to governmental
activities and 1.09 percent to the SUNY enterprise fund. In addition to its allocation of the State
proportion, SUNY recognized a proportion of the PFRS collective net pension liabilities of 0.03 percent
associated with specific related entities excluded from the State proportion measured at March 31, 2022.

The State recognized a net pension asset of $3.3 billion in governmental activities for its proportionate
share of the ERS collective net pension asset. The State recognized a net pension liability of $113
million in governmental activities for its proportionate share of the PFRS collective net pension liability.
Pension expense recognized by the State in governmental activities was $92 million for ERS and $93
million for PFRS for the year ended March 31, 2023. The State reported the following deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources in governmental activities for ERS and PFRS at March
31, 2023 (amounts in millions):

ERS PFRS
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Difference between expected and
actual EXperience ............c.ocoeveve.... $ 246 $ 319 ¢ 61 $ 948

Net difference between projected
and actual investment earnings on
pension plan investments................ - 10,655 - -

Changes in proportion and
differences between employer
contributions and proportionate

share of contributions .................... 55 157 4 43
Changes in assumptions ................. 5,430 92 675 -
Contributions made subsequent to

measurement date..............cc.......... 1,498 - 199 -

Total ... $ 7,229 $ 11,223  $ 939 § 991
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The amounts of deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total pension liability in the year ended
March 31, 2023. The remaining cumulative net amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for the governmental activities will be recognized in

future pension expense as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year ERS PFRS
2024 ..., (869) $ (58)
2025, (1,237) (86)
2026, (2,790) (230)
2027 i (596) 122
2028 1
Total ..ccccevvnereecnnnee (5,492) $ (251)

SUNY recognized a net pension asset of $504 million for its proportionate share of the ERS collective
net pension asset measured on March 31, 2022. SUNY recognized a net pension liability of $6 million
for its proportionate share of the PFRS collective net pension liability measured on March 31, 2022.
For the year ended June 30, 2022, SUNY recognized pension expense of $11 million and $5 million for
ERS and PFRS, respectively. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to ERS and PFRS are from the following sources (amounts in millions):

SUNY
ERS PFRS
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Difference between expected and
actual experience...........ccoeevennenne. 38 % 50 % 4 3 -
Net difference between projected
and actual investment earnings
on pension plan investments ...... 1,651 - 53
Changes in proportion and
differences between employer
contributions and proportionate
share of contributions ................. 38 56 - 3
Changes in assumptions .............. 841 14 38 -
111 7 | D 917 § 1,771 $ 42 3 56
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions for SUNY ERS and SUNY PFRS will be recognized in future pension expense as follows
(amounts in millions):

SUNY
Fiscal Year ERS PFRS
2023 e, $ (138) $ 3)
2024 ... (193) (%)
2025 (433) (13)
2026 (90) 7
Total ...ccovveeieencnnnns $ (854) $ 14)

The Lottery recognized a net pension asset of $4 million for its proportionate share of the ERS net
pension asset. For the year ended March 31, 2023, Lottery recognized pension expense of $106
thousand related to ERS. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
ERS are from the following sources (amounts in millions):

Lottery
Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and

actual experience ............ceeeuvennee. $ - $ 1
Net difference between projected

and actual investment earnings

on pension plan investments....... - 12
Changes in assumptions ............... 6 -
Contributions made subsequent to

measurement date ........................ 2 -

 11] 7 | LN $ 8 § 13

The amounts of deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total pension liability in the next fiscal year.
Remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions for Lottery will be recognized in future pension expense over the next five years.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the March 31, 2022 measurement date was determined by using an
actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2021, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension
liability to March 31, 2022. The actuarial valuation for both ERS and PFRS used the following actuarial
assumptions:
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Actuarial cost method ................. Entry age normal
Inflation .......cccoceevenieniiicnienenn 2.7 percent
Salary scale........cccoeeveerieniennnnnn. 4.4 percent in ERS; 6.2 percent in PFRS, indexed by service
Investment rate of return,
including inflation ...................... 5.9 percent compounded annually, net of investment expenses
Cost of living adjustments........... 1.4 percent annually
Active member decrements......... Based upon fiscal year 2016-2020 experience
Pensioner mortality ..................... Gender/Collar specific tables based upon fiscal year 2016-

2020 experience
Mortality improvement ............... Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2020

Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net
of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation for ERS
and PFRS as of April 1, 2022 are summarized below:

Long-Term
Target Expected Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return*
Domestic equities .........cccceeeruveennene. 32 9, 3.30 %
International equities ..................... 15 % 5.85%
Private equities ........cccceveerveeuennnnne 10 % 6.50 %
Real estate.......ccoeevveervieniienieeienne, 9% 5.00 %
Opportunistic/Absolute return
strategies portfolio...........c.......... 3% 4.10 %
Credit .oocovveeiieeeeecee e, 4% 3.78 %
Real assets ......ccoeeeeveevvieecrieeiieenrenne, 3% 5.58%
Fixed income ........ccccvvvveeiiennnnne. 23 % 0.00 %
Cash ..o 1% (1.00 %)
11 7 | RS 100 %

*Real rates of return are net of long-term inflation assumption of 2.5 percent.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the ERS and PFRS total pension liabilities as of March 31, 2022 was
5.9 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers
will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based upon these assumptions, the
ERS and PFRS fiduciary net positions were projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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The following presents the current period net pension liability (asset) of the State’s governmental
activities, SUNY, and Lottery calculated using the current period discount rate assumption of 5.9
percent, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage point lower (4.9 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (6.9 percent) than the
current assumption (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
(4.9%) (5.9%) (6.9%)

Governmental activities ERS net pension

11ability (SSEt) .cveevereeriieieeierieieeee e $ 8,376 $ (3,254 $ (12,981)
Governmental activities PFRS net

pension liability (asset).......ccccoceeevvververiieennnens 1,255 113 (832)
SUNY - ERS net pension liability (asset)......... 1,298 (504) (2,011)
SUNY - PFRS net pension liability (asset)....... 71 6 (47)
Lottery - ERS net pension liability (asset) ....... 10 4) (15)

Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan

The Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan (VDCP) is offered though the Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association (TTAA). TIAA is an Optional Retirement Program (ORP) and provides retirement
and death benefits through annuity contracts to those employees who elected to participate in the ORP.
The VDCP is a defined contribution pension plan. The SUNY ORP is the administrator of the VDCP.

Prior to March 16, 2012, a limited number of employees, most notably employees of SUNY and CUNY
Senior Colleges, had the option of enrolling in this plan. Legislation signed into law on March 16,2012,
made the existing VDCP available to all eligible State employees who choose the plan as their retirement
selection. The VDCP is available to unrepresented employees of New York State public employers who
were hired on or after July 1, 2013 and who earn $75,000 or more on an annual basis. The VDCP
includes a 366-day vesting period, after which a participant has full and immediate vesting in all
retirement benefits provided by the annuities purchased through the employee and employer
contributions. The employer and employee contributions are not deposited into accounts until the
completion of the 366-day vesting period. Until that time, the funds are held in escrow by the Office of
the State Comptroller. A participant who does not complete the vesting period is entitled to a refund of
contributions, plus interest, upon request. The VDCP is the employee’s personal retirement account,
and is supported by employer and employee contributions plus any applicable earnings. A participant’s
income in retirement will be determined by the account balance. The employee has the opportunity for
higher or lower retirement income based on his or her investment decisions and the performance of the

investment options selected by the employee. The retirement income benefit will depend on several
factors including salary, duration of contributions, investment earnings and age at retirement. Income
is not guaranteed.

Contribution rates are established by legislation passed by the State. Currently, the employer
contribution of 8 percent of compensable salary is made to participants’ accounts while enrolled in this
plan. For the first three years of membership, the employee contribution rate is based on the reported
annual wage. After the first three years of membership, the employee contribution will be based on
annual pensionable salary from two years prior. Legislation signed into law on March 16, 2012
established the contribution rates. Employee contributions increase in a progressive fashion based on
salary:
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Employee

Contribution
Annual Wage Rate
$45,000 or less.............. 3.00 %
$45,000 to $55,000 ...... 3.50 %
$55,000 to $75,000 ...... 4.50 %
$75,000 to $100,000 .... 5.75%
More than $100,000...... 6.00 %

Employer and employee contributions for governmental activities to the VDCP were $5 million and $4
million, respectively, for March 31, 2023.

Other SUNY-Related Pension Plans
New York State Teachers’ Retirement System

SUNY participates in the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS). TRS was created and
exists pursuant to Article 11 of the New York State Education Law. TRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, defined-benefit public plan separately administered by a ten-member board to provide
pension and ancillary benefits to teachers employed by participating employers in the State of New
York, excluding New York City. TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements, expanded disclosures, and required supplementary information for TRS. The report may be
obtained at www.nystrs.org.

Plan Benefits

Plan benefits for TRS are similar to those for ERS. Benefits vary based on the date of membership,
years of credited service and final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death and disability
benefits, and optional methods of benefit payments.

The RSSL has established distinct classes of membership. TRS uses a Tier concept within TRS to
distinguish these groups, as follows:

Tier 1........... Members who last joined prior to July 1, 1973 are covered by the
provisions of Article 11 of the Education Law.

Tier 2........... Members who last joined on or after July 1, 1973, and prior to
July 27, 1976 are covered by the provisions of Article 11 of the
Education Law and Article 11 of the RSSL.

Tier 3........... Members who last joined on or after July 27, 1976 and prior to
September 1, 1983 are covered by the provisions of Article 14 and
Article 15 of the RSSL.

Tier 4........... Members who last joined on or after September 1, 1983 and prior to
January 1, 2010 are covered by the provisions of Article 15 of the
RSSL.

Tier 5........... Members who joined on or after January 1, 2010 and prior to

April 1, 2012 are covered by the provisions of Article 15 of the RSSL.

Tier 6........... Members who joined on or after April 1, 2012 are covered by the
provisions of Article 15 of the RSSL.
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Tier 1 members are generally eligible, beginning at age 55, for a service retirement allowance of
approximately 2 percent of final average salary per year of credited service. Tier 2 are eligible for the
same benefit but receive a reduced benefit at ages 55 through 61 with less than 30 years of service. Tiers
3 and 4 members are eligible for a service retirement allowance of 1.67 percent of final average salary
per year of credit service for years of service less than 20 or 2 percent of final average salary per year
for 20 to 30 years of service, plus 1.5 percent of final average salary for years of service in excess of 30
years. Tiers 3 and 4 members receive an unreduced benefit for retirement at age 62 or retirement at ages
55 through 61 with 30 years of service, or a reduced benefit for retirement at ages 55 through 61 with
less than 30 years of service. Tier 5 members are eligible for a service retirement allowance of 1.67
percent of final average salary per year of credit service for years of service less than 25 years or 2
percent of final average salary per year of credited service for 25 to 30 years of service, plus 1.5 percent
of final average salary per year for years of service in excess of 30 years. Tier 5 members receive an
unreduced benefit for retirement at age 62 or retirement at ages 57 through 61 with 30 years of service,
or a reduced benefit for retirement at ages 55 and 56 regardless of service credit, or ages 57 through 61
with less than 30 years of service. Tier 6 members are eligible for a service retirement allowance of
1.67 percent of final average salary per year of credit service for years of service less than 20 years or
1.75 percent of final average salary per year of credited service for 20 years of service plus 2 percent of
final average salary per year for years of service in excess of 20 years. Tier 6 members receive an
unreduced benefit for retirement at age 63 and receive a reduced benefit at ages 55 through 62 regardless
of service credit. Plan benefits generally vest after five years of credited service. Vested Tier 6 members
with an inactive membership must be at least 63 to retire. Obligations of employers and employees to
contribute, and related benefits, are governed by the RSSL and the Education Law and may only be
amended by the Legislature with the Governor’s approval.

Permanent cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) benefits for both current and future retired members are
provided in Section 532-a of the Education Law. This benefit will be paid commencing September of

each year to retired members who have attained age 62 and have been retired for five years or who have
attained age 55 and have been retired for 10 years. Disability retirees must have been retired for five
years, regardless of age, to be eligible. The annual COLA percentage is equal to 50 percent of the
increase in the consumer price index, not to exceed 3 percent nor be lower than 1 percent. It is applied
to the first $18,000 of the annual benefit.

Contributions

Tier 3 and Tier 4 members were required by law to contribute 3 percent of salary to TRS until they had
reached 10 years of service or membership. Tier 5 members are required by law to contribute 3.5 percent
of salary throughout their active membership. Tier 6 members are required by law to contribute between
3 percent and 6 percent of salary throughout their active membership, in accordance with a schedule
based upon salary earned. Pursuant to Article 14 and Article 15 of the RSSL, those member
contributions are used to help fund the benefits provided by TRS. However, if a member dies or leaves
covered employment with less than 5 years of credited service for Tiers 3 through 6, the member
contributions with interest calculated at 5 percent per annum are refunded to the employee or designated
beneficiary. Eligible Tier 1 and Tier 2 members may make member contributions under certain
conditions pursuant to the provisions of Article 11 of the Education Law and Article 11 of the RSSL.
Upon termination of membership, such accumulated member contributions are refunded. At retirement,
such accumulated member contributions can be withdrawn or are paid as a life annuity.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate adopted annually by the
Retirement Board, pursuant to Article 11 of the New York State Education Law. The actuarially
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determined contribution rate applicable to 2021-22 salaries was 9.8 percent. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022, SUNY employer contributions were $14 million.

Net Pension Asset and Pension-Related Amounts

SUNY’s proportionate share of the collective TRS net pension asset reported at June 30, 2022 of
$154 million was measured at June 30, 2021. SUNY’s proportionate share of the collective TRS net
pension asset was based on the ratio of the SUNY employer contribution to the total TRS employer
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021. SUNY’s proportionate share of the collective TRS net
pension asset was 0.89 percent measured at June 30, 2021.

For purposes of determining net pension asset and other pension-related amounts, information about the
fiduciary net position of TRS and additions to and deductions from the TRS fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis reported by TRS. Plan benefits are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, SUNY recognized pension credit of $10 million related to TRS. At
June 30, 2022, SUNY reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to TRS from the following sources (amounts in millions):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual

CXPEIICTICE ..eevvveeereenereenreeereereeneeeeseenaeeesneenes $ 21§ 1
Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan

INVESTMENES ...t - 161
Changes in proportion and differences

between employer contributions

and proportionate share of contributions ..... - 4
Changes in assumptions............cceceeeeveereveennnens 51 9
Employer contributions subsequent to

measurement date ..........ccoeceeviiniiieniiennenne. 16 -

0] 1 $ 8 § 175

The employer contributions of $16 million subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction in the total pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Remaining amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TRS will be recognized in
pension expense as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year

2023 e $ (21)
2024 oo, (24)
2025 e (30)
2026 i (40)
2027 e 7
Thereafter ...........ccceeeen. 5

117 7:1 $ (@103
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Actuarial Assumptions

The net pension asset for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined by using an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2020, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to
June 30, 2021. The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation .......cccooeeeiiieniieiieie e, 2.4 percent

Investment rate of return, including 6.95 percent compounded annually,
Inflation ........coceeviniiniininieee, net of investment expenses

Cost-of-living adjustments ................ 1.3 percent compounded annually

Annuitant mortality rates are based on plan member experience, with adjustments for mortality
improvement based on Society of Actuaries’ Scale MP-2020. Rates of projected salary increases differ
based on service. They have been calculated based on recent TRS member experience and range from
1.95 percent to 5.18 percent.

Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined in accordance with
Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOP) No. 27, Selection of Economic Assumptions for Measuring
Pension Obligations (ASOP No. 27), which provides guidance on the selection of an appropriate
assumed investment rate of return. Consideration was given to the expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class as
well as historical investment data and plan performance. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class included in TRS’s target asset allocation as of the valuation date of June 30,
2021 are as follows:

Long-Term
Target Expected Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return*
Domestic eqUIties ........ccccvervveerveervennnnens 33 % 6.8 %
International equities ...........ccccccverveennenne 16 % 7.6 %
Global equities .......cccceeveeerveeeiieeeiieenee, 4% 7.1 %
Real estate .......cccceeevveeecieeeciiecieecee 11 % 6.5 %
Private equities ........ccccceeevierieecieenieennneans 8% 10.0 %
Domestic fixed income securities ........... 16 % 1.3%
Global fixed income securities................. 2% 0.8 %
Private debt.......ccoveviiviiiniieiiieeeee, 1 % 5.9%
Real estate debt ........cccvevveveeeiiieniieee, 7 % 33%
High-yield fixed income securities.......... 1 % 3.8%
Cash equivalents.........ccccccveeerierieenieennnnne 1 % (0.2) %

1] 1 100 %

*Real rates of return are net of long-term inflation assumption of 2.4 percent.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset was 6.95 percent at June 30, 2021. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from participating
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these
assumptions, the fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

The following presents the net pension asset of SUNY, calculated using the discount rate of 6.95 percent
as well as what SUNY’s net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage point lower (5.95 percent) and 1 percentage point higher (7.95 percent) than the current
year rate (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
(5.95%) (6.95%) (7.95%)
Net pension liability (asset) ........... $ (16) $ (154) $ (269)

Upstate Medical University Plan for Former Employees of Community General Hospital

SUNY administers a single-employer defined-benefit plan, the Upstate Medical University Retirement
Plan for Former Employees of Community General Hospital (CGH) (Upstate Plan). This plan provides
for retirement benefits for former employees of CGH and can be amended subject to applicable
collective bargaining and employment agreements. For those who opted out of this plan, benefit
accruals were frozen. No new participants can enter this plan. SUNY established a Pension Oversight
Committee (Committee) which has the primary fiduciary responsibility for oversight of the Upstate
Plan. The Committee is permitted to invest plan assets pursuant to various provisions of State law,
including the RSSL.

The Upstate Plan provides retirement, disability, termination, and death benefits to plan participants and
their beneficiaries. Pension benefits are generally based on the highest five-year average compensation
of the final ten years of employment, and years of credited service as outlined in the plan. Covered
employees with five or more years of service are entitled to a pension benefit beginning at normal
retirement age (65). Participants become fully vested after five years of service. Participants with less
than five years of service are not vested. The funding policy is to contribute enough to the Upstate Plan
to satisfy the annual required contribution. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, SUNY employer
contributions were $0. Employees do not contribute to the plan. At January 1, 2022, membership of
the Upstate Plan totaled 1,154 members, comprising 248 active members, 112 inactive vested members,
and 794 retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits.

The Upstate Plan issues a stand-alone financial report on a calendar year basis that includes disclosure
about the elements of the plan’s basic financial statements. These financial statements are prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GAAP, with investments reported at fair value and
benefits recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Upstate Plan. The Upstate
Plan’s fiduciary net position for purposes of determining net pension liability has been determined on
the same basis used by the Upstate Plan. The pension plan financial statements may be requested at
FOIL@upstate.edu.
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Net Pension Asset and Other Pension-Related Amounts

SUNY recognized a net pension asset related to the Upstate Plan of $3 million as of June 30, 2022,
based on the net pension asset as reported by the plan in their financial statements as of December 31,
2021, as follows (amounts in millions):

Total pension liability .................... $ 102
Plan fiduciary net position............. (105)
Net pension liability (asset)...... $ 3)

Pension expense for the year was $6 million. At June 30, 2022, SUNY reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Upstate Plan from the following sources
(amounts in millions):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual

EXPEIICTICE .veenvvieereeereeieeeieereeseeeereeneeeesneeneas $ 2 9 -
Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan

INVESTMENTS .. - 16
Changes in assumptions..........ccccceceevveevenneenne. 3 -
177 ) $ 5 8§ 16

There were no employer contributions made subsequent to the measurement date to be recognized in
the year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the Upstate Plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows
(amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year

2023 e $ 1
2024 .o (7)
2025 (4)
2026 i (1)

Total..........cuceueueennenen. $ (11)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability at June 30, 2022 was determined by using an actuarial valuation as of January
1, 2022. The actuarial assumptions included an inflation factor of 3 percent, projected salary increases
of 3.5 percent and an investment rate of return of 5.5 percent. Mortality rates were based on the sex-
distinct Pri-2012 Mortality Tables with mortality improvements projected using Scale MP-2021 on a
fully generational basis.

Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined in accordance with
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ASOP No. 27, which provides guidance on the selection of an appropriate assumed investment rate of
return. Consideration was given to the expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) for each major class as well as historical investment data
and plan performance. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in the Upstate Plan’s target asset allocation as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Long-Term
Target Expected Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return
U.S. equIties ...ccceeveereerverieneeienne. 50 % 4.60 %
Non-U.S. equitieS......ccccverrrenvennne. 15 % 4.50 %
Fixed income...........ccooveieeennineenns 30 % (0.25) %
Alternatives (Real assets)............... 5% 3.75 %

K11 7 RN 100 %

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the net pension liability measured at January 1, 2022 was 5.5 percent.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from participating
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these
assumptions, the fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 5.5 percent, as well
as what the net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower (4.5 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (6.5 percent) than the current rate (amounts in
millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%)
Net pension liability (asset) ............. $ 7 $ 3) $ (12)

Optional Retirement Program

SUNY employees may also participate in an Optional Retirement Program (ORP) under IRS Section
401(a), which is a multiple-employer, defined contribution plan administered by separate vendors —
TIAA, Fidelity, Corebridge (formerly AIG), and Voya. ORP employer and employee contributions are
dictated by State law. The ORP provides benefits through annuity contracts and provides retirement
and death benefits to those employees who elected to participate in an ORP. Benefits are determined
by the amount of individual accumulations and the retirement income option selected. All benefits
generally vest after the completion of one year of service if the employee is retained thereafter.
Employer contributions are not remitted to an ORP plan until an employee is fully vested. As such,
there are no forfeitures reported by these plans if an employee is terminated prior to vesting. Employees
who joined an ORP between July 27, 1976 and March 31, 2012 and have less than 10 years of service
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or membership are required to contribute 3 percent of their salary. Those joining on or after April 1,
2012 are required to contribute between 3 percent and 6 percent, dependent upon their salary, for their
entire working career. Employer contributions range from 8 percent to 15 percent depending upon when
the employee was hired. Employee contributions are deducted from their salaries and remitted on a
current basis to the respective ORP. For the year ended June 30, 2022, SUNY recognized a pension
expense of $219 million for the ORP.

The Research Foundation

The Research Foundation for SUNY is a separate, private, nonprofit educational corporation that
administers the majority of SUNY’s sponsored programs. These programs are for the exclusive benefit
of SUNY. The Research Foundation maintains a separate noncontributory plan through TIAA for
substantially all nonstudent employees. Contributions are based on a percentage of earnings and range
from 7 percent to 15 percent, depending on date of hire. Employees become fully vested after
completing one year of service. Contributions are allocated to individual employee accounts. The
Research Foundation pension contributions, which represent pension expense, were $30 million for the
year ended June 30, 2022, which is 100 percent of the required contribution.

CUNY Senior Colleges’ Pension Plans
NYCERS and NYCTRS

CUNY Senior Colleges participate in the New York City Employees’ Retirement System (NYCERS)
and the Teachers’ Retirement System of the City of New York (NYCTRS). NYCERS and NYCTRS
are cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit plans administered by the City of New York.
NYCERS and NYCTRS provide retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits.

NYCERS and NYCTRS provide benefits to members who are in different Tiers. A member’s Tier is
determined by the date of membership. Subject to certain conditions, members generally become fully
vested as to benefits upon the completion of five years of service. Annual pension benefits are calculated
as a percentage of final average salary multiplied by the number of years of service and change with the
number of years of membership within the plan. Benefits for members can be amended under the RSSL.

Contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating New York City agencies are
established and may be amended by the NYCERS and NYCTRS Boards. Employees’ contributions are
determined by their Tier and number of years of service. They may range between zero and 9.1 percent
of their annual pay. Statutorily required contributions to NYCERS and NYCTRS are actuarially
determined in accordance with State statutes and City laws and are funded by the employer within the
appropriate fiscal year. CUNY made its contractually required contributions to both NYCERS and
NYCTRS for the year ended June 30, 2022 in the amounts of $40 million and $96 million, respectively.

Each of these retirement plans issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements
and required supplementary information. Please refer to www.nycers.org and www.trsnyc.org for
additional information about NYCERS and NYCTRS, respectively.

Net Pension Liability and Other Pension-Related Amounts

At June 30, 2022, CUNY reported liabilities of $191 million and $429 million for NYCERS and
NYCTRS, respectively, for its proportionate share of each plan’s net pension liability, measured as of



138 ¢ Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2022. CUNY’s proportion of the respective net pension liabilities at June 30, 2022 was based
on CUNY’s actual contributions to NYCERS and NYCTRS relative to the total contributions of
participating employers for each plan for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, which was 1.1 percent and
2.9 percent for NYCERS and NYCTRS, respectively.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the respective fiduciary net
positions of NYCERS and NYCTRS and additions to and deductions from NYCERS’ and NYCTRS’
respective fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
NYCERS and NYCTRS. Accordingly, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

CUNY’s annual pension expense for NYCERS and NYCTRS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
was approximately $20 million and $55 million, respectively. The following presents a summary of the
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2022 (amounts in millions):

NYCERS NYCTRS

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Differences between expected and

actual eXperience ........ocevvevveeeerveeneenne $ 16 $ 4 % 5 93 57
Net difference between projected and

actual investment earnings on

pension plan investments...................... 35 - 41 -
Changes in proportion and differences

between employer contributions and

proportionate share of contributions..... (27) 3) 61 -
Changes in assumptions ...........ccc.ceueenee. - 6 - 19
111 7 1 PO $ 24§ 7 S 107 $ 76

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year NYCERS NYCTRS

2023 i $ 2 $ (37)
2024 ..o (1) (13)
2025 i (5) (10)
2026 ... 22 83
2027 i (1) 5
Thereafter ............ - 3

Total.....cceeeerrnneee $ 17 $ 31
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021 and rolled forward to CUNY’s measurement date of June 30, 2022 for
both NYCERS and NYCTRS. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation for
both NYCERS and NYCTRS was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

INflation.......coovveeeiee e 2.5 percent

Salary INCreases ..........cccoeeveveriiirinieieieeen Generally 3 percent per year plus increases for
merit and promotion

Investment rate of return..........cocccoeeeviiiiiinenn. 7 percent net of investment expenses; actual
return for variable funds

Cost-of-living adjustments..............ccoeevvervrennennne. 1.5 percent and 2.5 percent for various Tiers

Mortality rates and methods used in determination of the total pension liability for both NYCERS and
NYCTRS were adopted by the New York City Retirement System (NYCRS) Boards of Trustees during
fiscal year 2021. Pursuant to Section 96 of the New York City Charter, studies of the actuarial
assumptions used to value liabilities of the five actuarially funded NYCRS plans are conducted every
two years.

Mortality tables for service and disability pensioners were developed from an experience study of
NYCERS and NYCTRS. The mortality tables for beneficiaries were developed from an experience
review.

Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected real rates of return are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class for both NYCERS and NYCTRS are summarized in the following tables:

NYCERS
Long-Term

Target Expected Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. public market equities................... 27.0 % 7.0 %
Developed public market equities........ 12.0 % 7.2 %
Emerging public market equities ......... 5.0% 9.0 %
Public markets fixed income................ 30.5 % 25%
Private market equities...........c.cccene..e. 8.0 % 11.3%
Private real estate ..........ccccevvereenuennnene 7.5 % 6.7 %
Infrastructure .........ccceeveeeieinieniicene 4.0 % 6.0 %
Opportunistic fixed income.................. 6.0 % 7.4 %

[ 11 £ 1 RN 100.0 %
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NYCTRS
Long-Term

Target Expected Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. public market equities.................. 25.0 % 53%
Developed public market equities........ 10.0 % 5.7%
Emerging public market equities ......... 9.5% 7.1 %
Public fixed income ...........ccccveeurenennns 325% 1.4 %
Private market equities..............ccoeue..n. 7.0 % 10.8 %
Private real estate ...........cccceveeriienenns 7.0 % 8.0 %
Infrastructure.........cooceeeeveeviencieenienes 4.0 % 7.7 %
Opportunistic fixed income.................. 5.0% 6.0 %

11771 R 100.0 %

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of June 30, 2022 for both NYCERS and
NYCTRS was 7 percent. The projection of cash flow used to determine the discount rate assumed that
employee contributions will be made at the rates applicable to the current Tier for each member and that
the employer contributions will be made based on rates determined by the New York City Office of the
Actuary. Based on those assumptions, the respective fiduciary net positions of NYCERS and NYCTRS
were projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and non-
active NYCERS and NYCTRS members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on NYCERS
and NYCTRS investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.

The following presents CUNY’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities calculated using the
discount rate of 7 percent, as well as what CUNY’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6 percent) or 1 percentage
point higher (8 percent) than the current rate (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
(6%) (7%) (8%)
NYCERS................... $ 304 $ 191 $ 96
NYCTRS........ccc...e. $ 690 $ 429 $ 210

TIAA

CUNY also provides defined contribution pension plans for its employees through the Teachers’
Insurance and Annuity Association of America (TIAA). TIAA provides retirement and death benefits
for or on behalf of those full-time professional employees and faculty members electing to participate
in this optional retirement program.

TIAA is a privately operated, multi-employer defined contribution retirement plan. The obligations of
employers and employees to contribute to TIAA and of employees to receive benefits from TIAA are
governed by the New York State Education Law and applicable New York City laws.
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Employer and employee contribution requirements to TIAA are determined by the New York State
Retirement and Social Security Law. Participating employees in Tiers 1 through 4 with less than 10
years of membership contribute 1.5 percent of salary. Participating employees in Tier 5 with less than
10 years of service contribute 3 percent of salary. Participating employees in Tier 6 contribute between
3 and 6 percent of salary, depending on the employee’s compensation. Employer contributions range
from 10.5 percent to 13.5 percent for Tiers 1 through 4, depending upon the employee’s compensation,
and 8 percent to 10 percent of salary for Tiers 5 and 6, depending upon the employee’s years of service.
Employee contributions for employees with more than 10 years of membership are made by CUNY, not
by the employee. Employee contributions for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 amounted to
approximately $81 million. The employer contributions recognized as pension expense for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 were $91 million.

Primary Government Aggregate Pension Tables
Primary Government Aggregate Liabilities

The table below summarizes the aggregate pension liabilities recognized for each pension plan reported
within the State, for the period stated (amounts in millions).

Governmental
Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total

Plan 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2022 by plan
ERS....ccceene. $ - $ - § - $ - $ -
PFRS............... 113 - 6 - 119
VDCP*............ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TRS...ccove - - - - -
Upstate Plan.... - - - - -
ORP* .............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TIAA*............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
NYCERS ........ - - - 191 191
NYCTRS ........ - - - 429 429

Total............. $ 113  § - $ 6 $ 620 S 739

* VDCP, ORP, and TIAA are defined contribution plans and therefore do not have any long-term
liabilities/assets.
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Primary Government Aggregate Assets

The table below summarizes the aggregate pension assets recognized for each pension plan reported
within the State, for the period stated (amounts in millions).

Governmental
Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total

Plan 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2022 by plan
ERS.....ccooc..... $ 3254 $ 4 9 504§ - $ 3,762
PFRS.............. - - - - -
VDCP*............ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TRS...ccove - - 154 - 154
Upstate Plan.... - - 3 - 3
ORP* .............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TIAA*............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
NYCERS ........ - - - - -
NYCTRS ........ - - - - -

Total............. $ 3,254 § 4 S 661 $ - $ 3,919

* VDCP, ORP, and TIAA are defined contribution plans and therefore do not have any long-term
liabilities/assets.

Primary Government Aggregate Expenses

The table below summarizes the aggregate pension expenses recognized for each pension plan reported
within the State, for the period stated (amounts in millions).

Governmental
Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total

Plan 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2022 by plan

ERS. ..o $ 92 - $ 1 $ - $ 103
PFRS............... 93 - 5 - 98
VDCP.............. 5 - - - 5
TRS ..o - - (10) - (10)
Upstate Plan.... - - 6 - 6
ORP ....cccceee. - - 219 - 219
TIAA............... - - 30 91 121
NYCERS ........ - - - 20 20
NYCTRS ........ - - - 55 55

Total............. $ 190 § - $ 261 $ 166 § 617
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Primary Government Deferred Outflows

The table below summarizes the aggregate deferred outflows of resources related to pensions recognized
for each pension plan reported within the State, for the period stated (amounts in millions).

Governmental
Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total
Plan 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2022 by plan
ERS.....cooc... $ 7229 $ 8 $ 917  § - $ 8,154
PFRS.............. 939 - 42 - 981
VDCP*............ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TRS...ccove - - 88 - 88
Upstate Plan.... - - 5 - 5
ORP* .............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TIAA*............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
NYCERS ........ - - - 24 24
NYCTRS ........ - - - 107 107
Total............. $ 8,168 § 8 § 1,052 § 131§ 9,359

* VDCP, ORP, and TIAA are defined contribution plans and therefore do not have any long-term
deferred outflows.

Primary Government Deferred Inflows

The table below summarizes the aggregate deferred inflows of resources related to pensions recognized
for each pension plan reported within the State, for the period stated (amounts in millions).

Governmental
Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total
Plan 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2022 by plan
ERS.....ccooc..... $ 11,223 $ 13 1,771  $ - $ 13,007
PFRS.............. 991 - 56 - 1,047
VDCP*............ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TRS...cccve - - 175 - 175
Upstate Plan.... - - 16 - 16
ORP* .............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
TIAA*............. n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
NYCERS. ........ - - - 7 7
NYCTRS ........ - - - 76 76
Total............. $ 12,214 § 13 S 2,018  $ 83 § 14,328

* VDCP, ORP, and TIAA are defined contribution plans and therefore do not have any long-term
deferred inflows.
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NOTE 13 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

New York State Health Insurance Program

The New York State Health Insurance Program (NYSHIP) was established by the State Legislature in
1957 to provide health insurance to New York State employees, retirees and their eligible dependents.
Public authorities, public benefit corporations, and other quasi-public entities that choose to participate
in NYSHIP are participating employers (PEs). Local government units that choose to participate in
NYSHIP are called participating agencies (PAs). At present, there are 439 New York State agencies,
97 PEs, and 800 PAs in NYSHIP. NYSHIP currently covers approximately 606,000 employees,
retirees, and other inactive enrollees. Eligible covered dependents bring the total number of covered
individuals to approximately 1.2 million. SUNY participates in NYSHIP; CUNY participates in
NYSHIP to a limited extent. Of the State’s 43 discretely presented component units, which are
considered PEs, a majority participate in NYSHIP. At March 31, 2023, NYSHIP enrollment was as
follows:

Enrollment State® PEs PAs Total
Current active participants®........... 166,055 34,475 100,249 300,779
Vestee participants...........ccceeeunenee. 269 90 176 535
COBRA participants...........cccc.e...... 489 436 282 1,207
Other inactive participants®........... 175,010 23,374 105,560 303,944
Total participants.........ccccceeeuneee. 341,823 58,375 206,267 606,465

M Includes State and SUNY participants.

@ Excludes active employees (7,996 State and 240 Roswell Park PE employees) who have
opted out of NYSHIP in return for a biweekly reimbursement - for State employees, equal
to $1,000 and $3,000 annually for opting out of individual-only coverage and family
coverage, respectively.

® Includes retirees, dependent survivors, long-term disability enrollees, extended benefit
enrollees, young adult program enrollees and preferred list enrollees.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, NYSHIP provided health insurance coverage through: the
Empire Plan, an indemnity health insurance plan with managed care components; eight Health
Maintenance Organizations (HMOs); and the Student Employee Health Plan (SEHP). Generally, these
plans include hospital, medical, mental health and substance abuse benefits, and prescription drug
benefits.

The benefit design of the Empire Plan is the result of collective bargaining between the State and the
various unions representing its employees. Therefore, the benefit design is subject to periodic change.
Benefits are administratively extended to nonrepresented State employees, employees of PAs and PEs,
and retirees.

Substantially all of the State’s employees may become eligible for postemployment benefits if they
reach retirement age while working for the State. The costs of providing postemployment benefits are
shared between the State and the retired employee.
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Contributions

Contributions are determined in accordance with Civil Service Law — Article XI, Sections 165, 165-a
and 167, which assigns the authority to NYSHIP to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the
plans and to establish maximum obligations of the plan members to contribute. The costs of
administering the plan are charged as part of the health insurance premium to all payors under the
authority of Section 163.2 of Civil Service Law. A retiree is generally required to pay, on a monthly
basis: (1) 12 percent or 16 percent of the health insurance premium for enrollee-only coverage; and, if
they have dependent coverage: (2) 27 percent or 31 percent of the health insurance premium for the
additional cost of the dependents. The retiree contribution is reduced by the amount of sick leave credits
available at the time of retirement, factored by the employee’s retirement age. Required employer
contribution rates, depending upon enrollee or dependent coverage, are presented in the following table:

Employer Contributions (as Percentages of Premium Rates)

Enrollee Dependent
Enrollee Group Coverage Coverage
Active Graduate Student Employees Union (GSEU)...................... 88 % 73 %
Active (Union and Management-Confidential [MC]) —

Below Grade 10 .....ccooiiiiiiiiiieieeee e 88 % 73 %
Active (Union and MC) — Grade 10 and above ...........cccceeeveeneeennnen. 84 % 69 %
Preferred LiSt.....oovii i 90 % 75 %
Retired before January 1, 1983 . ..o, 100 % 75 %
Retired on/after January 1, 1983 but before January 1, 2012 ........... 88 % 73 %
Retired on/after January 1, 2012 - Below Grade 10 ........................ 88 % 73 %
Retired on/after January 1, 2012 - Grade 10 and above.................... 84 % 69 %
Amended dependent survivors M...............ccooiiiiiiiiie, 75 % 75 %
Full share dependent survivors/long-term disability......................... - % - %
Dependent SUIVIVOTS ........cccuieruieeiiienieeiienieeieesieeereeseeeeeesaeesseesenes 90 % 75 %
Attica dependent SUTVIVOTS. .......ccuieruieriieniienieeiienreeiee e ereeseneeneees 100 % 100 %
VIBSEEES ettt - % - %
COBRA ... - % - %
Young Adult Option enrollees ..........ccccvevieriienierieeiienieereeeee e - % - %
Participating employers and participating agencies @...................... 50 % 35%

(M State contribution for enrollee and dependent coverage is 75 percent of dependent coverage.
@ Values reported are minimum employer share. Employers can pay greater percentages of
premiums for their retirees.

The State reimburses Medicare eligible enrollees for 100 percent of the cost of the monthly Medicare
Part B premium. However, the funding of the cost of the Medicare reimbursements is not the sole
responsibility of the employer. A Medicare Part B component has been incorporated into the NYSHIP
Premium Rates. It is just one component of the NYSHIP premiums in which the above listed employer
contribution percentages are applicable. The premium generated from the Medicare Part B NYSHIP
rate component is utilized to make the Medicare Part B reimbursement payments to Medicare Primary
NYSHIP enrollees.
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OPEB Plans

The State provides several other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans to employees and retirees
primarily through participation in NYSHIP, including plans which are funded by trusts as well as plans
which do not have any associated trusts. The funded plans include the Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Fund (the OPEB Trust), the SUNY Research Foundation and the CUNY Research Foundation. The
unfunded plans cover employees and retirees of SUNY Construction Fund (SUCF), SUNY hospitals,
and CUNY.

Funded Plans
Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund

Legislation establishing the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (the OPEB Trust), a trust meeting the
criteria of GASBS 74, was enacted in 2017 in the joint custody of the Commissioner of the Department
of Civil Service and the State Comptroller. The OPEB Trust provides health care and insurance benefits
to participating retirees of the State (including Lottery, the New York State and Local Retirement
System (NYSLRS), and SUNY excluding SUNY hospitals, SUNY Construction Fund, and SUNY
Research Foundation) and their eligible beneficiaries. The OPEB Trust is considered a single-employer,
defined benefit plan in accordance with GASBS 74 because the assets of the OPEB Trust can be used
to pay the benefits of any employees covered by the OPEB Trust and are not legally restricted by
beneficiary.

Contributions in excess of PAYGO amounts to the OPEB Trust are to be made at the request of the
Director of the Budget. Legislation does not require such contributions to be made to the OPEB Trust
but limits the maximum contributions. As of March 31, 2023, in excess of PAYGO contributions were
limited to 1.5% of the total actuarial accrued liability included in the State’s Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report. The OPEB Trust was initially funded in March 2022. For the year ended March 31,
2023, the State contributed $920 million in excess of PAYGO amounts to the OPEB Trust.

The OPEB Trust is reported as a fiduciary postemployment trust fund in the accompanying financial
statement. The OPEB Trust does not issue a stand-alone audited financial report.
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The following presentation displays the financial statements of the OPEB Trust for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2023 (amounts in millions):

Statement of Fiduciary Financial Position

Assets:

Cash and INVESTMENTS ........coooveiiviiiieiieeeieeeeeeeee e $ 1,250
TOtAl ASSELS ..ueverrerererererererersrsrererssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssnnne 1,250
Total Iabilities ....cccovveeericccsiscnssnenniicccssssssssennsssccsssssnsens -

Net position restricted for other postemployment
DENEILS. . uuereeeeeeeeecerrrrsnneeeeeecccsssssnsasaseecccsssssssnnassseaces $ 1,250

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions — emMpPlOYErS ........cccceeveeveeeeeeieieieriesreeeenne $ 3,415
Net investment INCOME ........ccveeveerieeriienieeniieeieeieeeeeeneees 10
Deductions — other benefits.........c..cccoeeevvieeciieecieccieeeee, (2,495)

Net increase in net position..........ceeeeceecscneicscnrecsnncens 930
Net Position restricted for other postemployment

benefits at April 1, 2022 ......ccceeveeceerensnesacsacsansansasssssssssase $ 320
Net Position restricted for other postemployment

benefits at March 31, 2023........ceceeerreeeeccrnneeeccssnneecccnnns $ 1,250

As of the April 1, 2022 actuarial valuation, plan membership consisted of the following:

Health care Participants State! SUNY @
Active EMployees........oouiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 123,395 33,687
Inactive participants entitled to but not yet receiving benefits.. 165 66
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefit payments.............. 141,102 25,654

Total PartiCipants ........ceeeecceecissnecnseecssneecsssnecssseecsssnscssnens 264,662 59,407

M Includes State, New York State and Local Retirement System, and Lottery participants.

@ Does not cover employees and retirees of SUNY hospitals, SUNY Construction Fund, or SUNY
Research Foundation.

The Commissioner of the Department of Civil Service is the trustee of the OPEB Trust, and the
responsibility for management of the OPEB Trust’s investments has been delegated to the State
Comptroller. Investments must be consistent with State Finance Law Section 98. Additional
information related to the OPEB Trust’s investments for the year ended March 31, 2023, including the
money-weighted return on investments, is presented in Note 2.
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Net OPEB Liability of the OPEB Trust Required Under GASBS 74

Components of the net OPEB liability as of March 31, 2023 are as follows (amounts in millions):

Total OPEB Liability, Ending Balance ..............cccooceevvieiiiiiciiiicienn, $ 57,927
Plan fiduciary net poSItion..........cccceerieriiienieeiiesie e (1,250)

Net OPEB Liability............ccocoooiiiiiiiiieeeeee $ 56,677
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 22 %

Sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB
liability of the OPEB Trust as of March 31, 2023 using the current year’s discount rate, as well as what
the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using rates that are 1 percentage point higher and
1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Net OPEB Liability .......cccoeeveviieiiienieeiieieenes, $ 67,316 $ 56,677 $ 48,345

Sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in health care cost trend rates. The following presents the
net OPEB liability of the State as of March 31, 2023 using the current year’s health care cost trend
rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using rates that are 1
percentage point higher and 1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts in
millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Net OPEB Liability .......cccceeeiiiviiiieieeeieeees, $ 47,666 $ 56,677 $ 68,364

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The net OPEB liability as of March 31, 2023 was determined using an actuarial valuation as of April 1,
2022, with update procedures used to roll forward the net OPEB liability to March 31, 2023. The net
OPEB liability was calculated using the Entry Age Normal cost method. The actuarial valuations
included the following actuarial assumptions:

Assumptions March 31, 2023

Inflation ........ccoeeeeviienieeiieene 2.50 %
Discount Rate .........cccecvveieennnnns 3.50 %
Expected Return on Assets......... 2.73 %

Since the OPEB Trust is only beginning to be funded, the discount rate is based on the Bond Buyer 20-
year General Obligation Municipal Bond Index rate at March 31, 2023.
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The salary increase rates for Police and Military employees (Military and Naval, State Police, and
Corrections) starts at 9 percent and decreases to 2.5 percent after 30 years of service. The salary increase
rates for SUNY starts at 4 percent and decreases to 2 percent after 32 years of service. The salary
increase rates for all other New York State employees start at 7.25 percent and decrease to 2.5 percent
after 31 years.

Health care trend rates were split to reflect separate trends for pre-65 and post-65 claims. The pre-65
trend assumption begins at 6 percent and decreases to 4.5 percent long-term trend rate for all health care
benefits after eight years. The trend assumption for post-65 begins at 5.5 percent and decreases to a 4.5
percent long-term trend rate for all health care benefits after eight years. The drug assumption begins
at 8 percent and decreases to a 4.5 percent long-term trend rate after eight years. Additionally, a trend
of 3 percent per year has been assumed for the employer group waiver plan benefits.

Mortality rates used in the valuation assume different pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality
assumptions based on the Society of Actuaries public sector specific mortality experience tables, PUB
2010. In order to reflect future mortality improvement, the mortality was projected generationally using
the Society of Actuaries MP-2021 projection scale.

Changes in assumptions and other inputs include a change in the discount rate from 2.73 percent in
fiscal year 2022 to 3.50 percent in fiscal year 2023. The discount rate is based on the Bond Buyer 20-
Year General Obligation Municipal Bond Index rate in effect at the measurement date, March 31,
2022 for fiscal year 2022 and March 31, 2023 for fiscal year 2023. The medical trend assumption was
updated based on current anticipation of future costs, and projected claim costs were updated based on
the recent claims experience for the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) plan and premium rates
for the Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) plan. There were no other significant changes in
assumptions that will have an effect on the total OPEB liability as of March 31, 2023.

Net OPEB Liability Related to the OPEB Trust Recognized Under GASBS 75

The changes in the OPEB Trust’s net OPEB liability recognized by the State as of March 31, 2023,
measured as of March 31, 2022, are as follows (amounts in millions):

Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) ©=(@)-(b)

Beginning Balances...........c..cccoovvieiieeiieciieennn, $ 63,269 $ - $ 63,269
SEIVICE COST wevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee et ee e 2,347 - 2,347
INtEreSt.ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 1,509 - 1,509
Difference between expected and actual

EXPCTICTICE. ..ueeeuvreeeerreeeirreenreeesereeensreeensreesnsneennns 291 - 291
Changes in assumptions ...........ccceeceeeveeeneeeeeennen. (2,349) - (2,349)
Benefit payments..........cccoocveveiieniiniiienieeiee (2,270) (2,270) -
Employer contributions ..............cccoevevuevevevenennnn.. - 2,590 (2,590)

NEt ChANEES ..., (472) 320 (792)

Ending Balances ............ceceveeeeerenenenesseesesesnn $ 62,797 320 § 62,477
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Sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB
liability of the OPEB Trust recognized by the State as of March 31, 2023 using the current year’s
discount rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using rates that are
1 percentage point higher and 1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts in
millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(1.73%) (2.73%) (3.73%)
Net OPEB Liability .......ccccoeveviieiienieeiieieenes, $ 74,756 $ 62,477 $ 52,955

Sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in health care cost trend rates. The following presents the
net OPEB liability of the OPEB Trust recognized by the State as of March 31, 2023 using the current
year’s health care cost trend rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using rates that are 1 percentage point higher and 1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate
(amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Net OPEB Liability .......ccccoeeeiieiiiieiiieecieeeees, $ 52,146 $ 62,477 $ 76,040

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to the OPEB Trust

The State recognized $1.5 billion in OPEB expenses related to the OPEB Trust for the year ended March
31,2023. As of March 31, 2023, the State reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources (amounts in millions):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience.................... $ 542 $ 1,982
Changes 1N aSSUMPLIONS.......ccovieriieriieeieeriie ettt 4,147 9,229
Employer contributions made subsequent to the measurement
ATE e 2,951 -

1] 1 N $ 7,640 $ 11,211
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The amount of deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions made subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended
March 31, 2024. The net of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the OPEB Trust as of
measurement date will be recognized in future OPEB expense for the fiscal years ending March 31 as
follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year:

2024 ... $ (2,211)
2025 (1,444)
2026 (1,663)
2027 i (1,117)
Thereafter........c.cccceeueee.n. (87)

11 7:1 [ $ (6,522)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total OPEB liability related to the OPEB Trust as reported by the State as of March 31, 2023 were
measured as of March 31, 2022 and were determined using an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2021,
with update procedures used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to the March 31, 2022 measurement
date. The total OPEB liabilities were calculated using the Entry Age Normal cost method. The actuarial
valuations included the following actuarial assumptions:

Assumptions March 31, 2022
INflation .ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee. 2.50 %
Discount Rate .......coovvvvuueeeeeeeeen. 2.73 %

The discount rate of 2.73 percent was based on the Bond Buyer 20-year General Obligation Municipal
Bond Index rate at March 31, 2022 and was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the OPEB Trust’s total OPEB liability as of March 31, 2022.

The salary increase rate varies by population and grades based on years of service. The salary increase
rates for Police and Military employees (Military and Naval, State Police, and Corrections) starts at 9
percent and decreases to 2.5 percent after 30 years of service. The salary increase rates for SUNY starts
at 4 percent and decreases to 2 percent after 32 years of service. The salary increase rates for all other
New York State employees starts at 7.25 percent and decreases to 2.5 percent after 31 years.

Health care trend rates were split to reflect separate trends for pre-65 and post-65 claims. The pre-65
trend assumption begins at 5.75 percent and decreases to 4.5 percent long-term trend rate for all health
care benefits after seven years. The trend assumption for post-65 begins at 5 percent and decreases to a
4.5 percent long-term trend rate for all health care benefits after seven years. The drug assumption
begins at 7 percent and decreases to a 4.5 percent long-term trend rate after seven years. Additionally,
a trend of 3 percent per year has been assumed for the employer group waiver plan benefits.

Mortality rates used in the valuation assume different pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality
assumptions based on the Society of Actuaries public sector specific mortality experience tables, PUB
2010. In order to reflect future mortality improvement, the mortality is projected generationally using
the Society of Actuaries MP-2021 projection scale.
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Changes in assumptions and other inputs include a change in the discount rate from 2.34 percent in
measured as of March 31, 2021 to 2.73 percent measured as of March 31, 2022. The medical trend
assumption was updated based on current anticipation of future costs, and projected claim costs were
updated based on the recent claims experience for the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) plan and
premium rates for the Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) plan. The experience study performed
in 2022 was reflected, resulting in a 3.1 percent increase in liability for the State (including Lottery and
NYSLRS) and a 10 percent decrease in liability for SUNY. There were no other significant changes in
assumptions that will have an effect on the total OPEB liability as of March 31, 2023.

In accordance with GASBS 75, the actuarial valuation of OPEB also includes the value of sick leave
that will be converted to reduce the retiree’s share of health insurance premiums.

As noted previously, the OPEB Trust includes the State, the NYSLRS, the Lottery, and certain SUNY
participants. Accordingly, a portion of the OPEB Trust’s OPEB liability and related OPEB expenses,
deferred outflows and inflows is proportionally allocated to those entities. See aggregate OPEB tables
that follow for detailed allocations.

The proportionate allocations of the OPEB Trust recognized by NYSLRS include a net OPEB liability
of $255 million and a credit related to OPEB expenses of $1 million as of March 31, 2023. As of March
31, 2023, NYSLRS reported deferred outflows of resources of $31 million and deferred inflows of
resources of $40 million.

SUNY Research Foundation

SUNY Research Foundation, a blended component unit of SUNY, sponsors a separate single employer
defined benefits post-retirement plan that covers substantially all nonstudent employees. The plan
provides post-retirement medical benefits and is contributory for employees hired after 1985. SUNY
Research Foundation had a net OPEB asset of $49 million, deferred outflows of resources of $13 million
and deferred inflows of resources of $33 million as of June 30, 2022. SUNY Research Foundation
recognized a credit related to OPEB of $28 million at June 30, 2022.

CUNY Research Foundation

CUNY Research Foundation, a blended component unit of the CUNY Senior Colleges, provides
postemployment benefits, including salary continuance, to certain employees. The cost of these benefits
is accrued over the employees’ years of service. CUNY Research Foundation also provides certain
health care benefits to retired employees (including eligible dependents): hired prior to July 1,2012 who
have a combination of age and years of service equal to 70 with a minimum age of 55 and at least 10
years of continuous service; hired on or after July 1, 2012 who have a minimum age of 62 and at least
10 years of continuous service. CUNY Research Foundation accounts for post-retirement benefits
provided to retirees on an accrual basis during the period of their employment.
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As of June 30, 2022, CUNY Research Foundation’s post-retirement plan consisted of (amounts in
millions):

Benefit obligations ..........cceeeevieiiiiiiieeieeeeeee e $ (138)
Fair value of plan assets..........cceceeveeiiiiiieniiiieeieeeeee 174
Funding Status ........coeievienveinsninsenssninssnnssnnesssnssssesssssnsene: $ 36
Unfunded Plans
SUNY Unfunded

The OPEB Trust covers SUNY employees and retirees excluding those who are employees and retirees
of SUNY Construction Fund (SUCF), SUNY hospitals, and SUNY Research Foundation. Employees
and retirees of SUNY hospitals and SUNY Construction Fund are referred to herein as SUNY Unfunded.
SUNY Research Foundation employees and retirees were addressed previously, as a trust exists for such
employees and retirees separate from the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund.

As of the April 1, 2021 actuarial valuation, plan membership consisted of the following:

SUNY
Health care Participants Unfunded®
Active EMPIOYEES ....ovviiiiiiiieciieeeeee e 13,343
Inactive participants entitled to but not yet receiving benefits . 37
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefit payments............. 4,210
Total PartiCipants ..........ceeievvercsseicssnencssnnecssssecssssessssessssses 17,590

M Includes those employees and retirees of SUNY hospitals, SUNY Construction Fund.

At June 30, 2022, SUNY reported an OPEB liability related to SUNY Unfunded measured as of March
31, 2022. SUNY Unfunded’s total OPEB liability was determined using an actuarial valuation as of
April 1, 2021, with update procedures used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to the March 31,
2022 measurement date. Actuarial methods and assumptions for SUNY Unfunded are the same as those
of the OPEB Trust recognized by the State under GASBS 75 and are discussed in further detail
previously in this note.
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SUNY Unfunded changes in the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 were as follows (amounts in
millions):

Total OPEB
Liability

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning Balance...................... $ 2,857
SETVICE COST..iiutiiiiiiiiieiiieiie ettt 119
INEETESE .. 69
Difference between expected and actual experience...... 68
Changes 1n aSSUMPLIONS .......eecveeruieeiierieeiienieeieenee e (300)
Benefit payments........c.oeeveeeriieeniieeiiee e (59)
NEt ChANEES ..oovvviviiieiieeieee et (103)

Total OPEB Liability, Ending Balance .................... $ 2,754

Sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB
liability of SUNY Unfunded as of June 30, 2022 using the current year’s discount rate, as well as
what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using rates that are 1 percentage point
higher and 1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(1.73%) (2.73%) (3.73%)
Total OPEB Liability........c.ccccoevviviniieriennnens $ 3,378 $ 2,754 $ 2,281

Sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in health care cost trend rates. The following presents
the total OPEB liability of SUNY Unfunded as of June 30, 2022 using the current year’s health care
cost trend rates, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using rates

that are 1 percentage point higher and 1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts
in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Total OPEB Liability........cccccovevviieniieniiennnnn. $ 2,243 $ 2,754 $ 3,439

SUNY Unfunded recognized $55 million in expenses related to OPEB at June 30, 2022. As of June 30,
2022, SUNY Unfunded reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
from the following sources (amounts in millions):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience..................... $ 103 $ 167
Change in aSSUMPLIONS ......eeereveeerieeeiieeerieeeeieeesreeesaeeesseeessneeenns 249 685
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date...... 16 -

TOLAL oreeeeererernrereresesesssesesessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss $ 368 $ 852
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The amount of deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions made subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended
June 30, 2023. The remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in future OPEB expense for the fiscal years ending
June 30 as follows (amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year:

2023 e $ (133)
2024 ..o, (116)
2025 i, 97)
2026 ..o, (89)
2027 e, (58)
Thereafter.................... (@)

Total ....ccceeveeeceecunennn: $ (500)

CUNY

CUNY retirees receive retiree health care benefits through the New York City Health Benefits Program,
which is a single-employer defined benefit health care plan. There are no assets accumulated in a trust
that meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS 75. The plan covers individuals who were originally
employed by CUNY Senior Colleges and who receive pensions from one of the following three pension
plans within the New York City Retirement System (NYCRS): New York City Employees’ Retirement
System (NYCERS); New York City Teachers’ Retirement System (NYCTRS); and New York City
Board of Education Retirement System (BERS). The program also covers individuals under alternate
retirement arrangements. The most significant alternate arrangement is under Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association (TTAA) rather than through NYCRS. New York City pays for the coverage (Basic
Coverage and Welfare Fund contributions) for retirees in NYCRS and TIAA who retired from
community colleges.

Employees covered by benefit terms, as of the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation date:

Health care Participants

ACHIVE EMPIOYEES ..cneviiniiieiiieiie ettt ettt ettt st 14,798
Inactive participants entitled to but not yet receiving benefits ............ccceeceeeieeneenen. 989
Inactive participants and beneficiaries receiving benefit payments...............ccceuenee.. 6,127

Total PartiCIPANtS.....ccueeeevceiiiiseicnssencssnncssnicssssncssssesssssesssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 21,914
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

At June 30,2022, CUNY recognized a total OPEB liability of $1.5 billion measured as of June 30, 2022.
The total OPEB liability was determined using an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 with update
procedures used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to the June 30, 2022 measurement date. The
actuarial valuations included the following actuarial assumptions:

¢ Inflation: 2.50 percent per annum.

e Actuarial cost method: Entry Age Normal, level percent of pay.

e The discount rate used to measure liabilities was updated to reflect the S&P Municipal Bond 20-
Year High Grade Index yield of 4.09 percent as of June 30, 2022 as per New York City Office
of Actuary.

e The salary increase rates vary by experience and vary from 10 percent decreasing to 1.76 percent
for those with 40 years of service.

e Health care cost trend rates were split into three categories: pre-Medicare plan rates trended from
6.5 percent to 5.5 percent from 2022 to 2026 and beyond; medical post-Medicare rates trended
from 4.9 percent to 4.7 percent from 2022 to 2026 and beyond; and welfare fund contributions
used health care trend rates which trended from 0 percent to 3.5 percent from 2022 to 2026 and
beyond.

e Mortality rates used in the CUNY valuation assume different pre-retirement and post-retirement
mortality. Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality is based on the experience under
NYCTRS. In order to reflect future mortality improvement, the mortality is projected
generationally using the Society of Actuaries scale MP-2020.

CUNY’s changes in the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 were as follows (amounts in millions):

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning Balance .............ccccccevevvevievieviennennne. $ 2,047
SETVICE COST ..ttt ettt 117
INEETESE .. 47
Difference between expected and actual experience ...........ccccveeeveennee. (148)
Changes 1N aSSUMPLIONS .....cccvireeiieeeiieeeieeesteeesteeerreeeseeeereeeesseeesssees (486)
Benefit pAymMENntSs ........ccveeeciiieiiiiecie e (35)
NEt CHANZES ....eeciiieeiiecce e e e re e e sree e (505)

Total OPEB Liability, Ending Balance............cccecceeeuicsverccnrcscercsncens $ 1,542

Sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB
liability of CUNY as of June 30, 2022, using the current year’s discount rate, as well as what the total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using rates that are 1 percentage point higher and 1
percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(3.09%) (4.09%) (5.09%)

Total OPEB Liability........cccccceevviiniiienennee, $ 1,773 $ 1,542 $ 1,352
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Sensitivity of total OPERB liability to changes in health care cost trend rates. The following presents the
total OPEB liability of CUNY as of June 30, 2022 using the current year’s health care cost trend rates,
as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if calculated using rates that are 1 percentage point
higher and 1 percentage point lower than the current year’s rate (amounts in millions):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Total OPEB Liability.........cccceevvieniiienennee, $ 1,287 $ 1,542 $ 1,879

CUNY recognized $89 million in expenses related to OPEB at June 30, 2022. As of June 30, 2022,
CUNY reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources (amounts in millions):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience..................... $ 194 $ 275
Change in aSSUMPLIONS .....cccuveruieriieeiieriieeieenieeereesieeseeesaeeeeveenes 46 557
1] 7 | RO $ 240 $ 832

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in future OPEB expense for the fiscal years ending June 30 as follows
(amounts in millions):

Fiscal Year:

2023 e $  (68)
2024 i (68)
2025 e (68)
2026 ..vieiieiieieeie (68)
2027 e (74)
Thereafter.................... 246
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Aggregate OPEB Tables
Aggregate Liabilities

The table below summarizes the aggregate OPEB liabilities recognized for each OPEB plan reported
within the State, in the accompanying financial statements (amounts in millions).

Primary
Governmental Government Total By
Plan Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total NYSLRS Plan

Retiree Health

Benefit Trust

(Net) cveeeeeeenee. $ 52,616 $ 66 $ 9,540 $ - $ 62,222 $ 255 $ 62,477
SUNY Hospitals

and SUCF

(Total)................ - - 2,754 - 2,754 - 2,754
SUNY Research

Foundation

CUNY (Total) ..... - - - 1,542 1,542 - 1,542
CUNY Research

Foundation

(Net) coeeverereens - - - - - - -

Total......cuceuennene $ 52,616 $ 66 §$ 12294 § 1,542  § 66,518 § 255  § 66,773

Aggregate Assets

The table below summarizes the aggregate OPEB assets recognized for each OPEB plan reported
within the State, in the accompanying financial statements (amounts in millions).

Primary
Governmental Government Total By
Plan Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total NYSLRS Plan

Retiree Health
Benefit Trust

SUNY Hospitals

and SUCF

(Total)......cceuenee - - - - - - -
SUNY Research

Foundation

CUNY (Total) ..... - - - - - - -
CUNY Research
Foundation
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Aggregate Expenses

The table below summarizes the aggregate OPEB expenses recognized for each OPEB plan reported
within the State, in the accompanying financial statements (amounts in millions).

Primary
Governmental Government Total By

Plan Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total NYSLRS Plan
Retiree Health

Benefit Trust..... $ 1,680 $ 1 3 (188) % - $ 1,493 § (O 1,492
SUNY Hospitals

and SUCF ......... - - 55 - 55 - 55
SUNY Research

Foundation........ - - (28) - (28) - (28)
CUNY ...coovinins - - - 89 89 - 89
CUNY Research

Foundation......... - - - - - - -

Total........cuce.... $ 1,680 $ 1 S (161) $ 89 § 1,609 $ @ s 1,608

Deferred Outflows

The table below summarizes the aggregate deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB recognized
for each OPEB plan reported within the State, in the accompanying financial statements (amounts in
millions).

Primary
Governmental Government Total By

Plan Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total NYSLRS Plan
Retiree Health

Benefit Trust..... $ 6,371 $ 8 $ 1,230  $ - $ 7,609 § 31 $ 7,640
SUNY Hospitals

and SUCF ......... - - 368 - 368 - 368
SUNY Research

Foundation........ - - 13 - 13 - 13
CUNY oot - - - 240 240 - 240
CUNY Research

Foundation........ - - - - - - -

17 P $ 6371 § 8 $§ 1,611 $ 240§ 8230 $ 31§ 826l
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Deferred Inflows

The table below summarizes the aggregate deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB recognized
for each OPEB plan reported within the State, in the accompanying financial statements (amounts in

millions).
Primary
Governmental Government Total By

Plan Activities Lottery SUNY CUNY Total NYSLRS Plan
Retiree Health

Benefit Trust...... $ 8,235 $ 10 $ 2926 $ - $ 11,171 $ 40 S 11,211
SUNY Hospitals

and SUCF .......... - - 852 - 852 - 852
SUNY Research

Foundation......... - - 33 - 33 - 33
CUNY ...covvine. - - - 832 832 - 832
CUNY Research

Foundation......... - - - - - - -

Total......coveeuennee $ 8235 § 10 S 3811  § 832 § 12,888  § 40 S 12,928
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NOTE 14 - Discretely Presented Component Units - Public Benefit Corporations

Discretely presented component units, public benefit corporations (Corporations), as defined in Note 1,
are legally separate entities that are not operating departments of the State. The Corporations are
managed independently, outside the appropriated budget process, and their powers generally are vested
in a governing board. Corporations are established for the benefit of the State’s citizenry for a variety
of purposes such as economic development, financing, and public transportation. They are not subject
to State constitutional restrictions on the incurrence of debt, which apply to the State itself, and may
issue bonds and notes within legislatively authorized amounts.

Corporations are generally supported by revenues derived from their activities, although the State has
provided financial assistance, in some cases of a recurring nature, to certain Corporations for operating
and other expenses. Financial assistance in the form of appropriated loans, contributed capital or
operating subsidies for certain Corporations, principally the Metropolitan Transportation Authority, the
Roswell Park Cancer Institute, and the Urban Development Corporation, was provided in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2023, and such assistance is expected to be required in future years. Accordingly, the
fiscal condition of the State is related to the fiscal stability of the Corporations.

Thirty-six of the 43 entities listed below are discretely presented component units of the State because
the Governor, with the approval of the State Senate, appoints the voting majority of the boards of
directors of these Corporations, and the State is able to impose its will on the Corporations and/or has a
financial benefit or burden relationship with the Corporations. The Governor does not have substantive
appointment authority over the board of directors of the Rochester-Genesee Regional Transportation
Authority. However, it is a discretely presented component unit because it is fiscally dependent upon,
and has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the State. Health Research, Inc., Metropolitan
Transportation Authority, New York Racing Association, Research Foundation for Mental Hygiene,
Inc., State University of New York Foundations and Auxiliary Corporations, and City University of
New York—Senior College Supporting Organizations are included as component units of the State
because the nature and significance of their relationships with the State are such that it would be
misleading to exclude them.

The amounts presented in the accompanying basic financial statements for the Corporations include the
following entities for the fiscal years indicated:

Entities Audited by KPMG LLP: Fiscal Year-End
Dormitory Authority of the State of New YorK ........cccoeovivivieniinciienenns March 31, 2023*
Long Island Power AUthOTity ........ccceeiiiriienieniieieciceee e December 31, 2022*
New York POwer AUthOTItY .......cccvevviieeiieiiieiiecieeieeeee e December 31, 2022*
New York Racing Association, INC. ..........cceeeeeiiiniiiinieniieeceeeen December 31, 2022*
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority ............. March 31, 2023*
New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation .........c...cccceeee.... March 31, 2023*
New York State Higher Education Services Corporation ...................... March 31, 2023*
State University of New York Foundations and Auxiliary

COTPOTALIONS. ....veeuvieeiiieiieeieetee et esieeebeesteeeebeesseeebeesaessseeseessseesseanes June 30, 2022%*
Entities Audited by Other Auditors: Fiscal Year-End
Aggregate Trust Fund...........coooooiiiiiiiiiiee e December 31, 2022

Agriculture and New York State Horse Breeding Development
Fund Corporation ...........ccceecieriereniinienienieneeeeeesie e December 31, 2022*
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Albany Convention Center AUthOTILY .......ccccecerieniriiiniinieiencneeeeen December 31, 2022*
Capital District Transportation Authority .........ccceceveeevieeniieeniieeeieeeee, March 31, 2023*
Central New York Regional Transportation Authority.........c..cccceeevenee March 31, 2023*
City University of New York—Senior College Supporting
OTZANIZALIONS. ....c..eeutiiieieiieeitete ettt ettt June 30, 2022
Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc..................... March 31, 2023
Health Research, INC.........c.coovviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e March 31, 2023*
Homeless Housing and Assistance Corporation ............c.ceeceeeeveenveennnnnne. March 31, 2023*
Housing Trust Fund Corporation .........cc.cceceeeererieneenenicneenenieneenens March 31, 2023*
Hudson River-Black River Regulating District..........cccccceeevvveniiiciiennnnns June 30, 2022*
Hugh L. Carey Battery Park City Authority........ccccoceviininiinnininnnnnn. October 31, 2022*
Metropolitan Transportation AUthOrity .........ccceevveriieeciieriieiienie e, December 31, 2022*
The Long Island Rail Road Company ..........ccccceceevervienicnennienicnene December 31, 2022
Metro-North Commuter Railroad Company ..........cccccceeevveeveennnennnnn. December 31, 2022
Staten Island Rapid Transit Operating Authority..........cccccecvereenennee. December 31, 2022
First Mutual Transportation Assurance Company ..............cc.ceevvenese.. December 31, 2022
MTA Construction and Development ..........cccccoceeveeveniinennieneennenn December 31, 2022
MTA BUs COMPANY ...oeveniiieeiiieiiieeeiieecieeeeieeesieeesveeesereeesveeesereeenes December 31, 2022
MTA Grand Central Madison Concourse Operating Company......... December 31, 2022
New York City Transit AUthOTItY .......cccvvevvieriieiienieeiieeie e December 31, 2022
Triborough Bridge and Tunnel Authority ..........ccoceeviiiiiiniiniienins December 31, 2022
Municipal Bond Bank AGency ..........cccceevuieviieniienieniieieeieesie e October 31, 2022*
Natural Heritage Trust.......ccceeiuieiiieiienieeeeieeee e March 31, 2023*
Governor Nelson A. Rockefeller Empire State Plaza Performing
Arts Center COrporation .........cc.eevueeeerieerierieneerientenieeeeneeneeseeseeenneenne March 31, 2023*
New York Convention Center Operating Corporation..............ccc.eenee... March 31, 2023*
New York State Affordable Housing Corporation.......c..cccceeeeeeevuennnenne. March 31, 2023*
New York State Bridge AUuthOrity.........ccooovieeiieniieiiienieeeeeieeeeeee e, December 31, 2022%*
New York State Health Foundation ...............ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecceee. December 31, 2022
New York State Housing Finance Agency..........cccevveeveeniencieeneeeneennen. October 31, 2022%*
New York Job Development Authority.........ccccecevieniniinicncnicneciennn. March 31, 2023*
New York State Olympic Regional Development Authority.................. March 31, 2023*
New York State Thoroughbred Breeding and Development
FUund Corporation ..........c.cecueeeereriienieeiiieeiecieeeee e eee v e sne e December 31, 2022%*
New York State Thruway Authority .........ccccecerieniniinienieiinceceee December 31, 2022*
Niagara Frontier Transportation AUthOrity .........cccccceeveveevienieenieeniennnen. March 31, 2023*
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port AuthOrity ........ccocevervienieniniicniiicnienene March 31, 2023*
Port of OSWego AUthOTILY ....ccvieviiiiiiiiieiietece e March 31, 2023*
Research Foundation for Mental Hygiene, Inc. .........cccocceviiiiiiniinncns March 31, 2023*
Rochester-Genesee Regional Transportation Authority.......................... March 31, 2023*
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation...........cceeeeveeerveeerieeerveesseeennns March 31, 2023*
Roswell Park Cancer INStITULE .........oooiiiviiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeceeeeeeeee e March 31, 2023*
State Insurance FUNd ...........ooeviiiiiiii e December 31, 2022
State of New York Mortgage Aency.........cceeveerveeieenieeniienieenieeeeeenees October 31, 2022*
Urban Development Corporation ..........c.cceccueeeeveeeeieeecieeeniveeesveeeseveeennns March 31, 2023*

* Audit conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards as promulgated by the
Comptroller General of the United States.
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** KPMG LLP audited 32 percent of the total assets and 9 percent of the total revenues of the State
University of New York Foundations and Auxiliary Corporations. The remaining balances were audited
by other auditors.

Financial Information

Substantially all the financial data for the Corporations was derived from audited annual financial
statements and summarized into the combining statement format in the basic financial statements. Ten
of the 43 discrete entities are presented as major and comprise 93 percent of the combined assets and 78
percent of the combined program revenues of the Corporations (before eliminations). The remaining
portion of this note contains a brief description of the operations of the ten major discretely presented
component units. A presentation of their accounts is included in the Combining Statement of Net
Position and the Combining Statement of Activities. Additional information about each of the
Corporations can be obtained by contacting the Corporations directly and requesting a copy of their
annual financial reports, or by visiting their websites.

Certain Corporations issue revenue bonds for independent third-party entities to provide funding for the
projects of those third parties. These bonds are considered conduit debt and are secured by payments
made by third-party entities and in some cases certain other pledged funds. These bonds do not
constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the Corporations or the State. The Dormitory
Authority of the State of New York (DASNY), the New York State Housing Finance Agency (HFA),
the Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC), the New York State Energy Research and Development
Authority (NYSERDA) and the New York Job Development Authority (JDA) have issued conduit debt
and have elected different, but permissible, methods of accounting for it under GAAP. DASNY has
elected not to report conduit debt and related assets on its Statement of Net Position. As of March 31,
2023, the liability reported in DASNY’s footnotes for such debt was approximately $21 billion. HFA
elected to report conduit debt and related assets on its Statement of Net Position. As of October 31,
2022, the liability HFA reported for such debt was approximately $11.8 billion. As of March 31, 2023,
EFC’s Statement of Net Position did not include $105 million in bonds it issued for certain private
companies. NYSERDA has issued conduit debt for participating gas and electric utility companies and
other private purpose users, the principal of which totaled approximately $1.5 billion as of March 31,
2023, which is not included on NYSERDA'’s Statement of Net Position. Local Development
Corporations that are blended component units of JDA have issued conduit debt which is not included
on JDA’s combined Statement of Net Position. As of March 31, 2023, the principal on these bonds
totaled approximately $16 billion.

Power Authority

The New York Power Authority (NYPA) was created in 1931 to help provide a continuous adequate
supply of dependable electric power and energy to the people of the State. NYPA’s mission is to lead
the transition to a carbon-free, economically vibrant New York through new transmission solutions,
renewable energy production, and innovative energy solutions. NYPA generates, transmits, and sells
electric power and energy principally at wholesale to various customers including private and municipal
utilities and to the New York Independent System Operator, Inc.

NYPA owns and operates five major generating facilities, eleven small electric generating units located
at seven facilities, four small hydroelectric facilities, and more than 1,400 circuit miles of transmission
lines. Three of NYPA’s largest facilities are the Niagara Power Project at Lewiston, the Blenheim-
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Gilboa Pumped Storage Power Project at Blenheim and Gilboa and the St. Lawrence-Franklin D.
Roosevelt Power Project at Massena. These hydroelectric facilities have a net dependable capability of
producing 2,675, 1,169.9 and 833 megawatts, respectively.

As of December 31,2022, NYPA received all the installment payments from the State treasury and there
is no remaining balance.

The financial statements of NYPA can be obtained at www.nypa.gov.

Housing Finance Agency

Housing Finance Agency (HFA) was created as a public benefit corporation in 1960 under Article III
of the Private Housing Finance Law. HFA is empowered to finance or contract for the financing of the
construction, acquisition, or refinancing of loans for: low-to-moderate income housing; municipal health
facilities; non-profit health care facilities; community related facilities; and to provide funds to repay
the State for amounts advanced to finance the cost of various housing assistance programs. HFA,
through its Capital Grant Low Rent Assistance Program, rents housing to low- and middle-income
persons and families. HFA also participates in Federal housing assistance programs which provide
interest reduction and rental assistance subsidies to eligible projects and tenants. HFA administers the
State’s Housing Project Repair and Infrastructure Trust Fund Programs.

To finance low-income housing, HFA raises funds through the issuance of municipal securities and the
making of mortgage loans to eligible borrowers. HFA is authorized to issue bonds in the amount of
approximately $31.3 billion to finance housing projects, and approximately $13.1 billion in Service
Contract Obligation Revenue Bonds, Service Contract Revenue Bonds and Personal Income Tax
Revenue Bonds. Total bond indebtedness reported as of October 31, 2022 was approximately $18
billion.

The financial statements can be obtained by contacting HFA at www.hcr.ny.gov.
Thruway Authority

The New York State Thruway Authority (NYSTA) was created as a public benefit corporation by the
State Legislature in 1950 with powers to build, operate and maintain a Thruway system. NYSTA is
responsible for a 570-mile system of highways crossing New York State, the longest toll highway
system in the United States. NYSTA’s 426-mile Thruway mainline connects New York City and
Buffalo, the State’s two largest cities. Other Thruway sections provide for connections with
Connecticut, Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and to highways that lead to the Midwest and
Canada.

In 1991, the Legislature empowered NYSTA to issue Local Highway and Bridge Service Contract
(LHB) Bonds to provide funds to municipalities throughout the State for qualifying capital expenditures
under State programs. In 1993, the Legislature authorized NYSTA to issue Highway and Bridge Trust
Fund (HBTF) Bonds to reimburse the State for expenditures made by the State’s Department of
Transportation in connection with the State’s multi-year Highway and Bridge Capital Program. In 2001,
the Legislature authorized NYSTA to issue Personal Income Tax (PIT) Revenue Bonds to provide funds
to municipalities and other project sponsors throughout the State for qualifying local highway, bridge
and multi-modal capital project expenditures under established State programs. In 2013, the Legislature
authorized NYSTA to issue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds to fund transportation capital project expenditures
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under established State programs. There are currently no NYSTA LHB or Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
outstanding.

The financial position of and activities relating to the special bond programs (LHB, HBTF, PIT, and
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds) are reported within the funds of the State, rather than under the NYSTA,
because these special bond programs are not separate legal entities but are considered funds of the State.

In 2021, NYSTA entered into a 33-year public-private partnership agreement with Empire State
Thruway Partners, LLC (Empire) for the design, construction, finance, operation, and maintenance of
NYSTA’s 27 Service Areas. Under the agreement, Empire will rebuild 23 of the 27 service area
restaurant buildings and perform significant renovations to the remaining four.

The financial statements can be obtained by contacting NYSTA at www.thruway.ny.gov.
Metropolitan Transportation Authority

The Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) was created in 1965 to continue, develop and
improve public transportation and to develop and implement a unified public transportation policy in
the New York City metropolitan area. The accounts presented as the MTA are the combined accounts
of its headquarters and nine affiliates and subsidiaries. The MTA is North America's largest
transportation network, serving a population of 15.3 million people across a 5,000-square-mile travel
area surrounding New York City, Long Island, southeastern New York State, and Connecticut. The
MTA network comprises the nation’s largest bus fleet and more subway and commuter rail cars than all
other U.S. transit systems combined. The MTA is dependent upon the State for a portion of its revenues.
During the MTA fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, the MTA reported $6 billion in payments from
the State. A portion of that aid was in payments from the State’s Mass Transportation Operating
Assistance Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, which derives a major portion of its receipts from taxes
imposed in the Metropolitan Transportation District for this purpose. A significant portion of that aid
came from the Metropolitan Commuter Transportation Mobility Tax enacted in 2009, which is a tax
imposed on certain employers and self-employed individuals engaging in business within the
Metropolitan Transportation District.

Capital assets acquired prior to April 1982 for the New York City Transit Authority (NYCTA) were
funded primarily by New York City through capital grants. New York City has title to a substantial
portion of such assets, which are not included among the assets reported under MTA. In certain
instances, title to MTA Bridges and Tunnels’ real property may revert to New York City in the event
the MTA determines it is unnecessary for corporate purposes. The federal government has a contingent
equity interest in assets acquired by the MTA with federal funds, and upon disposal of such assets, the
federal government may have a right to its share of the proceeds from the sale.

During 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic caused a significant decline in ridership, resulting in a material
impact on MTA’s operations, financial position, and cash flows. MTA secured financial assistance
under various forms of economic aid and relief packages.

The financial statements of MTA can be obtained at www.mta.info.
Dormitory Authority

The Dormitory Authority of the State of New York (DASNY) is a public benefit corporation established
in 1944. DASNY’s purpose is to finance, design, construct, purchase, reconstruct and/or rehabilitate
buildings for use by public and private educational, healthcare, and other not-for-profit institutions
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located within the State; certain State agencies; local school districts; and cities and counties with respect
to certain court and municipal facilities.

DASNY's outstanding bonds and notes of $33.5 billion consists of debt issued for New York State
agency projects ($18.1 billion), SUNY projects ($10.8 billion) and CUNY projects ($4.6 billion).

The financial statements of DASNY can be obtained at www.dasny.org.
Long Island Power Authority

The Long Island Power Authority (LIPA) was established in 1985 as a corporate municipal
instrumentality of the State. On May 28, 1998, the LIPA Acquisition Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary of LIPA, was merged with and into the Long Island Lighting Company (LILCO) pursuant to
an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 26, 1997. LIPA financed the cost of the merger and
the refinancing of certain LILCO’s outstanding debt through the issuance of Electric System General
Revenue Bonds and Electric System Subordinated Revenue Bonds. The excess of the acquisition costs
over the fair value of net position acquired has been reported as an intangible asset, which is being
amortized through 2026.

Chapter 173 of the Laws of 2013 codified LIPA Reform Act which created the Securitization Law that
established the Utility Debt Securitization Authority (UDSA) to permit the issuance of restructuring
bonds to allow LIPA to retire a portion of its outstanding indebtedness in order to provide debt service
savings to LIPA’s customers. In accordance with GASBS No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, UDSA is considered a blended
component unit of LIPA. On August 21, 2021, the Securitization Law was amended to allow UDSA to
issue additional securitized bonds for refinancing, storm hardening and resiliency purposes with a total
issuance of up to $8 billion of UDSA restructuring bonds, inclusive of the bonds already issued.

LIPA, as owner of the transmission and distribution (T&D) system located in Nassau, Suffolk and a
small portion of Queens counties, is responsible for supplying electricity to customers in the service
area. Under a contract starting January 1, 2014, responsibility for major operational and policy-making
services for the T&D system effectively shifted from LIPA to Public Service Enterprise Group (PSEG)
Long Island LLC for a period of twelve years expiring in 2025.

The financial statements can be obtained by contacting LIPA at www.lipower.org.

Urban Development Corporation

The New York State Urban Development Corporation (UDC) was established by legislative act in
1968 as a corporate governmental agency of the State. UDC, together with its subsidiaries, conducts
business as Empire State Development. UDC is engaged in various activities for the State, three of
which are: promoting economic development and job creation, financing special projects throughout
the State with revenue bonds, and marketing the State as a great place to do business and as a vacation
destination.

UDC continues its efforts to foster economic development through the State by working in partnership
with the public and private sectors to enhance the State’s competitive advantage as the world capital
for many industries, ranging from finance and media to technology and agriculture. Its mission is to
promote a vigorous and growing State economy, encourage business investment and job creation, and
support diverse, prosperous local economies across the State through efficient use of loans, grants, tax
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credits, real estate development, marketing, and other forms of assistance. Financial assistance is
provided primarily through State appropriated funds received by UDC and State supported bonds
issued by UDC which are disbursed to projects.

UDC continues to administer and manage a robust marketing program to help drive the State economy.
The program has multiple components, which are broadly focused on two areas: increasing the State’s
tourism through consumer and trade programs that heighten the visibility of New York’s world class
tourism attractions as ideal vacation destinations and attracting companies looking to expand, move or
begin their operations in New York. UDC is also the administrative agency for the New York State
Film Tax Credit Program, which is designed to increase the film production and post-production
industry presence in and provide overall economic benefits to the State.

The financial statements of UDC can be obtained at www.esd.ny.gov.

State Insurance Fund

The State Insurance Fund (SIF) was created in 1914 and comprises the Workers’ Compensation Fund
and the Disability Benefits Fund. SIF is primarily engaged in providing workers' compensation and
disability benefit insurance for employers in the State of New York.

During previous fiscal years, SIF transferred approximately $1.3 billion to the State’s General Fund and
Other Governmental Funds. The statutes authorizing these transfers required that the State appropriate
amounts annually for the potential repayment of the transfers. Such repayment is required only to
maintain the solvency, as defined, of the Workers’ Compensation Fund. The entire receivable and equity
related to these transfers were eliminated from the financial statement presentation of SIF. Further, after
recognizing the total OPEB liability noted below, the resulting fund balance is approximately $6 billion.

SIF’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with the accounting practices prescribed by the
New York State Department of Financial Services, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The State has
adjusted SIF’s financial statements to recognize a total OPEB liability of $733 million in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 75 for its respective proportionate share in the State’s total OPEB liability.

A complete list of departures from GAAP is disclosed in the SIF’s financial statements, which may be
obtained from ww3.nysif.com.

State of New York Mortgage Agency

The State of New York Mortgage Agency (SONYMA) was established in 1970 and makes mortgages
available to first-time and other qualifying home buyers through its Low Interest Rate Program and other
specialized home ownership programs. To accomplish this purpose, SONYMA issues tax-exempt and
taxable mortgage revenue bonds for direct issuance of forward commitments for new mortgage loans
through participating financial institutions. SONYMA also provides mortgage insurance for qualifying
real property loans through its Mortgage Insurance Fund. By statute, all costs of providing mortgage
insurance are recovered from a State mortgage recording tax surcharge, which is a dedicated tax revenue
stream received directly by SONYMA. In April 2009, SONYMA'’s statutory authority to purchase
education loans was updated and expanded to permit the Agency to work with the New York State
Higher Education Services Corporation in developing a new program to offer education loans to eligible
students attending colleges and universities in New York State. In 2016, legislation was adopted
authorizing the creation of the New York State Community Restoration Fund, a program to assist
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homeowners affected by the national mortgage crisis. The fund is held by SONYMA and managed by
a subsidiary of SONYMA called the SONYMA Community Restoration Fund. The agency is a partner
in a joint venture with New Jersey Community Capital, and currently owns approximately 570 defaulted
mortgage loans.

The financial statements can be obtained by contacting SONYMA at www.hcr.ny.gov.
Environmental Facilities Corporation

The New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) is a public benefit corporation, formed
in 1970 pursuant to the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation Act. The mission of EFC
is to assist communities throughout New York State to undertake critical water quality infrastructure
projects by providing access to low-cost capital, grants, and expert technical assistance. A primary goal
is to ensure that these projects remain affordable while safeguarding essential water resources. EFC
supports this mission by consistently using an innovative approach to developing and advancing new
financing strategies to maximize the funding that can be made available to clients, aiding compliance
with Federal and State requirements, and promoting green infrastructure practices. EFC assesses and
collects fees charged to clients for various services.

EFC is empowered by State law to: administer the Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving
Funds (SRFs), established by the State as set forth in the EFC Act pursuant to the federal Water Quality
Act of 1987 and the federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996; finance, through the
issuance of special obligation revenue bonds under its Industrial Finance Program, water management,
solid waste disposal, sewage treatment and pollution control projects undertaken by or on behalf of
private entities; and to provide technical advice and assistance to private entities, state agencies and
local government units on sewage treatment and collection, pollution control, recycling, hazardous
waste abatement, solid waste disposal, and other related subjects. Total bond indebtedness reported as
of March 31, 2023 was approximately $5.6 billion and total bonds receivable was approximately $6.7
billion.

The financial statements of EFC can be obtained at www.efc.ny.gov.

Eliminations

Eliminations are made primarily to avoid duplicate reporting of assets and liabilities. Eliminations
related to bonds payable are explained in Note 7, where the State services a significant portion of the
bonds and notes payable of certain Corporations. An elimination is also made regarding the contingent
receivable report by SIF.
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NOTE 15 - Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an entity that results from a contractual arrangement and is owned, operated, or
governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control, in which
the participants retain an ongoing financial interest or an ongoing financial responsibility. The only
material joint venture in which the State has an interest is the Port Authority of New York and New
Jersey (Port Authority).

The Port Authority is a municipal corporate instrumentality of the States of New York and New Jersey
created by compact between the two states in 1921 with the consent of the Congress of the United States.
The Port Authority is authorized and directed to plan, develop, and operate terminals and other facilities
of transportation and commerce, and to advance projects in the general fields of transportation,
economic development, and world trade that contribute to promoting and protecting the commerce and
economy of the Port District, defined in the compact, which comprises an area of about 1,500 square
miles in both states, centering around New York Harbor.

The Governor of each state appoints six of the twelve members of the governing Board of
Commissioners, subject to confirmation by the respective state senate. Governors have from time to
time exercised their statutory power to veto the actions of the commissioners from their states.

The commissioners serve six-year overlapping terms as public officials without compensation. They
establish Port Authority policy, appoint an Executive Director to implement it, and appoint a General
Counsel to act as legal advisor to the Board and to the Executive Director.

The compact envisions the Port Authority as being financially self-sustaining and, as such, it must obtain
the funds necessary for the construction or acquisition of facilities upon the basis of its own credit. The
Port Authority does not have the power to pledge the credit of either state or any municipality, or the
authority to levy taxes or assessments.

The liabilities of the Port Authority include $26.8 billion of consolidated bonds. Consolidated bonds
and notes are equally and ratably secured by a pledge of the net revenues of all existing facilities and
any additional facilities, which may be financed in whole or in part through the medium of consolidated
bonds and notes.

The Port Authority follows accounting principles that are generally accepted in the United States of
America as prescribed by the GASB. Certain schedules have been prepared in accordance with Port
Authority bond resolutions, which differ in some respects from these accounting principles.

The financial statements of the Port Authority can be obtained at www.panynj.gov.
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Consolidated financial statements of the Port Authority for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022
disclosed the following (amounts in millions):

Financial Position

TOtAl ASSEES .ot eeeeeee e $ 61,522
Total deferred outflows of resources. .................. 1,668
Total labilities .......ccceeevvveerciieeieeiee e (40,795)
Total deferred inflows of resources .................... (6,345)

INet POSItION c..uveerreirrereseessarcsnessanesanesssssssssaae $ 16,050

Operating Results

Operating reVeNUES .........cceeeveerreerreerreeneeeneennns $ 5,977
Operating EXPenses ........cevveereeerueereeenreereeeneeeens (3,125)
Depreciation and amortization.............cccceeeuee.e. (1,909)

Income from operations ..........ccceeeeeercueccrnnces 943
Passenger facility charges..........cccocceevveriienenne. 275
Financial income (expense), net ...........ccceeeueeeee. (1,240)
Contribution in aid of construction and grants ... 451

Increase in net position.........cccceeveeeceeccneennes $ 429

Changes in Net Position
Balance at January 1, 2022, as restated............... $ 15,621
Increase in net POSItION ........eeeeeveeeceveeeneeeeieeennne. 429
Balance at December 31, 2022 ..................... $ 16,050
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NOTE 16 - Subsequent Events

Financing Arrangements Issued

The Statement of Net Position presents bonds and other financing arrangements outstanding as of the
statement date of March 31, 2023 (except for business-type activities related to the SUNY and CUNY
Enterprise Funds, which are reported as of June 30, 2022). Subsequent to those dates, the following
bonds and other financing arrangements were issued (amounts in millions):

Bonds and Other Financing Arrangements Issued
Subsequent to Date of the Statement of Net Position

Issuer Purpose Date Series Amount

NYS Thruway Authority.... CUNY Senior Colleges 7/28/2022  Personal Income Tax, Series 2022A $ 29

NYS Thruway Authority.... SUNY Educational Facilities =~ 7/28/2022 Personal Income Tax, Series 2022B $ 123

Urban Development SUNY Economic Development

Corporation .................. Initiatives 10/13/2022 Personal Income Tax, Series 2022A $ 4
Urban Development SUNY Economic Development

Corporation .................. Initiatives 10/13/2022 Personal Income Tax, Series 2022B $ 1

On September 8, 2022, the Dormitory Authority and the Urban Development Corporation defeased
bonds on behalf of SUNY totaling $584 million and CUNY Senior totaling $233 million.
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NOTES TO BUDGETARY BASIS REPORTING
(unaudited)
Budgetary Basis Reporting

The State Constitution requires the Governor to submit annually to the Legislature an Executive Budget,
which contains plans for all expenditures and disbursements for the ensuing fiscal year, as well as all
monies and revenues estimated to be available. Bills containing all recommended appropriations or
reappropriations and any proposed legislation necessary to provide monies and revenues sufficient to
meet such proposed expenditures and disbursements accompany the Executive Budget.
Reappropriations are commonly used for federally funded programs and capital projects, where the
funding amount is intended to support activities that may span several fiscal years. Budgets are prepared
for all funds. Included in the proposed appropriation bills is a provision for spending authority for
unanticipated revenues or unforeseen emergencies in accordance with statutory requirements. The
Executive Budget also includes a cash basis financial plan that must be in balance, i.e., disbursements
must not exceed available receipts.

The Legislature enacts appropriation bills and revenue measures containing those parts of the Executive
Budget it has approved or modified. The Legislature may also enact supplemental appropriation or
special appropriation bills after it completes action on the Executive Budget. Further, when the
Legislature convenes in January, it may enact deficiency appropriations to meet actual or anticipated
obligations not foreseen when the annual budget and any supplemental budgets were enacted and for
which the costs would exceed available spending authorizations. The Legislature might add to a
previously authorized appropriation anticipated to be inadequate, or provide a new appropriation to
finance an existing or anticipated liability for which no appropriation exists. A deficiency appropriation
usually applies to the fiscal year during which it is made. Pursuant to State law, once the Legislature
has completed action on the appropriation and revenue bills and they are approved by the Governor, the
cash basis and the GAAP basis financial plans must be revised by the Governor to reflect the impact
resulting from changes in appropriations and revenue bills. The cash basis financial plan, which serves
as the basis for the administration of the State’s finances during the fiscal year, provides a summary of
projected receipts, disbursements and fiscal year-end balances. Such plans are updated quarterly
throughout the fiscal year by the Governor, and include a comparison of the actual year-to-date results
with the latest revised plans, providing an explanation of any major deviations and any significant
changes to the financial plans. Projected disbursements are based on agency staffing levels, program
caseloads, levels of service needs, formulas contained in State and federal law, inflation and other
factors. All projections account for the timing of payments, since not all the amounts appropriated in
the Enacted Budget are disbursed in the same fiscal year.

The Statewide Financial System includes controls over expenditures to ensure that the maximum
spending authority is not exceeded during the life of the appropriation. Expenditures are controlled at
the major account level within each program or project of each State agency in accordance with the
underlying appropriation purpose. Encumbrances are not considered a disbursement in the financial
plan or an expenditure and expense in the basic financial statements. Generally, appropriations are
available for liabilities incurred during the fiscal year. Following the end of the fiscal year, a “lapse
period” is provided to liquidate prior year liabilities. Unless reappropriated, most appropriations for
State operations cease on June 30™ and local assistance, debt service, capital projects and federal fund
appropriations cease on September 15" following the end of the fiscal year. Disbursements made during
the lapse period from prior year appropriations are included, together with disbursements from new year
appropriations, in the subsequent fiscal year’s financial plan. Many appropriations enacted are not
intended to be used, although they are required by law. These types of appropriations will generally
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cause total appropriation authorizations to exceed cash basis financial plan disbursement amounts.
Actual disbursements for certain spending categories may exceed financial plan estimates (as
reported in the Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual — Combined Schedule of Cash
Receipts and Disbursements) but do not exceed total enacted appropriations authority. Most capital
projects, federal funds and many State operations appropriations are reappropriated each year by
the Legislature and therefore the life of such appropriations may be many years. If the budget is not
enacted by April 1%, the Legislature enacts special emergency appropriations to continue government
functions, as was last done in April 2023.

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary cash basis operating results as shown in the
preceding Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual Combined Schedule of Cash Receipts
and Disbursements (Schedule) with the GAAP-basis operating results reported in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
(Statement) (amounts in millions):

Federal
Special
General Revenue
Receipts and other financing sources over/(under)
disbursements and other financing uses per Schedule ................. $ 10,398  $ 501
Entity differences:
Receipts and other financing sources over/(under)
disbursements and other financing uses for funds and
accounts not included in the cash basis financial plan.................. (1,229) 2,069
Perspective differences:
Receipts and other financing sources over/(under) disbursements
and other financing uses for funds treated as Special
Revenue Funds in the financial plan and as part of the
General Fund for GAAP reporting.........cccveeeveeeeveeecieeecreeenveeeenes 506 -
Receipts and other financing sources over/(under) disbursements
and other financing uses for funds treated as Fiduciary Funds in
the financial plan and as part of the General Fund for GAAP
TEPOTEINE o.vvvieitieeiieeeteeeiteeeteeesereeeteeeebeessseeessseessseesssesesseessseeanes (614) -
Temporary interfund cash loans..........cccccceeeviiiiciiencii e (603) 6
Basis of accounting differences:
Revenue accrual adjustments ............cccveeeieeeeieincieeneeeee e 6,856 2,033
Expenditure accrual adjustments...........ceevveeveervervencvenneenseenieens 133 (4,609)
Net Change in Fund Balances .........ccceeeeeeeererereeesesssssassssssnes $§ 15447 § -

The entity differences relate to the inclusion of certain funds considered to be Proprietary Funds for
purposes of the cash basis financial plan. Perspective differences relate to variations in the presentation
of the cash basis financial plan fund structure versus GAAP fund structure. A perspective difference
for temporary interfund loans occurs when a fund temporarily overdraws its share of the pooled
investment funds. These temporary loans are covered by the General Fund’s share of the pool. A
perspective difference relating to the Charter School Stimulus and Miscellaneous Special Revenue
Accounts occurs because these funds are included in the Special Revenue Funds cash basis financial
plan while the GAAP basis presentation includes them in the General Fund. A perspective difference
exists between certain Fiduciary Funds in the cash basis financial plan, which are presented in the
General Fund on a GAAP basis.
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Infrastructure Assets Using the Modified Approach (unaudited)

In accordance with GAAP, the State has adopted an alternative method for recording depreciation
expense for the State’s network of roads and bridges maintained by the Department of Transportation
(DOT). Under this method, referred to as the modified approach, the State will not report depreciation
expense for roads and bridges, but will capitalize all costs that add to the capacity and efficiency of
State-owned roads and bridges. Generally, all maintenance and preservation costs will be expensed and
not capitalized.

In order to adopt the modified approach, the State is required to meet the following criteria:

1. Maintain an asset management system that includes a current inventory of eligible
infrastructure assets.

2. Conduct condition assessments of eligible assets and summarize the results using a
measurement scale.

3. Estimate each year the annual amount necessary to maintain and preserve the eligible assets
at the condition level established and disclosed by the State.

4. Document that the assets are being preserved approximately at, or above, the established
condition level.

Roads

The DOT maintains the Pavement Management System (PMS), which supports a construction program
that preserves the State’s investment in its roads. The PMS contains locational, operational and
historical condition data. The PMS is used to determine the appropriate program for improving the
condition of the roads and to determine future funding levels necessary to meet condition goals. The
overall goal is for the State to provide a management system for the State’s infrastructure assets in order
to provide long-term benefits to the State’s citizens.

The State annually conducts an assessment of the pavement condition of the State’s road network.
Trained technicians rate the condition of the pavement based on surface condition and dominant distress
(e.g., cracking, faulting) using a scale of 1 (very poor) to 10 (excellent) based on the prevalence of a
surface-related pavement distress. A pavement condition rating (PCR) is assigned to each surface
section. The State currently has 42,744 lane miles of roads.

It is the State’s intention to maintain the roads at an average PCR between 6.7 and 7.2.
Bridges

The DOT maintains the Bridge Management System (BMS), which supports a construction program
that preserves the State’s investment in its bridges. The BMS is used in planning construction programs
and estimating construction costs. The overall goal is for the State to provide a management system for
the State’s infrastructure assets in order to provide long-term benefits to the State’s citizens. The State
has 7,920 bridges in the inventory, of which 7,702 are highway bridges. The remainder include railroad
and pedestrian structures.
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The State conducts biennial inspections of all bridges in the State. During each general inspection,
various components or elements of each bridge span are rated by the inspector as to the extent of
deterioration, as well as the component’s ability to function structurally relative to when it was newly
designed and constructed. The State previously used a numerical inspection condition rating (CR) scale
ranging from 1 (minimum) to 7 (maximum). Bridges with CR greater than 5.8 are in good condition,
and generally require preventive and corrective maintenance actions such as bridge washing, deck
sealing and bearing lubrication. Bridges with CR between 4.9 (inclusive) and 5.8 (inclusive) are in fair-
protective condition, and generally require relatively minor preventive and corrective maintenance
actions, such as bearing repairs, joint repairs, zone and spot painting and girder end repairs. Bridges
with CR between 4.4 (inclusive) and 4.9 are in fair-corrective condition, and generally require moderate
preventive and corrective maintenance actions, such as bearing replacement, deck replacement, and
major substructure repairs. Bridges with CR less than 4.4 are considered to be in poor condition, and
generally require major rehabilitation or replacement.

Through 2015, using this rating scale, it was the State’s intention to maintain the bridges at an average
condition rating level between 5.3 and 5.6.

In 2016, the State transitioned to the AASHTO element-based rating system that utilizes a 1 (good)
through 4 (severe) scale as mandated by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). The bridge goal
is based on the percentage of Structurally Deficient (SD) bridges as defined by FHWA. The SD
calculations are based on the National Bridge Inventory (NBI) inspection data that has been collected
by the DOT for more than 15 years and reported to FHWA on an annual basis. Using this new criteria
to identify Structurally Deficient bridges, it is the State’s intention to maintain the share of bridges
classified as SD at or below 15 percent of the State highway bridge population.

Pavement and Bridge Assessment Summary
as of December 31:
Percentage of

Highway
Pavement - Average Bridges - Average Bridges Assessed
Year Condition Rating Condition Rating Structurally Deficient
2022 o 7.06 N/A 6.8
2021 oo 7.04 N/A 7.0
2020 .o 6.95 N/A 7.3
2019 .o 6.86 N/A 7.3
2018 o 6.88 N/A 7.1
2017 oo 6.91 N/A 7.9
2016 .o 6.93 N/A 7.9
2015 oo 6.92 5.30 N/A
2014 i 6.99 5.32 N/A
2013 i 6.99 5.34 N/A

2012 i, 6.98 5.34 N/A
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Comparison of Estimated-to-Actual Maintenance and Preservation Costs

Preservation of the roads and bridges is accomplished through various construction programs which are
tracked by the PMS and the BMS. The following presents the State’s estimate of costs necessary to
preserve and maintain the network of roads and bridges at, or above, the established condition level,
compared to the actual costs incurred for the past five fiscal years ending March 31 (amounts in
millions):

Maintenance and Preservation Costs

Year 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Roads:
Estimated ........cccccoeeviennnenn $ 764 $§ 1,503 § 1,173 $ 1,625 $ 1,254
Actual ..o, 1,200 1,201 1,250 1,126 1,133
Bridges:
Estimated........cccccoeeiennenn 492 1,458 1,461 769 1,187
Actual c..ooooiniiiiiii, 272 192 237 229 293

Total roads and bridges:
Estimated ........cccccooeeiennnnn 1,256 2,961 2,634 2,394 2,441
Actual ..o, 1,472 1,393 1,487 1,355 1,426

The decrease in estimates is a reflection of the removal of Snow & Ice operations from Maintenance
costs and the removal of off-system Capital projects from the letting figure used to determine

Preservation costs.

See independent auditors' report.
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Other Postemployment Benefits (unaudited)

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
New York State Retiree Health Benefit Trust *
Measured as of March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2023 2022
Total OPEB liability:
SETVICE COSE vnvieniieeieeee et $ 1,823 $ 2,347
B0 (] PR 1,730 1,509
Difference between expected and actual
EXPETICIICE -.evveneieietieiieteenieenteeetesieesieeneeenees 860 291
Changes in assumptions .............ccceeveerveenveennenns (6,788) (2,349)
Benefit payments..........ccceevevvveiieieneenreenreennens (2,495) (2,270)
Net change in total OPEB liability .................. 4,870) 472)
Total OPEB liability, beginning...................... 62,797 63,269
Total OPEB liability, ending (a).......ccccceeueeneee. 57,927 62,797
Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions — employer..........cccceeveevererereene 3,415 2,590
Net investment iNCOME..........cceverenerenenennen. 10 -
Benefit payments..........ccoeeveeeiecieecienieneeieenene (2,495) (2,270)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position....... 930 320
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning............ 320 -
Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b) ........... 1,250 320
State’s net OPEB liability, ending (a)-(b)....... $ 56,677 $ 62,477
Plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability .........ccceevevierienieieee 22% 0.5%
Covered employee payroll...........ccocceveenreennee. $ 11,860 $ 11,834
State’s net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll ...........cccceoenenrnnenne. 477.88 % 527.9 %
Changes in assumptions: Discount rate,
at measurement date...........ccoceeeeeeeiiiiinenennne 3.50 % 2.73 %

As of fiscal year ended March 31....................... 2023 2022
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Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (cont’d)
New York State Retiree Health Benefit Trust *
Measured as of March 31

See independent auditors’ report.

* Inclusive of the State, Lottery, SUNY (excluding SUNY hospitals, SUNY Construction Fund, SUNY
Research Foundation), and NYSLRS.

Changes in benefit terms: There were no significant legislative changes in benefits.

Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was updated as detailed in the table above. The medical trend
assumptions were updated based on current anticipation of future costs and projected claim costs were
updated based on the recent claims experience for the PPO plan and premium rates for the HMO plans.
Mortality assumptions are updated each year based on available mortality experience tables and projection
scales published by the Society of Actuaries.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.

In fiscal year 2022, the Retiree Health Benefit Trust was created when the State first funded the trust. The
Retiree Health Benefit Trust covers previously unfunded State employees and retirees and certain members
of SUNY. Prior to fiscal year 2022, employees and retirees of the State were included in the RSI table on
page 186 and employees and retirees of SUNY (excluding SUNY hospitals and SUNY Construction Fund)
were included in the RSI table on page 187.
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Schedule of Investment Returns
New York State Retiree Health Benefit Trust *
Fiscal Years Ended March 31

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of
Return, Net of Investment

Fiscal Year Expense
2022 0.22 %
2023 2.90 %

See independent auditors’ report.

* Inclusive of the State, Lottery, SUNY (excluding SUNY Hospitals, SUNY Construction Fund, SUNY
Research Foundation), and NYSLRS.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
SUNY Unfunded — SUNY Hospitals and Construction Fund
Measured as of March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability:

SErVICE COST..uvvrarrurririereieieeeerererernens $ 119 $ 121 $ 90 $ 91 § 95

Interest....coeeveeieiieneeeeceeeeeeee 69 95 102 103 105

Difference between expected

and actual experience........................ 68 (94) 17 46 (236)

Changes in assumptions...................... (300) (452) 479 (159) (11)

Benefit payments.........ccccceeeveeveeveennen. (59) (53) (48) (45) (40)
Net change in total OPEB liability .... (103) (383) 640 36 87
Total OPEB liability, beginning......... 2,857 3,240 2,600 2,564 2,651
Total OPEB liability, ending.............. $ 2,754 $ 2,857 $ 3240 § 2,600 $ 2,564
Covered employee payroll.................... $ 914 $ 900 $ 873 $ 843 § 806
Total OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll ............ 301.2 % 317.5% 371.2 % 308.3 % 3179 %
Changes in assumptions:

Discount rate, at measurement date .. 2.73 % 2.34% 2.84 % 3.79 % 3.89%
As of fiscal year ended June 30.......... 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

(continued)
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (cont’d)
SUNY Unfunded — SUNY Hospitals and Construction Fund
Measured as of March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2017

Total OPEB liability:

SErViCe COSt.uviviniaiiriieriereiereereneerees $ 107

Interest ... .coeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 96

Difference between expected

and actual experience...........c.cc........ -

Changes in assumptions...................... (280)

Benefit payments...........cccceeceeeeeeennen. (35)
Net change in total OPEB liability .... 112)
Total OPEB liability, beginning ........ 2,763
Total OPEB liability, ending.............. $ 2,651
Covered employee payroll.................... $ 768
Total OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll ............ 3453 %
Changes in assumptions:

Discount rate, at measurement date .. 3.86 %
As of fiscal year ended June 30.......... 2017

See independent auditors’ report.

Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was changed as detailed in the table above. The medical trend
and excise tax assumptions were updated based on current anticipation of future costs and projected claim
costs were updated based on the recent claims experience for the PPO plans and premium rates for the HMO
plans.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.



Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

CUNY Senior Colleges
Measured as of June 30

(Amounts in millions)

Total OPEB liability:
SEIVICE COSt.uvviiiiiiiiieireeeeeeeeeeeee e

INterest.....cooveeveiiniieieeccc e
Difference between expected and
actual eXPerience ........cecveeververeereereeenennns

Changes in assumptions............cccoceerverveennene
Benefit payments ...........ccoeeeerveniveniiecienienennns
Net change in total OPEB liability ...............
Total OPEB liability, beginning ....................
Total OPEB liability, ending.........cccceeeecureueen.

Covered employee payroll............ccocceevreennnen.

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered employee payroll.........................

Changes in assumptions: Discount
rate, at measurement date............cccoeeeeuennee

As reported in fiscal year June 30....................

See independent auditors’ report.
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
117 115 108 126 107
47 55 58 53 50
(148) (28) (178) 354 @)
(486) (29) 41 (187) 40
(35) (37) (36) (35) (32)
(505) 76 @) 311 161
2,047 1,971 1,978 1,667 1,506
1,542 2,047 1,971 1,978 1,667
1,281 1,293 1,218 1,169 1,151
120.4 % 1583 % 161.7 % 169.1 % 144.8 %
4.09 % 2.18 % 2.66 % 2.79 % 2.98 %
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the
discount rate each period. The discount rate used to determine the total OPEB liability was updated as

detailed in the table above.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they become

available.
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
New York State *
Measured as of March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB liability:

SETVICE COST.nviiniiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 2,095 § 1,584  $ 1,593 § 1,691

INEEIESt ...t 1,762 1,984 2,019 2,111

Difference between expected and

actual EXPErieNCe ......cvvverveerreereerereeerieere e, (1,695) 391 353 (4,631)

Changes in assumptions.... (8,619) 7,011 (1,796) (228)

Benefit payments .........ccvecvveeeeeierieeneeneeie e (1,817) (1,743) (1,688) (1,576)
Net change in total OPEB liability ....................... (8,274) 9,227 481 (2,633)
Total OPEB liability, beginning ...........c.cceveeueeee. 60,846 51,619 51,138 53,771
Total OPEB liability, ending (a) .......ccccceceeueeucnncee. S 52,572 § 60,846 $ 51,619 § 51,138
Covered employee payroll..........ccceeveevieeeenneneennnn, $ 9,448  § 9214 § 9,064 § 8,849
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered

employee payroll ..........occoviiiiiieiieeeeee 556.4 % 660.4 % 569.5 % 577.9 %
Changes in assumptions: Discount rate, at

measurement date ..........ccceeveveeeiiienieenie e 234 % 2.84 % 3.79 % 3.89 %
As reported in fiscal year March 31 ........................ 2022 2021 2020 2019

See independent auditors’ report.
* Inclusive of the State, NYSLRS, and Lottery.
Changes in benefit terms: There were no significant legislative changes in benefits.

Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was updated as detailed in the table above. The medical trend
assumptions were updated based on current anticipation of future costs and projected claim costs were
updated based on the recent claims experience for the PPO plan and premium rates for the HMO plans. The
excise tax assumptions were updated in 2019 and 2020 based on anticipation of future costs; the excise tax
impact has been removed in 2021 as a result of the SECURE Act.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information.

In fiscal year 2022, the Retiree Health Benefit Trust was created when the State first funded the trust. The
Retiree Health Benefit Trust covers previously unfunded State and retirees and certain members of SUNY.
For fiscal year 2022 and forward, employees and retirees of the State previously represented in this schedule
are included in RSI table on page 180.
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
SUNY *
Measured as of March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB liability:

SEIVICE COSt..vnrririiririiererieereeeeernen, $ 393§ 413  § 412 S 436 3 483

INterest....c.ooeveveeieieicienesenceceee 355 395 397 411 373

Difference between expected

and actual experience............c.cceeue... (150) 91) 92 915) -

Changes in assumptions...................... (1,844) (1,705) (350) (44) 915)

Benefit payments ..........cocceeceeeenieennen. (338) (322) (311 (290) (267)
Net change in total OPEB liability .... (1,584) 2,100 240 (402) (326)
Total OPEB liability, beginning......... 12,281 10,181 9,941 10,343 10,669
Total OPEB liability, ending (a)......... $ 10,697 § 12,281  § 10,181 § 9,941 § 10,343
Covered employee payroll.................. $ 2,714 $ 2,562 $ 2,519 % 2,523 $ 2,432
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of

covered employee payroll................. 394.2 % 479.4 % 404.2 % 4252 % 4252 %
Changes in assumptions:

Discount rate, at measurement date... 2.34 % 2.84 % 3.79 % 3.89 % 3.86 %
As reported in fiscal year

June 30....coeviiiii 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

See independent auditors’ report.

* Amounts presented are for the portions of SUNY and do not include SUNY Hospitals, SUNY Construction
Fund, nor SUNY Research Foundation.

Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was changed as detailed in the table above. The medical trend
and excise tax assumptions were updated based on current anticipation of future costs and projected claim
costs were updated based on the recent claims experience for the PPO plans and premium rates for the HMO
plans.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information.

In fiscal year 2022, the Retiree Health Benefit Trust was created when the State first funded the trust. The
Retiree Health Benefit Trust covers previously unfunded State and retirees and certain members of SUNY.
For fiscal year 2022 and forward, the certain members of SUNY previously represented in this schedule are
included in the RSI table on page 180.
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Pension Plans (unaudited)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the New York State
and Local Employees’ Retirement System
Fiscal Years Ended March 31

(Amounts in millions)

State’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset) .............

State’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset)..
Covered payroll.........cccceeeeeeeennee.
State’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset)
as a percentage of covered
Payroll ....ccoeviiiiiiiieeee e
Plan’s fiduciary net position as
a percentage of the total
pension liability (asset) .............

State’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset) .............
State’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset)..
Covered payroll.........cccccvecveeeenen.
State’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset)
as a percentage of covered
payroll ......ccccvevvieiiieieeeeee
Plan’s fiduciary net position as
a percentage of the total
pension liability (asset) .............

See independent auditors’ report.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
46.0 % 46.3 % 45.5 % 45.8 % 454 %
$  (3,762) $ 46 S 12,052 $ 3243 $ 1465
$ 12,507 $ 11,931 $ 12115 $ 11684 $ 11511
(30.1 %) 0.4 % 99.5 % 27.8 % 12.7 %
103.7 % 100.0 % 86.4 % 96.3 % 98.2 %
2018 2017 2016
45.8 % 45.1 % 44.5 %
$ 4297 $ 7217 $ 1501
$  IL112 $ 10,188 $ 10236
38.7 % 70.8 % 14.7 %
94.7 % 90.7 % 98.0 %

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for the New York State
and Local Police and Fire Retirement System
Fiscal Years Ended March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
State’s proportion of the net
pension liability.........ccccovevieinieniennnnen, 21.0 % 21.3% 21.1 % 21.4 % 20.8 %
State’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability ............c.cc....... $ 119  $ 369§ 1,127 $ 359 % 210
Covered payroll.........ccccceevveveeericvennnnne. $ 858 $ 814 $ 859 $ 775 $ 777

State’s proportionate share of

the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered payroll............. 13.9% 453 % 131.2 % 46.2 % 27.0 %
Plan’s fiduciary net position as

a percentage of the total

pension liability.........ccccoeerveirieeennnnen. 98.7 % 95.8 % 84.9 % 95.1% 96.9 %
2018 2017 2016
State’s proportion of the net
pension liability........cocccvvenecninecnnen 21.1 % 19.1 % 19.0 %
State’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability....................... $ 437 $ 566 $ 52
Covered payroll.........ccccceeveeeeeerecvenennnne $ 695 $ 615 $ 620

State’s proportionate share of

the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered payroll............. 62.9 % 92.1 % 8.5%
Plan’s fiduciary net position as

a percentage of the total

pension liability..........cccoeevveeienreennnen. 93.5 % 90.2 % 99.0 %
See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions for the New York State and Local Employees’
Retirement System *
Fiscal Years Ended March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Contractually determined contribution ........ $ 1,603 $ 10911 $ 1,692 $ 1,596 $ 1,603
Contributions in relation to the
contractually determined contribution ...... 1,615 1,911 1,692 1,596 1,603
Contribution deficiency (excess) ................. $ (12) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll........c.cccceevveveveeeceiceeiiennn, $ 12,846 $ 12,507 $ 11,931 $ 12,115 $ 11,684
Contributions as a percentage of covered
PAYTOLL ., 12.6 % 15.3 % 14.2 % 13.2 % 13.7 %
2018 2017 2016
Contractually determined contribution ........ $ 1,636 $ 1,585 $ 1,816
Contributions in relation to the
contractually determined contribution ...... 1,636 1,585 1,478
Contribution deficiency .........ccocevevevevevennnn $ - $ - $ 338
Covered payroll........c.ccoceeeeiveecieiireeeiinne, $ 11,511 $ 11,112 $ 10,188
Contributions as a percentage of covered
PAYIOLL .o, 14.2 % 142 % 14.5%

* Inclusive of SUNY and Lottery.

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions for the New York State and Local Police and
Fire Retirement System *
Fiscal Years Ended March 31

(Amounts in millions)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Contractually determined contribution ........ $ 210 $ 225 $ 178 $ 164  $ 168
Contributions in relation to the
contractually determined contribution ...... 210 225 178 164 168
Contribution deficiency ..............cccocveveveenene. $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll .........cceeeveveeereeeeeeeeiennenn, $ 877 $ 858 $ 813 $ 859  § 775
Contributions as a percentage of payroll...... 23.9% 26.2 % 21.9% 19.1 % 21.7%
2018 2017 2016
Contractually determined contribution ........ $ 166 $ 152 $ 142
Contributions in relation to the
contractually determined contribution ...... 166 152 124
Contribution deficiency .........cccceeeveeveeneenne. $ - $ - $ 18
Covered payroll .........cceeevevevieceereeeiereene, $ 777 $ 695 $ 615
Contributions as a percentage of payroll...... 21.4 % 21.9% 20.2 %

* Inclusive of SUNY and Lottery.

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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Other SUNY-Related Pension Plans

New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS)

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the TRS Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

SUNY’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset) ...................

SUNY’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset)..............
Covered payroll..........cceoeveeneennene,
SUNY’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of covered payroll..........
Plan’s fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
Hability .ooveeeieceeee

SUNY’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset) ...................

SUNY’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset)..............
Covered payroll.........cccoeeveveenieennnnn,
SUNY’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of covered payroll .........
Plan’s fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
lability .ooeeveieniccccccce

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
0.9 % 0.9 % 0.9 % 0.8 % 0.8 %
$ (154)  $ 25 $ 23) $ (15 3 (6)
$ 150  $ 152§ 145  $ 132§ 128
(102.1 %) 16.3 % (15.6 %) (11.1 %) (4.8 %)
1132 % 97.8 % 102.2 % 101.5 % 100.7 %
2017 2016 2015
0.8% 0.7 % 0.7 %
$ 9 $ a7 $ (80)
$ 126 $ 112§ 106
6.9 % (69.2 %) (75.5 %)
99.0 % 110.5 % 111.5 %



Schedule of Employer Contributions for the TRS Plan

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

Actuarially determined contribution ........

Contributions in relation to the actuarial
determined contribution .............cceuue....

Contribution deficiency..........ccccceeeveennene.

Covered payroll........ccceevvoevieieneee.
Contributions as a percentage of covered
PAYIOLL ..o,

Actuarially determined contribution ........

Contributions in relation to the actuarial
determined contribution ........................

Contribution deficiency...........cccceevueeneenne.

Covered payroll........cccoeevveievieneeneene,
Contributions as a percentage of covered
PAYTOLL e

See independent auditors’ report.

State of New York « 193

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
14 14 15 13 $ 15
14 14 15 13 15
- - - - $ -
161 150 152 145 $ 132
8.9 % 9.0 % 10.1 % 8.9 % 11.4 %
2017 2016 2015
17 20 17
17 20 17
128 126 112
13.0 % 15.6 % 15.4 %

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.
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Upstate Plan

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and
Related Ratios

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total pension liability:
Service Cost...oovveerrrurrrrienannnes $ 1 $ | $ 1 3 1 S 1
Interest ......cooceveeeeienieieeeeene 6 7 6 7 6
Changes of assumptions........... 9 (1) - - (1
Difference between
expected and actual
EXPETICNCE ..uvvenveenieeneerieeeene 8 - 1 - 2
Benefit payments ..................... (28) (6) (10) (6) 9
Net change in total
pension liability .................. “) 1 ?2) 2 a
Total pension liability,
beginning 106 105 107 105 106
Total pension liability,
ending (a) .......ccceveveneninennen. 102 106 105 107 105
Plan fiduciary net position:
Employer contributions............ - - 2 1 2
Net investment income (loss)... 15 17 21 (5) 16
Benefit payments ..................... (28) (6) (10) (6) 9
Administrative expenses.......... - - - - -
Net change in fiduciary
net position......c..cceevurescnnennns a3) 11 13 (10) 9
Fiduciary net position,
beginning 118 107 94 104 95
Fiduciary net position,
ending (b) 105 118 107 94 104
Net pension liability (asset),
ending (2)-(b) ....ccevvrucruecuccuenacn. $ 3 9 1z 3 2 S 13 S 1
Ratio of fiduciary net position to
total pension liability ............... 103.0 % 111.8% 101.9 % 87.6 % 98.6 %
Covered payroll .........cccoovevenenene. $ 19 3 23§ 23§ 24 $ 26

Net pension liability as a
percentage of covered payroll.. (16.3 %) (54.4 %) (8.8 %) 54.7 % 5.7 %



Upstate Plan

State of New York « 195

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and

Related Ratios (cont’d)
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

Total pension liability:
Service CoSt.....ccoerererenennens
Interest.......cooeeeeccnicncneene.
Changes of assumptions........
Difference between
expected and actual
EXPETICNCE ...eevvvnereeeeeeeneene
Benefit payments...................
Net change in total
pension liability ...............
Total pension liability,
beginning
Total pension liability,
ending (a) ........ccoevvveviiennnnne
Plan fiduciary net position:
Employer contributions.........
Net investment income (loss)
Benefit payments...................
Administrative expenses .......
Net change in fiduciary
net position.........ccceeueenee.
Fiduciary net position,
beginning
Fiduciary net position,
ending (b)
Net pension liability (asset),
ending (a)-(b) cccccerverercnrcrennene

Ratio of fiduciary net position to
total pension liability.............

Covered payroll..........cccceeeneneene
Net pension liability as a
percentage of covered

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information.

become available.

2017 2016 2015
1 18 1

6 7 6

(1) - 6

- 1 0
(5) () (4)

1 2 9

105 103 94
106 105 103

3 2 3

7 (1) 6

(5) (7 “)

5 (6) 5

90 96 91

95 90 96

11 15 $ 7
90.1 % 86.3 % 93.0 %
27 30§ 34
38.4 % 48.0 % 213 %

Additional years will be displayed as they
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Upstate Plan

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal Years Ended December 31

(Amounts in millions)

Actuarially determined

contribution .........cceeeeveeneennn,

Contributions in relation to
the actuarially determined

contribution.........oceevvvveeeeennnnn,
Contribution €Xcess .................
Covered payroll..........ccccceeeeeee,

Contribution as a percentage

of covered payroll ..................

Actuarially determined

contribution.........ceeevveeeeeennnn,

Contributions in relation to
the actuarially determined

contribution..........cceeeeeenen.nn,
Contribution excess .................
Covered payroll.........c.cceeuenen,

Contribution as a percentage

of covered payroll** ..............

* 2013 covered period from July 7, 2011 through December 31, 2011.

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
- 1 2 1 2
- 1 2 1 2
- 19 - 23 - 23 - 24 - 26
-% 2.4% 10.5% 4.7 % 7.7 %
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
3 2 2 3 3
3 2 4 3 3
- - 2 - -
27 30 34 36 16*
10.4 % 6.8 % 8.8% 7.0 % 18.7 %

** Covered payroll represents pensionable payroll at the end of each Plan year. It is not practicable to obtain covered
payroll amounts at the end of each fiscal year.

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.
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Upstate Plan
Changes in assumptions

The actuarial assumptions for the mortality basis used for the January 1, 2021 actuarial valuation were
changed from the Pri-2012 mortality tables for employees and healthy annuitants with mortality
improvements projected using Scale MP-2020 on a fully generational basis to the Pri-2012 mortality
tables for employees and healthy annuitants with mortality improvements projected using Scale MP-
2021 on a fully generational basis.

Methods and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions

The January 1, 2021 actuarial valuation determines the employer rates for contributions payable in 2021.
The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used:

Investment rate of return.................... 6.5 percent

Amortization method ......................... Level dollar, 20 year closed

Remaining amortization period ......... 10.5 years

Asset valuation method...................... Market value

Inflation........coeevveeeciieeeiieeee e, 3 percent

Compensation ...........ccceeeeeereeenenennnen. 3.5 percent increases, limited to a maximum of
$290,000

Termination..........ccceevveeveeneeeeeeennens 1992 Vaughn Select and Ultimate Table

See independent auditors’ report.
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CUNY Senior College Plans

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilities for the New York
City Employees’ Retirement System (NYCERS)

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

CUNY s proportion of the

net pension liability ........c..coceeene,
CUNY’s proportionate share

of the net pension liability .............
Covered payroll........cccceeeneienenenn,
CUNY’s proportionate share

of the net pension liability as a

percentage of the covered

PAYIOLL oo,
Plan fiduciary net position

as a percentage of the total

pension liability .........cccceevvrerinnnnn,

CUNY’s proportion of the

net pension liability .............ccccc....
CUNY s proportionate share

of the net pension liability .............
Covered payroll........cccccevveneveiennn,
CUNY s proportionate share

of the net pension liability as a

percentage of the covered

PaYIOll oo,
Plan fiduciary net position

as a percentage of the total

pension liability .........cccovevvreennnen,

See independent auditors’ report.

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
1.1 % 1.1 % 1.2% 1.2% 1.3 %
191 71 261 227 $ 234
261 272 269 264 $ 238
73.1 % 259 % 97.3 % 86.1 % 98.2 %
81.3% 93.1% 76.9 % 73.8% 78.8 %
2017 2016 2015
1.2% 1.3% 1.2%
242 303 247
223 217 214
108.7 % 139.6 % 115.4 %
74.8 % 69.6 % 73.1%

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilities for the New York
City Teachers’ Retirement System (NYCTRS)
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

CUNY’s proportion of the

net pension liability ...........cccc..... 2.9 % 29% 2.7% 2.6 % 2.6 %
CUNY s proportionate share of the

net pension liability ..........cccce.eee.
Covered payroll........ccoocevenenenenne.
CUNY’s proportionate share of the

net pension liability as a

percentage of the covered

PAYTOLL .o 145.2 % 0.7 % 149.1 % 157.9 % 232.4 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension

Liability ...coooveneeiiicicee 81.3 % 99.9 % 79.0 % 74.5 % 74.5 %

429 $ 2
296 $ 291

422 $ 395 $ 491
283 $ 250 $ 211

@~
@~ H

2017 2016 2015

CUNY’s proportion of the
net pension liability...........cccceeee. 22 % 2.8% 25%
CUNY ’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability ............ccoe.ee.
Covered payroll..........ccoocvevevevennne
CUNY ’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a
percentage of the covered
PAYTOLL oo 281.0 % 386.2 % 301.7 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension
Hability c.ooovveeeveiieericcrcccne 68.3 % 62.3 % 68.0 %

505 $ 733
180 $ 190

528
175

@ L
&L A

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions for NYCERS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

Contractually required

contribution ..........coceveevevvereinnnnnn.

Contributions in relation to
the contractually required

CONribUtION ...evveeeeieee e
Contribution deficiency ...................
Covered payroll.........ccccvvverivenennen.

Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll........cccceevvrvennennne.

Contractually required

contribution .........ccceeeevvveriiennnnnn,

Contributions in relation to
the contractually required

CONMTIBULION ..o,
Contribution deficiency ...................
Covered payroll.........ccccevverirennnnen,

Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll.........ccoeveevreennn,

See independent auditors’ report.

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
40 41 46 45§ 45
40 41 46 45 45
- - - - $ -
261 272 269 264§ 238
15.5 % 15.2% 17.2 % 17.2 % 18.8 %
2017 2016 2015
39 42 39
39 42 39
-223 -217 -214
17.4 % 19.3 % 18.0 %

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions for NYCTRS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Amounts in millions)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Contractually required

CONtIIDULION «.eveeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 96 $ 89 $ 96 $ 95 $ 102
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required

CONEITBULION ..o 96 89 96 95 102
Contribution deficiency .................. $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll.........cccceeveeeveneennnn. $ 296 $ 291 $ 283 $ 250 $ 211
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll..........cccooveeuenennnne. 32,6 % 30.8 % 33.9% 38.0 % 48.3 %

2017 2016 2015

Contractually required

contribution .........coecvveevveeeeinnnnnn. $ 85 $ 103 $ 84
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required

contribution ........cceeeeevveveeeneenenne. 85 103 84
Contribution deficiency .................. $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll.........cccceevevvierennnnne $ 180 $ 190 $ 175
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll.........cccceeveenennee. 47.0 % 542 % 48.3 %

See independent auditors’ report.

Schedule is intended to display ten years of information. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements

Budgetary Basis - Financial Plan and Actual
General Debt Service Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Financial
Plan Actual Variance
RECEIPTS:
LI L TSROSO PS SRR $ 44451 45,719 $ 1,268
Federal grants............ooiiiiiee e 70 71 1
Total receipts.....ccccvviviiriiiiir e ——————— 44,521 45,790 1,269
DISBURSEMENTS:
State operations (1)......uoeerre e 43 46 (3)
DEDt SEIVICE (1) ittt 8,464 10,454 (1,990)
Total disbursements........ccccceiiiiiiicciccccseerr e 8,507 10,500 (1,993)
Excess of receipts over disbursements............ccccceevmrriniisnnniissnnnnn 36,014 35,290 (724)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers from other funds. ..o 364 372 8
Transfers to other fuNAS...........coviiiiii e (36,378) (35,662) 716
Net other financing sources (USeS)........cccccirieriniriniininsninsesnaens (36,014) (35,290) 724
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements
and other fiNaNCiNg USEeS.........ccccevvercerrieniiesseersesee s s e s e essennses $ - - $ -

(1) Spending authority has not been exceeded in any category. The Final Financial Plan (published approximately six

weeks before fiscal year-end) does not reflect an increase in approved spending authority.

See independent auditors' report.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Combining Balance Sheet
Other Governmental Funds

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total
ASSETS:
Cash and iNVestments...........ccccccvvvcevccieicieciee e B 8,933 $ 224 $ 6,530 $ 15,687
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
B IE= D T TSP 771 40 64 875
Due from Federal government..........c.cccoeeniiniiiiiinnennen, - - 626 626
OFNET e 2,680 125 63 2,868
Due from other funds...........ooooviiivieieeeeiieecciie e 608 306 1,076 1,990
Other assets......... - 1 - 1
Total asset: $ 12,992 $ 696 $ 8,359 $ 22,047
LIABILITIES:
Tax refunds payable........cccccoevvreveiiiiiiieiie e B 1,004 $ - $ 22 $ 1,026
Accounts payable............ccooiiiiiiiii 5 13 282 300
Accrued liabilities. ..o 44 14 208 266
Payable to local governments... 182 - 122 304
Due to other funds.........ccvvveeieiiiiiciiieeeeeeeee e 93 43 2,323 2,459
Unearned reVENUES............coiuiiiiiaiie et - 4 - 4
Total liabilities........ccvovverirrsirrirener e 1,328 74 2,957 4,359
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES............cccvveniinnnnnne 1,335 3 17 1,355
FUND BALANCES:
RESHIICE. ... 1,050 151 43 1,244
COMMIEEd....c.eiiiieieciiee e, 5,165 468 7,215 12,848
ASSIGNEA. ...ttt 4,188 - 19 4,207
UN@SSIGNEd.......oiuiiiiiiiiiieie e (74) - (1,892) (1,966)
Total fund balances .......ccccoeveviccveeeeeree e 10,329 619 5,385 16,333
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances ........c.ccccvcrrcercirccercee e $ 12,992 $ 696 $ 8,359 $ 22,047

See independent auditors' report.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Combining Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Governmental Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Personal income .....
Consumption and use.
Business

Federal grants.....

Public health/patient fees.

Tobacco settlement.

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Local assistance grants:
Education....
Public health
Public welfare.
Public safety...
Transportation
Environment and recreation..
Support and regulate business.
General government

State operations:
Personal service...
Non-personal service..
Pension contributions..
Other fringe benefits

Capital construction

Debt service, including payments on financing arrangements....

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds...
Financing arrangements issued....
Premiums/discounts on bonds issued

Net other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances.........................

Fund balances (deficits) at April 1, 2022

Fund balances (deficits) at March 31, 2023

See independent auditors' report.

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total

$ 1,510 - 3 - 8 1,510
2,025 2,219 385 4,629

2,541 - 622 3,163

2,132 1,258 257 3,647

- - 2,655 2,655

6,041 511 - 6,552

541 - - 541

4,816 28 1,132 5,976
19,606 4,016 5,051 28,673
6,431 - 261 6,692

6,503 - 588 7,091

2 - 739 741

175 - 162 337

7,250 - 1,965 9,215

- - 492 492

40 - 611 651

137 - 722 859

249 - - 249

2,171 18 - 2,189

40 - - 40

90 - - 90

- - 6,558 6,558

- 105 - 105

23,088 123 12,098 35,309
(3,482) 3,893 (7,047) (6,636)
5,029 1,340 4,878 11,247
(761) (5,151) (1,812) (7,724)

33 - 3,363 3,396

- - 202 202

4,301 (3,811) 6,631 7,121

819 82 (416) 485

9,510 537 5,801 15,848

$ 10,329 619 § 5,385 $ 16,333
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trusts

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

See independent auditors' report.

Pension OPEB
Trust Trust Total
ASSETS:
Cash and iINVESIMENTS.......coove et $ - $ 1,250 $ 1,250
Retirement system investments:
Short-term investments.............eeeeeiiiiiiiiieeee e 4,019 - 4,019
Domestic eqUItIeS.....ccocvvieeeeeiiii e 75,055 - 75,055
Global fiXxed INCOME.......cccocoieiiiiiieeee et 48,479 - 48,479
International equities...........ueeeeeiiieiiieieee s 33,944 - 33,944
Private equities...........coeoviiiiiiiieee e 36,977 - 36,977
Real estate and mortgage loans...........c.coccevvieeincicnnen, 26,365 - 26,365
Opportunistic/ARS investments............cccccceeeeevciiieee e, 6,463 - 6,463
ReEaI @SSetS.....coeeeiiieeeeeeeee e 7,812 - 7,812
Credit @SSetS.....uuueeeei e, 9,411 - 9,411
Securities lending collateral, invested..............cccccceiiinieen. 29,079 - 29,079
Forward foreign exchange contracts...........cccccceevciieieeeenns 1 - 1
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Employer contributions..........c.cccccvieiieeiiiiieee e, 196 - 196
Member contributions.............eeveeeeiiiiiiieeee e, 14 - 14
MemMDBEr I0@NS........coiiiiiiiiiie e 919 - 919
Accrued interest and dividends.................ocoo oo, 428 - 428
Investment sales..........cccoooeiiieiii i 459 - 459
OtNEI ..., 76 - 76
Other @SSEetS......cuuviiiie e 631 - 631
Total assets.....ccoociviiiiicccrrr e 280,328 1,250 281,578
LIABILITIES:
Securities lending obligations...........ccccccceeiiiiiie e, 29,080 - 29,080
Forward foreign exchange contracts...........ccccccoeviiiieennie 1 - 1
Accounts payable - investments.............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiienenenn. 690 - 690
Accounts payable - benefits..........cccooiiiii 211 - 211
Other liabilities..........cccvviiiiiceee e 838 - 838
Total liabilities.......cccccerccieciiricccr e 30,820 - 30,820
NET POSITION:
Restricted for:
Pension benefits and other purposes..........cccccoiieieennnen. 249,508 1,250 250,758
Total net position..........ccccceriricccerenier e 249,508 1,250 250,758
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STATE OF NEW YORK

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trusts

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Pension OPEB
Trust Trust Total
Additions:
Investment earnings:
INtErest INCOME. ... .o $ 1,517 $ 10 1,527
Dividend iINCOME.......vieiiie e, 1,681 - 1,681
Securities lending iNnCoOMe..........cooviiiiiiiie 774 - 774
Other iNCOMEB. ... i e 1,418 - 1,418
Net decrease in the fair value of investments..................... (17,270) - (17,270)
Total investment earnings...........ccoveviiiiiiiiiiiiiianenennns (11,880) 10 (11,870)
Less:
Securities lending eXpenses...........ocoviiiiiiiiii i (729) - (729)
Investment eXpenses. .......c.oovviiiiiii (932) - (932)
Net investment earnings............cocoviiiiiiiiiiiciiiieiennns (13,541) 10 (13,531)
Contributions:
EMPIOYEIS. ..o 4,404 3,415 7,819
MEMDETS. ... 657 - 657
Interest on accounts receivable..................c.coco 16 - 16
Other. . 57 - 57
Total contributions.......ccovcvviiiiiiiiiiirce e ees 5,134 3,415 8,549
Total additions.........ccoviiiiii e (8,407) 3,425 (4,982)
Deductions:
Benefits paid:
Retirement allowances...........coovoiiiiiiiii e 15,174 - 15,174
Death benefits.......cocoviiiiiii 311 - 31
Other benefitS. ... 111 2,495 2,606
Administrative eXpenses...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii 208 - 208
Total deducCtionsS........ccvviiiiiiiiiiii i i s i e raaes 15,804 2,495 18,299
Net increase (decrease) in net position..................... (24,211) 930 (23,281)
Net position restricted for pension benefits and
other purposes at April 1, 2022............c.cooviviiiiivinienennn, 273,719 320 274,039
Net position restricted for pension benefits and
other purposes at March 31, 2023...........cccccvviviieieneennnns $ 249,508 $ 1,250 250,758

See independent auditors' report.
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STATE OF NEW YORK
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Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Custodial Funds

March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

ASSETS:

Cash and iNVestMENtS..........cccuvviiiii i,
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles.............cccceevnnennn.
Due from other fuNdS.........ooeiiiiieie e

B e = LI L=

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNES PAYADIE.....cceiiiiiiieiie e
Payable to local governments............cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Total liabilities.........ccccvvimriiiiiiiiie

NET POSITION:

Restricted for individuals, organizations, and other governments....
Total net position........cccccivriiiniiirin

See independent auditors' report.

Sole
Custody Miscellaneous Total

2,023 $ 62 2,085

8 - 8

- 1 1

2,031 63 2,094

- 1 1

1,280 - 1,280
1,280 1 1,281

751 62 813

751 $ 62 813




238

STATE OF NEW YORK

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Custodial Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in millions)

Additions:
Collection of sales tax for other governments.....................
Collection of income tax for other governments..................
Collection of real estate tax for other governments.............
MiSCEllANEOUS........oeiiieiieiiii e
Total additions..........ccooieiiciiii e

Deductions:
Payments of sales tax to other governments......................
Payments of income tax to other governments...................
Payments of obligations on behalf of other governments...
Payments to beneficiaries..........cccooceevieiiiiiicie e
Other EXPENSES......uvviiiiieeee e ittt
Total deductions.........cccoommiiiiiiiiccic e

Net increase (decrease).........cceeeveriiiciiiiirieiniinenenanns
Net position at April 1, 2022...........ccceiiiiiiiiiieeans

Net position at March 31, 2023..........c.ccciiiiiiiiiiennns,

See independent auditors' report.

Sole
Custody Miscellaneous Total

22,559 $ - 22,559
16,643 - 16,643
4,095 - 4,095
2,489 20 2,509
45,786 20 45,806
22,559 - 22,559
16,643 - 16,643
4,095 - 4,095
238 - 238
1,752 20 1,772
45,287 20 45,307
499 - 499

252 62 314

751 $ 62 813
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Terri B. Crowley, Executive Deputy Comptroller
Suzette Barsoum Baker, CPA, CGFM, CGMA, Deputy Comptroller

Bureau of Financial Reporting and Oil Spill Remediation

Deborah J. Hilson, Director

Maria Guzman, CPA, Assistant Director

GAAP Reporting
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Renée Bult, Principal Accountant

Sandra Trzcinski, CGAP, CGFM, Principal Accountant
Donna Greenberg, CPA, CGFM, Supervising Accountant
Karen Kellogg, Supervising Accountant
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Michael P. Breen, Associate Accountant

Kate Duell, Associate Accountant

Bo Jiang, CGFM, Associate Accountant

Ruby Kashyap, Associate Accountant

Vincenzo Lollino, Associate Accountant

Kelly Nadeau, Associate Accountant

Peter Salony, CPA, Associate Accountant

Paula Walker, Associate Accountant

Christine Wemette, Associate Accountant

Kelly Anderson, Senior Accountant

Charonda Parker, Senior Accountant

Deanne Webster, Senior Accountant

Cash Reporting

Carrie Piser, Assistant Chief Accountant
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Laura Hennessey, CGFM, Associate Accountant
Corey Nicklas, Associate Accountant

Emad Ibrahim, Senior Accountant

Shobha lyer, Senior Accountant

Jennifer Spencer, Program Aide



	011  MD&A_revised_select.pdf
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (unaudited)
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
	Reporting the State as a Whole
	The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
	Reporting the State’s Fiduciary Responsibilities


	Table 3
	The State’s financial plan, which uses the cash basis of accounting, is updated quarterly throughout the year as required by the State Finance Law.  The quarterly updates to the 2022-23 financial plan reflected revisions to the original financial plan...
	General Fund receipts exceeded disbursements by $10.4 billion in the 2022-23 fiscal year.  Total General Fund receipts for the year (including transfers from other funds) were $103.2 billion.  Total General Fund disbursements for the year (including t...
	Tax receipts and General Fund continue to be impacted by the enactment of the Pass-Through Entity Tax (PTET) program which resulted in business tax collections of $14.9 billion and a reduction in PIT collections by an estimated $17 billion due to PTET...
	The General Fund ended the fiscal year with a closing cash fund balance of $43.5 billion, which consisted of $6.2 billion in the State’s rainy day reserve funds ($1.6 billion in the Tax Stabilization Reserve Account and $4.7 billion in the Rainy Day R...
	General Fund receipts in the 2022-23 fiscal year were $14.9 billion higher than the Enacted Budget Financial Plan estimate.  Personal income tax (PIT) receipts, including transfers from other funds after debt service payments, exceeded projections by ...
	CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
	Capital Assets


	207  Budgetary Statements - Other Governmental Funds.pdf
	Nonmajor



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




